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1 APPEARANCES, cont. 1 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on Friday, January 18,
2 2 2002, commencing at the hour of 10:07 am., thereof, at
3  TheIntervener: 3 theoffices of Morrison & Forester, 400 Capitol Mall,
4 CALIFORNIA SCHOOL BOARD ASSOCIATION 4 26th Floor, Sacramento, Cdifornia, before me,
5 BY: ABE HAJELA, ESQ. 5 TRACY LEE MOORELAND, a Certified Shorthand Reporter in
6 (present to page 305) 6 the State of California, there personally appeared
7 3100 Beacon Boulevard 7 NATHAN SCOTT HILL,
8 West Sacramento, California 95691 8 caled asawitness herein, who, having been duly sworn
9 9 totdl thetruth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
10 10 truth, was thereupon examined and interrogated as
11 For the Defendant State of California: 11 hereinafter set forth.
12 OMELVENEY & MYERSLLP 12 --000--
13 BY: FRAMROZE VIRJEE, ESQ. 13 (Mr. Affeldt not present.)
14 400 South Hope Street 14 (Exhibit SAD-228 was marked.)
15 Los Angel es, California 90071 15 EXAMINATION BY MR. ROSENBAUM
16 16 Q. How you doing, Mr. Hill?
17 Also present: Sandy Alexander, Paralegal from the 17 A.  I'mfine. Thank you.
18 Attorney General's office, present to page 133 18 Q.  Youreawareyourestill under oath?
19 19 A. Yes
20 20 Q.  Mr.Hill, did you personaly have any
21 21 involvement in the development of the high school exit
22 22 exam?
23 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
24 24 to"persondly" and "involvement”
25 25 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, if you could maybe
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Page 147

1 bealittle more specific about the question. 1 conversations at the department level about opportunity
2 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Wereyouinvolvedin 2 tolearn.
3 any -- did you have any involvement in the selection of 3 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Over what period of
4  the contractor for the high school exit exam? 4 time?
5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation.
6 to"involvement." 6 Lacks foundation.
7 THE WITNESS: The answer isno. 7 THE WITNESS: The only reference point | could
8 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. How about selection 8 give you would be from the establishment of the high
9 of subject matters to be covered on the high school exit 9 school exit exam in legislation forward.
10 exam, did you participate at any -- in any of the 10 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Have you personally reviewed
11 decision-making regarding that? 11 any literature discussing opportunity to learn?
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
13 to"participate.” 13 to "opportunity to learn.”
14 THE WITNESS: The process by which the content 14 THE WITNESS: | think | would need some
15 of the high schoal exit exam was established was through 15 clarification, Mr. Rosenbaum, about this. There are
16 thehigh school exit exam advisory committee, which was 16 many discussions about what opportunity to learn means,
17 required by statute. That committee ultimately made 17 sol'mnot sure what you're seeking.
18 recommendations to the state superintendent who sought a 18 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. What I'm seeking,
19 number of opinions and placed the recommendations from 19 first of all, is have you read literature, education --
20 the committeein front of the State Board which 20 inthe education field about opportunity to learn?
21 ultimately decided. | was-- | participated in some of 21 A. No.
22 those conversations. | don't recal any specific 22 Q. Okay. Haveyou read any -- have you authored
23 instance where | made a specific recommendation about a 23 any memorandum with respect to what opportunity to learn
24  specific content. 24 means?
25 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. Areyou familiar with | 25 A. | can'trecal doing so.
Page 146 Page 148
1 the phrase"opportunity to learn"? 1 (Mr. Affeldt entered the room.)
2 A Yes 2 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. Have you reviewed any
3 Q. Andhaveyou attended meetings where the phrase 3 memorandum prepared by Department of Education personnel
4 "opportunity to learn” was discussed? 4 with respect to the meaning or possible meanings of
5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 5 opportunity to learn?
6 to"meetings." Also object to the extent it would call 6 A. |can'trecal doing so.
7 for atorney/client privileged information and invades 7 Q. Okay. Arethere persons whom you consider to
8 theofficia information privilege. 8 be experts on the subject matter of the opportunity --
9 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, there have been -- 9 of what opportunity to learn means?
10 discussions on opportunity to learn have been so varied 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
11 and so many in terms of the public record around the 11 to"opportunity tolearn." Calls for speculation.
12 high school exit exam that | don't think | could begin 12 Lacksfoundation. And callsfor alegal conclusion to
13 to giveyou an accurate answer to that. 13 the extent you're asking expertise and in alegal
14 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Wadll, did you attend public | 14 setting.
15 meetings where opportunity to learn was discussed? 15 THE WITNESS: The Department of Education has
16 A. | have. 16 engaged the services of some officials who have had
17 Q. Anddidyou attend private meetings, Department 17 discussions with us about opportunity to learn.
18 of Education personnel, where opportunity to learn was 18 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Can you tell me the names of
19 discussed? 19 those officials, please?
20 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 20 A. Mary Lynn Borque, Susan Phillips, Tom Fisher.
21 asto"private.” 21 | believe | may be incorrect about the last name, and Ed
22 MR. VIRJEE: Also object on the grounds of the 22 Heertdl, H-ae-r-t-e-l.
23 attorney/client privilege and official information 23 Q.  Spell that again, please?
24 privilege. 24 A. H-aertel
25 THE WITNESS: There have been anumber of 25 Q. Anyone else?
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1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation. 1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
2 Lacksfoundation. 2 to'"opportunity to learn."
3 THE WITNESS: | don't know of anyone else. 3 THE WITNESS: | don't recall the preparation of
4 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Wereyou personaly 4 any such materials.
5 involved, Mr. Hill, in the selection of any of these 5 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Do you know who
6 individuals as consultants? 6 Ms. Borqueis?
7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
8 evidence. He hasn't testified they're consultants. 8 Y ou mean could he recognize her walking down
9 Alsovague and ambiguous asto "involved." 9 thestreet?
10 THEWITNESS: No, | was not. 10 THE WITNESS: | do.
11 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you know who was? 11 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Whoisshe?
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 12 A.  Sheis-- shewasffiliated with the National
13 to"who was," who salected them, who was involved, 13 Assessment Governing Board which administers NAEP.
14 whatever that means. 14 Q. N-A-E-P?
15 THEWITNESS: Yes. 15 A.  Yes correct.
16 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Who? 16 Q. Do youknow what she's doing now?
17 A. | canonlygiveyou asensethat the assessment 17 A. |don'tknow.
18 division and State Board staff had conversations about 18 MR. VIRJEE: 10:15.
19 those -- about selecting those experts. 19 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you know who Ms. Phillips
20 Q. Canyou give methe names of any of the persons 20 is?
21 inthe assessment division who were involved in those 21 A ldo
22 discussions? 22 Q. WhoisMs. Phillips?
23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 23 A. Sheisalawyer and psychometrician.
24 Lacks foundation. 24 Q. Do youknow where she's based?
25 THEWITNESS: | would only refer you to Phil 25 A.  ldont
Page 150 Page 152
1 Speas. 1 Q. Doyouknow if she'sbased in California?
2 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you know if Mr. Spears 2 A. |bdievesheisnot based in Cdifornia
3 wasinvolved in that process? 3 Q. Okay. And doyou know who -- | know you
4 A. |dontrecal whether hewas or not. 4 weren't surethat hislast name was Fisher, but welll
5 Q. Okay. Didyou ever attend any meeting at which 5 cadl himthat. Do you know who Mr. Fisher is?
6 any of the individuals whom you mentioned, Ms. Borque, 6 A. Ido
7 Ms. Phillips, Mr. Fisher and Mr. Haertel, spoke? 7 Q. Whoisthat?
8 A, Yes 8 A. Heisthedatetesting director for Horida.
9 Q. Okay. Andlet'sstart with Ms. Borque. Strike 9 Q. AndMr. Haertd, do you know who heis?
10 that. 10 A. ldo.
11 Were there any mesetings at which all four of 11 Q. Whoisthat?
12 them were present that you attended? 12 A. Hesaprofessor a Stanford University.
13 A.  Yes 13 Q.  Mr. Hill, do you have a definition of
14 Q.  How many such meetings? 14 opportunity to learn in your own mind as to what that
15 A. | cantrecall whether it was one or two. 15 means?
16 Q. Canyou give methe approximate date of that 16 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague asto content.
17 meeting or meetings, please? 17 Overly broad.
18 A.  Sometimein the year 2000. 18 THE WITNESS: | would need a context,
19 Q. Andwerethereany materials distributed at 19 Mr. Rosenbaum, to answer your guestion.
20 that meeting that you recall? 20 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Wadll, let's begin, say, with
21 A. |dontrecal. 21 the high school exit exam. With respect to the high
22 Q. Doyouknow if Ms. Borque, Ms. Phillips, 22 school exit exam, do you have a definition of what
23 Mr. Fisher or Mr. Haertel either collectively or 23 opportunity to learn means?
24 separately prepared any papers or memorandaregarding 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
25 opportunity to learn? 25 evidence. Vague asto context and overly broad.
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1 THEWITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, I'm hesitating 1 THE WITNESS: Thereisno -- thereisright
2 because offering my personal opinion about what 2 hereright now no high stakes attached to the high
3 opportunity to learnisin relaion to what might be a 3 school exit exam.
4 lega standard for opportunity to learn for the high 4 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Canyougivemean
5 school exit exam, there easily could be a disparity 5 example of high school -- high-stakes examinations as
6 between thosetwo. So maybe some clarification from you 6 you used that phrase?
7 astowhat you're seeking would be helpful. 7 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
8 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: I'minterested in your 8 Callsfor aninadmissible opinion.
9 viewpoint -- | gppreciate your qualifications -- based 9 MR. VIRJEE: Vague astotime.
10 onyour training and experience? 10 THE WITNESS: I'msorry, | really don't
11 MR. VIRJEE: What training and experience? 11 understand.
12 MR. ROSENBAUM: All thetraining and experience | 12 Q.  BY MR. ROSENBAUM: To your knowledge, are there
13 that you've amassed to date. 13 studentsin Californiain public schools today who are
14 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 14 taking the high school exit exams, | don't mean on
15 Cadlsfor aninadmissible opinion. Overly broad. Vague 15 Friday, but on --
16 asto content. 16 A.  The state has an annua administration of the
17 MR. VIRJEE: Alsovague asto "opportunity to 17 high school exit exam.
18 learn" asto whether, as hejust said, you're asking for 18 Q.  Andmy questionto you is-- maybe my question
19 his persona opinion about what the legal requirement is 19 wasn't clear -- can you give me any examples of
20 or what may be pedagogically or educationally correct, 20 high-stakes examinations as you just used that phrase?
21 or what he just thinks would be best practices. Vague 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
22 and ambiguous. 22 to"high-stakes." Alsovagueastotime.
23 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: I'm not interested in your 23 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation. Callsfor an
24 view astowhat thelega standardis, I'minterested in 24  inadmissible opinion.
25 terms of what opportunity to learn means with respect -- 25 THE WITNESS: Y es, there are such examinations.
Page 154 Page 156
1 inthiscontext of the high school exit exam, what 1 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Canyou tell mewhat they
2 you-- inyour position and based on your training and 2 ae?
3 experience what you consider it to mean. 3 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 4 THE WITNESS: | would suggest that the advanced
5 towhat it means. In statuteinthelaw? In 5 placement course examinations are such examinations, but
6 regulationsin amemorandum? In conversation? It's 6 those are not administrations by the State of California
7 vague and ambiguous. 7 sol would refer you to someone else for information on
8 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation. Callsfor an 8 it
9 inadmissible opinion. 9 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Arethereany high-stekes
10 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, opportunity to 10 examinations as you used that phrase that are
11 learnisthe expectation that a student will have every 11 administered by the State of Cdliforniathat you're
12 opportunity provided to him or her to learn the material 12 awareof?
13 expected of him or her if that material is attached to a 13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
14 high-stakes examination. 14 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague asto "high-stakes
15 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. Asyoujustusedthe | 15 examination." Cadlsfor aninadmissible opinion.
16 phrase "high-stakes examination,” Mr. Hill, would that 16 THE WITNESS: | think | would need to have a
17 include the high school exit exam? 17 clearer sense of what -- of where you're thinking in
18 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 18 termsoaf high stekes.
19 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor aninadmissible opinion. 19 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: My thinkingisirrelevant.
20 THE WITNESS: | think | would need some 20 You used the phrase. Y ou told me that the definition of
21 dlarification fromyou asto apoint in time. 21 opportunity to learn is an expectation that a student
22 MR. ROSENBAUM: Right now. 22 will have every opportunity to learn materials expected
23 THE WITNESS: No. 23 of him or her if the material is attached to a
24 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Whyisthat? 24 high-stakes examination.
25 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 25 Did | understand you correctly?
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1 A. Youdid 1 that. | apologize.
2 Q. Whenyou used that phrase "high-stakes 2 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, my referenceto
3 examination," that'swhat I'm interested in, your usage. 3 opportunity would be instructional -- an instructional
4 Canyou give me any examples of high-stakes examinations 4 program that includes the materials identified and
5 that are administered in the state of California 5 expected for studentsto learn.
6 MR. VIRJEE: Asheuseditin his definition of 6 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Anything else?
7 opportunity to learn? 7 A.  Opportunity to learn revolves around those
8 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes. 8 learning expectations.
9 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 9 Q. Whenyou say "materiasidentified,” you mean
10 Cdlsfor aninadmissible opinion. 10 instructional materials?
11 THE WITNESS: Y ou're seeking that for 11 A. Itcould be soldly instructional materials, it
12 examinations currently administered by the State of 12 could be something more than that.
13 Cdifornia? 13 Q. Whatdse? Suchas?
14 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes. 14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
15 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 15 Lacksfoundation.
16 THE WITNESS: The answer is no. 16 MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete hypothetical
17 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Do you have aview asto 17 question.
18 when -- will Cdiforniabe administering high-stakes 18 THE WITNESS: | would not know what a teacher
19 examinations so far as you know? 19 would provide or what a school or district would
20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 20 provide. It would certainly be dependent upon the
21 Lacksfoundation. Alsovague and ambiguous asto 21 circumstances of every student.
22 "high-stakes examinations." 22 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. And your definition
23 MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete hypothetical 23 of instructiona program as you've just been discussing
24 question. 24 it with me, would it have any relationship -- strike
25 MR. VIRJEE: Unlessyoureusingitinthis 25 that -- would it include the qualifications or
Page 158 Page 160
1 same definition. 1 competence of the teacher?
2 THE WITNESS: Cdlifornia state law requires 2 MR. SEFERIAN: Object. Overly broad. Vague as
3 that the -- that the high school exit exam be used as a 3 tocontext. Lacksfoundation.
4 high-stakes examination at some point in the future. 4 MR. VIRJEE: Cdlsfor speculation.
5 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you know when that point 5 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation. Callsfor an
6 is? 6 inadmissible opinion.
7 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor an 7 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, my belief, my
8 inadmissible legal opinion. 8 persond opinionisthat it dl begins with an
9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calls for speculation. 9 identification of what every student knows and can do at
10 THE WITNESS: | would refer you to AB 1609 10 agiven pointintime, and whatever discrepancy exists
11 which establishes a process by which that determination 11 between that knowledge and where a student needs to go,
12 will be made. 12 itis-- that becomes the focus of an appropriate
13 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Now, when you gave me your 13 instructiona program. Whether that includes a
14 definition -- and that's still what I'm talking about, 14 teacher's competency or qudlificationsis speculative.
15 Mr. Hill. 15 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: What'sthe basis of that
16 MR. VIRJEE: "Your definition" of what? 16 answer?
17 MR. ROSENBAUM: Opportunity to learn. 17 MR. VIRJEE: Y ou asked for his persond
18 MR. VIRJEE: Thank you. 18 opinion.
19 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: When you used the word 19 THE WITNESS: That was my opinion.
20 "opportunity" in your definition, what did you mean by 20 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: And to your knowledge,
21 "opportunity"? 21 Mr. Hill, the State of Cdlifornia, Department of
22 MR. VIRJEE: He didn't give you a-- he didn't 22 Education, does it have a definition of opportunity to
23 usethe word opportunity in his definition. 23 learninthe context of the high school exit exam?
24 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes, hedid. 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
25 MR. VIRJEE: | takethat back. | withdraw 25 Overly broad. Vague asto context. Vague and ambiguous
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1 asto"definition." Lacks foundation. 1 the State Board staff present sO far asyou know?
2 THE WITNESS: | can't recdl. | don't know. 2 A. | don't recall.
3 Q  BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Have you beeninany 3 Q. Okay. Wasanyone fromthe legidature or
4 discussions at which the subject matter of the 4 legidative staff members present so far as you know?
5 Department of Education devel oping a definition of 5 A. | don't recall any representati on from the
6 opportunity to learn with respect to the high school 6 |egis|ature_
7 exit exam was discussed? 7 Q.  WasMr. Mockler present?
8 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnot in 8 A. Mr. Mockler may have been, but | redly don't
9 evidence. Object to the extent it calls for disclosure 9 recal.
10 of privileged communications. 10 Q. Doyouknow if Ms. Mazzoni or Ms. Burke or
11 THE WITNESS: | can't recall such discussion. 11 Mr. Hart were present?
12 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. Andif | changed it 12 A. I'm sorry, Ms. --
13 to not the Department of Education but the State Board 13 Q. Hart, Mazzoni, Burke, any of them present?
14  of Education, would your answer be any different? 14 A. | do not recall any of them being present.
15 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 15 Q. Whodsedoyourecal being present besides
16 THE WITNESS: It would be the same answer. 16 thefour individuals you mentioned and the people from
17 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: And if | talked about the 17 your staff whom you mentioned?
18  secretary of education or his or her staff members, 18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.
19 would your answer be any different? 19 Hesadhedidn't recall anybody dse,
20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 20 THE WITNESS: | think I've answered | don't
21 to"secretary of education." Also vague asto time. 21 recal anyone dse,
22 THE WITNESS: | have no knowledge of the 22 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: And the mesti ng,
23 secretary of education's proceedings, deliberations or 23 approxi mately how |ong did it take?
24  discussions. 24 A. | don't recall whether it was one or two days,
25 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: To your knowledge, has there 25 but it was either aoneor two-day mesti ng.
Page 162 Page 164
1 ever been any discussion of an opportunity to learn 1 Q. AnddidMs. Borque-- were presentations made
2 index? 2 by Borque, Phillips, Fisher and Haertel?
3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
4 to"opportunity to learn index." 4  to"presentations.”
5 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague asto context. 5 THE WITNESS: | don't recdll. | don't recall.
6 THE WITNESS: | can't recall sucha 6 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Hasthere been any
7 conversation. 7 assessment that you're aware of by the Department of
8 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Now, | think youtold me 8 Education asto whether public school studentsin
9 that you attended either one or two meetings with 9 Cdiforniareceive an opportunity to learn?
10 Ms. Borque, Ms. Phillips, Mr. Fisher and Mr. Haertdl; is 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
11 that correct? 11 to"opportunity to learn” and "receive." Also vague as
12 A.  Yes 12 totime.
13 Q. Okay. Andwheredid that meeting or meetings 13 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumesfactsnot in evidence.
14 takeplace? 14 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor speculation.
15 A. AttheCadlifornia Department of Education 15 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, I'll give you an
16 building. 16 answer that -- well, the State of California has, since
17 Q. Okay. Andwere there members of your staff 17 the development of its standards, adopted an ambitious
18 present? 18 and aggressive program to ensure that al students are
19 A Yes 19 learning our state expectations, our standards.
20 Q.  Whowas present? 20 Weare -- the stateis providing an digned
21 A.  Mr. Warren, Mr. Spears, and beyond that | can't 21 systemto students. That does not happen overnight.
22 recall anyone specificaly. 22 Textbooks, teachers, assessments are al working in
23 Q. Was Superintendent Eastin present? 23 aignment to provide students an instructional program
24 A. No. 24 that isaligned to our learning expectations.
25 Q. Wasanyonefrom the State Board of Education or 25 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: | appreciatethat. My
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Page 165 Page 167
1 questionis, hasthe State of California conducted any 1 whom about what?
2 assessment or inquiry to determine whether or not dl 2 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | don't have any
3 students are receiving an opportunity to learn? 3 specific information about such areport. | know that
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 4 thereareregular reports, but | don't know
5 to"opportunity to learn," in what context, and also 5 gpecificdly.
6 vague and ambiguous as to "assessment." 6 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Haveyou read the
7 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation. 7 reportsthat have been compiled to date?
8 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, isyour question 8 A Yes
9 directed towards the high school exit exam? 9 Q. Okay. And didyou ever attend any meetings at
10 MR. ROSENBAUM: Let's start there, yeah. 10 which the -- those reports were discussed?
11 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 11 A Yes
12 THE WITNESS: The State has not conducted an 12 Q. Andhow many meetings?
13 assessment. The State has contracted with an evaluator 13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
14 do such evaluations. 14 to"mestings."
15 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Andwhoisthat 15 THE WITNESS: | can't recall a specific number,
16 evduator? 16 but | would suggest that the most important -- | cannot
17 A.  It'sthe human resources research corporation 17 recdl any private meetings where those reports were
18 known as HUMRRO. 18 presented. Those reports have al been represented in
19 Q. [I'veseensomereportsby HUmMRRO. The 19 publicto the State Board.
20 evauation that you're talking about, to your knowledge, 20 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Soasfar asyou recal,
21 hasthat taken place yet? 21 Mr. Hill, there were no Department staff meetingsin
22 A. I'mreferring, Mr. Rosenbaum, to the -- | can't 22 which the results were discussed; isthat right?
23 recall aspecific number, but report or reports that 23 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. The misstates the
24 HumRRO has aready conducted with regard to the 24 witness testimony.
25 implementation of the high school exit exam. 25 THE WITNESS: | do not recall such mesetings.
Page 166 Page 168
1 Q. Anddo you personally consider those reports an 1 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Did the Department --
2 assessment asto whether or not students, public school 2 upon receipt and review of the reports, did the
3 studentsreceived an opportunity to learn? 3 Department take any actions that you're aware of ?
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 4 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnotin
5 to"opportunity to learn," "received." Also callsfor 5 evidence. Vague and ambiguous as to "take any actions.”
6 speculation. Lacks foundation. 6 Overly broad. Vague astotime.
7 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto 7 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | think it would
8 "assessment." 8 help meto get a sense of exactly what you're seeking
9 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | cantell you 9 from your question.
10 that the evaluation from HUMRRO was designed to focus on 10 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: What I'minterested inis
11 both the qualities of the development of the examination 11 having received the report and considered the reports,
12 and the administration of the examination, and also to 12 to your knowledge, did the Department respond in any way
13 gain some sense of the extent to which students are 13 to those reports?
14 being provided the instruction and the learning 14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
15 objectives associated with the exam. 15 to"respond.”
16 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Whenyou say "somesense” | 16 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.
17 what do you mean by that? 17 THE WITNESS: The answer is no, the Department
18 A. | don't know specifically what HUmRRO was 18 would respond in relationship to those that would be
19 evaluating, which iswhy | used the term "some sense.” 19 under the direct control and responsibilities of the
20 1 think you would have to ask those officials for more 20 Department. The reports have praised consistently the
21 information. 21 overall development and implementation of the exam,
22 Q. Okay. Do you know whether HUMRRO is -- there's 22 which are the responsibilities of the Department of
23 ancther report due from HUMRRO? 23 Education.
24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 24 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: To your knowledge, did the
25 to "another report due” Cadlsfor speculation. Dueto 25 State Board have any response to the HUmRRO reports?
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1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 1 provide additional professional opportunities for
2 to"response.” 2 teachers, whether it isto provide additional
3 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence. 3 instructional materialsleading up and covering the
4 Vagueastotime. 4 material of the high school exit examination. The State
5 THE WITNESS: Yes. 5 hasbeen very strong in its support of creating the
6 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: What responses are you aware 6 appropriate conditionsfor all students.
7 of? ‘ 7 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Any other conditions?
8 A.  Thereportswere received in public meetings, 8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
9 andthe Board had, as| recall -- and | will only state 9 to"any other conditions.”
10 generally because | don't recall more than that -- 10 MR. ROSENBAUM: That you think isimportant.
11 positive reactions to the overall development and 11 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
12 implementation of the examination and more sobered 12 “important." Calsfor aninadmissible opinion. Vague
13 reactionsto the status of where our -- where we are 13 asto context.
14 starting from in the multi-year effort to ensure all 14 THE WITNESS: Unless you have something
15 students are taught the material they need to learn. 15 specific, | don't have anything to add.
16 Q.  Tell mewhat that means when you said "more 16 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Now, inyour last answer,
17 sobered reactions.” 17 Mr. Hill, when you use "opportunities to learn” --
18 A.  Not surprisingly the reportsinitialy 18 MR. VIRJEE: Hedidn't use opportunity to
19 identified some discrepancies between what instruction 19 learn.
20 and materials students were learning and what the high 20 THE WITNESS: | don't think | said that
21 school exit exam seeks to ensure that they have learned. 21 specifically.
22 Q. Okay. Any other -- do you know what, if 22 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes, you did. Could you read
23 anything, the State Board did with respect to those 23 Mr. Hill's answer two answers ago.
24 conclusions? 24 MR. VIRJEE: He used those words, but he didn't
25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 25 usereference to a phrase "opportunity to learn.”
Page 170 Page 172
1 towhattheydid. Alsovagueastotime. Also 1 (Record read.)
2 overbroad. 2 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: When you say "more teachers'
3 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague as to "those conclusions.” 3 and used "algebra," what did you mean by that?
4  Assumes facts not in evidence. 4 A. Theacademic standards suggest that wetry to
5 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | don't believe 5 provide instruction for studentsin algebra beginning in
6 you're asking the question about potentially the 6 eighth grade. That isamove forward for our students
7 appropriate agencies. 7 interms of learning expectations, and there was -- I'm
8 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: But let's stay with the 8 trying to state this correctly. It may be the case that
9 StateBoard. Any response you're aware of? 9 many middle schools do not have algebra programs, or did
10 MR. VIRJEE: Same abjections. 10 not have at the time of the standards being adopted
11 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any specific 11 algebraprograms that were ready to accept students.
12 authorities the State Board of Education would have to 12 Q. How about now, do all middle schoolsin the
13 have aresponse that would result in action. 13 state of California have algebra programs as you've just
14 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Whenyou said "appropriate | 14 definedit?
15 agencies," what were you thinking of? 15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation.
16 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor 16 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous as to "algebra
17 inadmissible legal opinion. 17 programs."
18 THE WITNESS: The high school exit examination 18 THE WITNESS: | don't know the answer to that
19 isasuccess story because the governor and legidature, 19 question.
20 thisismy persona opinion, have responded well to 20 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Hasthe State of
21 ensuring that students have opportunities to learn the 21 California-- to your knowledge, has the Department or
22 material the high school exit examination seeks to have 22 the State Board undertaken any survey, investigation to
23 themlearn, whether it is providing more teachers and 23 determine whether or not all middle schools have algebra
24 incentives to teachers to teach algebra or it's creating 24  programs?
25 athoughtful study as AB 1609 creates, whether it isto 25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
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1 to"survey." Alsovague astotimeand "algebra 1 communications.
2 programs.” 2 THE WITNESS: | do not recall there ever being
3 MR. SEFERIAN: Compound question. Vague asto 3 agpecific opinion from the Department of Education
4 ‘“investigation." 4 about that issue.
5 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | don't know the 5 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: To your knowledge, hasthe
6 answer specifically to your question. | would refer you 6 Department ever undertaken any inquiry or investigation
7 toan examination of the Department CBEDS data which may 7 to determine whether or not teachers who are teaching
8 behelpful to you. 8 dgebraaretrained and competent to teach algebra?
9 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Now, when you talked 9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
10 about algebra teachers, what did you mean by algebra 10 to"trained" and "competent." Callsfor speculation.
11 teachers? 11 Andlacksfoundation. Also asked and answered.
12 A.  Teacherswho provide instruction in algebra. 12 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.
13 MR. VIRJEE: And | don't believe he used the 13 Vagueasto "inquiry" and "investigation.”
14 word algebrateachers. | think he said teachersto 14 THE WITNESS:. Mr. Rosenbaum, | don't know the
15 teach algebra. 15 answer to your question.
16 MR. ROSENBAUM: | appreciate that. 16 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Let'sgo back to what was
17 Q. Doyouknow, sir, whether or not al students 17 referredto asyour long answer, and I'm glad to have it
18 in public schools who are in algebra classes have 18 read back to you if you'd like.
19 teachers who are trained and qualified to teach algebra? 19 When you used the phrase "opportunities to
20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 20 learn" inthat answer, Mr. Hill, do you have an opinion
21 to"trained" and "qualified to teach algebra." And 21 astowhether or not dl public school studentsin the
22 cdlsfor speculation. 22 date of Californiahave equa opportunitiesto learn?
23 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation. 23 MR. VIRJEE: AndI'mgoing to object. It
24 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, I'm not sure | 24 misstates histestimony. He didn't use the phrase
25 know how to answer your question because | don't know -- 25 opportunity to learn, he used the phrase students have
Page 174 Page 176
1 the concepts of training and qualifications are broad 1 theopportunity to learn materia the exam seeksto have
2 and somewhat nebulous and so I'm not surell 2 themlearn.
3 understand -- | don't think | know how to respond. 3 MR. ROSENBAUM: Within that context.
4 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Aspart of the campaign you 4 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. No foundation.
5 weredescribing, didn't you mean to include recruiting 5 Overlybroad. Incomplete and improper hypothetical
6 dgebrateachers? 6 question. Lacksfoundation. Cdlsfor aninadmissible
7 MR. VIRJEE: Areyou asking what he said or are 7 opinion.
8 youasking -- 8 THE WITNESS: I'm not sure | understand what
9 MR. ROSENBAUM: If that's what you meant. 9 youmean by "equa."
10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 10 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: The phrase"equa
11 to"that's what you meant" about any part of his answer. 11 opportunity to learn," is that new to you?
12 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague asto "campaign." Lacks 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
13 foundation. Callsfor inadmissible opinion. 13 to"equa opportunity to learn." Also cals for
14 THE WITNESS: The-- I'm sorry, can you have 14 speculation. And to the extent you're asking the legal
15 the question read back? 15 dandard, calsfor alegal conclusion. Also vague as
16 MR. ROSENBAUM: | can restateit. 16 to context.
17 Q.  Whenthis process started, wasn't one of the 17 THE WITNESS: Theterm as you've described it
18 concerns of the Department that there were not 18 isnewtome
19 sufficient numbers of trained and competent algebra 19 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Andif equa means
20 teachersinthe public school system? Isn't that right? 20 the same opportunities, that some students don't have
21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 21 grester opportunities than other students, do you have
22 to"trained" and "competent.” 22 an opinion asto whether or not al public school
23 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague asto "concerns." Vague 23 studentsin the state of California have equa
24 astotime. Vagueasto "agebrateachers” Object to 24 opportunitiesto learn the material as you've defined
25 theextent it callsfor disclosure of privileged 25 that fully in your answer?
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1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 1 development of teachers. It's nonsensical. You're
2 to"same" Also cdlsfor speculation. 2 taking elements he used for telling you something that
3 MR. SEFERIAN: No foundation. Callsfor an 3 thelegidature did and trying to apply them to an
4 inadmissible opinion. Vague and ambiguous as to 4 opportunity to learn. He's not done that. It's
5 "greater" and "equa" and "opportunities." Lacks 5 nonsensical.
6 foundation. 6 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation. Calls for
7 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | don't think | 7 speculation. Vague and ambiguous as to "access." Calls
8 cananswer your question as you've asked it. 1 would 8 for an inadmissible opinion.
9 suggest -- however, that the high school exit 9 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, I'm searching for
10 examination, it's hard to answer your question as you've 10 away to answer your question, and | can't find one.
11 referredtoit interms of equal because one may infer 11 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Youwereinvolvedinthe
12 fromthat that at any one given point intimethereis 12 development of the science standards, you told us that
13 something called equal. 13 yesterday, correct?
14 The fact is the premise of the high school exit 14 A.  Yes
15 examisfar different. Itisthat over along period of 15 Q. Do any of the science standards for any of the
16 time with multiple opportunities students will have an 16 gradesinvolve use of science labs?
17 opportunity to demonstrate that they've learned the 17 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
18 materia the exam seeks for themto learn. 18 Vagueastotime. Vague and ambiguous as to "science
19 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: What I'm concerned about -- | 19 labs." Callsfor speculation.
20 | appreciate your answer. But what I'm concerned about 20 THE WITNESS: The science standards, per se,
21 isintheanswer that you gave you talked about a number 21 like all the standards, do not call for a specific
22 of different components, you talked about instructional 22 instructional implementation strategy.
23 programs, you talked about additional professional 23 Q. BY MRROSENBAUM: Do they contemplate access of
24  developments, you talked about teachers, you talked 24  studentsto labs?
25 about materials. 25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
Page 178 Page 180
1 Did | understand you correctly when you talked 1 to"contemplate." Assumes standards can contemplate.
2 about those matters? 2 MR. SEFERIAN: Cdlsfor speculation.
3 MR. VIRJEE: That calls for speculation asto 3 THE WITNESS: Standards include investigation
4 what you might have understood. 4 and experimentation learning expectations.
5 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Those are the maiters you 5 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. With respect to that,
6 mentioned, right? 6 dotheyinclude -- do they, in your mind, contemplate
7 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor 7  students doing lab work?
8 speculation. The testimony speaks for itsalf. 8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
9 MR. VIRJEE: In that context he was taking 9 Lacksfoundation asto what standards contemplate, if
10 about what the state legislature and the governor has 10 that's even physically possible.
11 done. Hewasn' talking about anything else. 11 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto "lab
12 MR. ROSENBAUM: Go ahead. 12 work."
13 MR. VIRJEE: Did heligt those things? His 13 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | redlly don't
14  testimony will speak for itself. 14 know how to answer your question because you're asking
15 THE WITNESS: My testimony did refer to those 15 for -- there are any number of ways that the standards
16 eements, that's correct. 16 or thelearning expectations could be implemented at a
17 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Anddoyouhavea--doyou | 17 loca school level, and certainly science laboratories
18 have an opinion as to whether or not with respect to 18 may be a predominate or frequent way of doing that. |
19 those elementsall public school studentsin the state 19 do not know if there are other ways for studentsto
20 of Cdifornia have equal opportunities, equal accessto 20 conduct or to learn those materials.
21 those elements? 21 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Do you have
22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 22 knowledge, Mr. Hill, asto whether or not all high
23 to"those elements." Those elementsincluded 23 schoals, public schools in the state of California
24 professiona development to teachers, so | don't know 24  afford access to science labs for students?
25 how students could have access to professional 25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
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Page 183

1 to"sciencelabs' and "access." Also callsfor 1 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: What's your understanding of
2 speculation. Lacks foundation. 2 what that means?
3 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous as to 3 A Lab kits are an instructional material that can
4 “dfford." Vagueastotime. 4 be used by teachers and students to conduct experiments
5 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | heard you say 5 and other science activities.
6 both high school and al schoals. 6 Q.  Toyour knowledge, are there some students,
7 MR. ROSENBAUM: I'm talking about high schools 7 public school studentsin the state of Californiawho
8 right now. 8 receive lab kits in high school ?
9 THE WITNESS: | don't know the answer to that 9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calls for speculation.
10 question. 10 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous as to "receive
11 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Do you know if that's ever 11 lab kits."
12 been surveyed or looked into by the Department? 12 THE WITNESS: | don't know the answer to that
13 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes facts not in 13 question.
14 evidence. Vague and ambiguous asto "survey" and 14 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Or have accessto lab kits?
15 "looked into." Vague astotime. 15 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections, and aso vague
16 THE WITNESS: | don't know the answer to that 16 and ambiguous as to "access to."
17 question. 17 THE WITNESS: | don't know the answer to that
18 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: How about in middle schoals, 18 question.
19 doyou know if al public school studentsin middle 19 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Do you know whether some
20 schools have access to science labs? 20 students have access to lab kits and others do not in
21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calls for speculation. 21 thepublic high schoolsin Cdlifornia?
22 Lacks foundation. Vague and ambiguous as to "access" 22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
23 and the "science labs." 23 to"accessto" and "lab kits." Also compound.
24 THE WITNESS: | don't know. 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague asto time.
25 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Do you know if that's ever 25 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | don't know the
Page 182 Page 184
1 been aninvestigation by anyone in the Department? 1 answer tothat question. And | should explain that the
2 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes facts not in 2 dtate of California does not have an approved
3 evidence. 3 instructional material list for high school, and so they
4 THE WITNESS: | don't know. 4 would not be -- there would not be arecord at the state
5 Q BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Or anyonein the State 5 level of such use.
6 Board? 6 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. Has there been any
7 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes facts not in 7 inquiry or investigation by anyone at the state level,
8 evidence. 8 sofar asyou know, to find out if some students receive
9 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry, the reference to the 9 lab kitsin public high schools and others do not?
10 State Boardis? 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
11 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: To your knowledge, has there 11 to"receivelab kits." Also compound. Assumes those
12 ever been adiscussion at the State Board, we ought to 12 aremutually exclusive.
13 have an investigation as to whether or not all middle 13 THE WITNESS: | do not know of such aninquiry.
14 school students have access to science labs? 14 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Same thing regarding the
15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 15 State Board of Education?
16 to"access' and "science labs." 16 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. Lacks
17 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague asto "investigation.” 17 foundation. Assumes facts not in evidence.
18 Assumes facts not in evidence. 18 THE WITNESS: The State Board does not have
19 THE WITNESS: | do not recall such a 19 such responsibilities.
20 conversation. 20 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Do you think the Department
21 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Areyou familiar with the 21 does?
22 phrase"lab kit"? 22 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor an
23 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 23 inadmissible legal opinion. Calls for speculation.
24  asto context. 24 Lacks foundation.
25 THE WITNESS: | am. 25 THE WITNESS: No, | don't.
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1 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Andwhy isthat? 1 kits"
2 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 2 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, I'm not certain of
3 Calsfor speculation. Callsfor aninadmissible legal 3 theanswer to that question. | would refer you to the
4 opinion. Vague and ambiguous as to "that." 4 Department's website where thereis alist of gpproved
5 THE WITNESS: Inthe areaof instructional 5 instructional materials for science.
6 materials, the State Department of Education serves as 6 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: With respect to any of those
7 aff to the State Board of Education. State Board of 7 materiasthat are on the website, Mr. Hill, do you know
8 Education's oversight responsibility for instructional 8 if dl studentsin the state of California, all public
9 maeridsisfor K-8. 9 school students have access to those materials?
10 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. Toyour knowledge, | 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
11 hasthere ever been any investigation by the Department 11 Lacksfoundation. Also vague and ambiguous as to
12 astowhether or not middle school students have access 12 “access."
13 tolabskits? 13 THE WITNESS: | don't know the answer to your
14 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnot in 14 question.
15 evidence. Vague and ambiguous asto "investigation” and 15 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Andif I change-- do
16 "labkits" Calsfor speculation. 16 you know if there's ever been any inquiry or
17 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous as to 17 investigation by anyone at the Department or State Board
18 "accessto." 18 totrytofind out that answer, whether or not all
19 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | would suggest 19 studentsin public schools in the state of California
20 that your inquiry might be better served if you directed 20 have accessto those instructiond materials?
21 it towardswhether lab kits are approved instructiona 21 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnot in
22 materiasfor middle schools. 22 evidence. Vague and ambiguous asto "inquiry” and
23 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. But that's not my 23 investigation." Compound question.
24 question right now. 24 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous asto
25 A. Thenl cannot answer your question. 25 "access"
Page 186 Page 188
1 Q. Doyouknow if there are any middle school 1 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | would refer you
2 studentsin public schools in Californiawho receive lab 2 toacouple of activities that we undertake to provide
3 kits? 3 some assurances on that. Oneisthat state law requires
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 4 school district boards of education to conduct an annual
5 to"receive Alsocompound. Assumes that the receipt 5 public hearing with regard to the availability and
6 or nonreceipt is mutualy exclusive. 6 extent of use of their standards-aligned instructional
7 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation. 7 materials, that's 60191. There are assurances that are
8 THE WITNESS: | don't know. 8 required that the Department of Education and the State
9 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Or whether or not there are 9 Board receive from district superintendents with regard
10 any scienceteachersin middle schoolsin California 10 to the use of standards-based materials in classrooms.
11 public schools -- 1 I'm pretty certain it is AB 466, not SB 466 but
12 MR. VIRJEE: Science teachers? 12 AB 466 which went into effect this year which directs
13 MR. ROSENBAUM: Science teachers. 13 the purchasing and distribution of standards-based
14 Q. --whoassign projectsthat require lab kits? 14 materials for students within certain time frames.
15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 15 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Do you have any problem with
16 Lacksfoundation. Also vague and ambiguous as to 16 any of those requirements, Mr. Hill?
17 "requirelab kits." 17 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
18 THE WITNESS: | don't know the answer to that 18 asto "problem." Overly broad.
19 quedtion. 19 MR. VIRJEE: Compound.
20 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Doyouknowwhetherornot | 20 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Personaly do you have any
21 lab kits are part of the approved instructional 21 problems with those requirements? Do you support those
22 materias for the middle school? 22 requirements?
23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
24 1o "approved instructional materials.” 24 “support those requirements," and compound.
25 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto "lab 25 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad. Vague and
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Page 191

1 ambiguous. 1 toanswer your question.
2 THEWITNESS: I'm deliberating on your 2 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: What's the problem?
3 question, Mr. Rosenbaum, because those all come -- they 3 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor
4 come from different angles. One of themisaloca 4 speculation. Argumentative.
5 requirement with an assurance provided to the State of 5 THE WITNESS: Y our question carries some
6 Cdifornia oneispart of awaiver process, and then 6 assumptions behind it that | think | need some
7 another oneis arequirement from the State that isan 7 clarification from you about.
8 affirmative obligation on districtsto provide 8 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Tell mewhat you need
9 information about the extent of the use of 9 someclarification on.
10 standards-based materials. 10 A. |think you're asking meto infer that thereis
11 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Mr. Hill, let meseeif | 11 some -- that there's an importance attached to some
12 candarify alittle bit. The various assurancesyou 12 state level of oversight on instructional materials, and
13 mentioned to me, so far as you know, Mr. Hill, do any of 13 | need to get alittle bit more information from you
14 those assurancesinclude an assurance that al students 14 about what you mean.
15 inadigtrict have accessto instructional materials? 15 Q. I'mnotinterested, Mr. Hill, whether it's
16 MR. VIRJEE: To the extent you're asking what 16 important or it's not important, | just want to know if
17 the statute requires, the statutes speak for themselves. 17 it happens.
18 Alsovague and ambiguous asto "assurances' and 18 My question is, have you ever heard of a
19 "access. 19 student not having access to standards-aligned
20 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto 20 instructiona materials?
21 "insgtructional meterials' and "various assurances." 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague astotime.
22 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | actually would 22 Also vague and ambiguous as to "standards-aligned
23 need some clarification from you about what you mean by 23 instructional materials" and "access.”
24 “ingtructional materials.” Do you mean 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Asked and answered.
25 standards-aligned instructional materials? 25 THE WITNESS: | can't provide any -- | don't
Page 190 Page 192
1 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes, | do. 1 recall any specific report or study.
2 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 2 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Would it concernyouin
3 THE WITNESS: Can you repeat thefirst part of 3 your--
4 your question. 4 MR. VIRJEE: | thought you weren't interested
5 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do those assurances require 5 inwhether he thought it was important or not.
6 thedistrictsto say dl kids have accessto 6 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Would it concern youin your
7 standards-aligned instructional materials? 7 capacity, Mr. Hill, if you'd learned that there were
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Compound. Also object 8 students who didn't have access to standards-aligned
9 vague and ambiguous as to "requirement.” And to the 9 instructional material?
10 extent you're asking what the standards specifically 10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague asto time.
11 date, they spesk for themsalves. Also callsfor a 11 Vagueasto "concern." Vague asto "access," and vague
12 legal conclusion. 12 asto "standards-aligned instructional materials.”
13 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous as to "those 13 MR. SEFERIAN: Irrelevant.
14 assurances." 14 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | can only answer
15 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | can't answer 15 not necessarily.
16 with any specificity. | would refer you to the 16 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Can you think of any
17 satutory language. 17 circumstances where it would concern you?
18 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Haveyou ever heard of an 18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation.
19 instance where a student didn't have access to 19 Lacks foundation, and the same objections as to the form
20 standards-aligned instructional materials? 20 of the question.
21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 21 MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete and improper
22 totime 22 hypothetical question. Vague and ambiguous. Overly
23 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto 23 broad. Vague astotime.
24 "access' and "instructional materials.” 24 THE WITNESS: The obligation of a school
25 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | don't know how 25 district for astudent is to provide a standards-based
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1 instructional program. How the district doesthat could 1 Incomplete and improper hypothetical question. Vague
2 Dbethrough the use of standards-aligned instructional 2 and ambiguous asto "access' and "concern.” Lacks
3 materialsthat are adopted by the state, it could be 3 foundation. Callsfor inadmissible opinion.
4 through other standards-aligned teaching methods and 4 THEWITNESS: Yes.
5 drategiesand materials. Itisnot -- thereforel 5 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Why isthat?
6 don't know whether to be alarmed or not based upon what 6 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
7 1 think are the assumptions of your question. 7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
8 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: To useyour phrase, 8 Why iswhat?
9 Mr. Hill, can you think of any circumstances where you 9 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Why would that concern you?
10 would be darmed? 10 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
11 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad. Vague 1 THE WITNESS: The State has made clear that the
12 and ambiguous asto "aarmed.” Incomplete and improper 12 learning expectations for every student must be
13 hypothetical question. Vague and ambiguous as to 13 consistent with students learning grade level standards
14 “circumstances." Callsfor aninadmissible opinion. 14 inevery content area. The State's expectations assume
15 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, my concerns would 15 that students will be provided an instructional program
16 focus on whether astudent is or is not being provided a 16 that is aligned to and consistent with our state
17 standards-based instructional program. That would be 17 standards. Students not being provided such a program,
18 thefocus of my concerns. 18 that would concern me.
19 MR. VIRJEE: When you get achance, Mark, I'd 19 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: To your knowledge, are there
20 liketotake abreak. 20 public school students in the state of Californiawho do
21 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. My question to you 21 not have access to standards-based curriculumin
22 s, can you think of any circumstances where you would 22 particular subject areas?
23 bedarmed if you learned that students did not have 23 MR. VIRJEE: He never used the term
24 access to standards-based materials digned -- strike 24 “standards-based curriculum." That's your term, not
25 that -- did not have access to instructional materials 25 his. Objection. Calls for speculation. Lacks
Page 194 Page 196
1 aligned with state standards? 1 foundation. Vague and ambiguous as to "access" and
2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered. 2 “standards-based curriculum.”
3 Incomplete hypothetical. Vague and ambiguous as to 3 THE WITNESS: | don't know.
4 "access." 4 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Do you know if the State has
5 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague as to "instructional 5 made any effort to determine whether or not there's such
6 materias" Overly broad. Cadllsfor speculation. 6 students?
7 THE WITNESS: | don't know how to add more 7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation.
8 information to my prior answer. 8 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous as to effort.
9 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. If you found out that 9 THE WITNESS: | do not know the answer to your
10 students did not have access to a standards-based 10 question.
11 curriculum, would that concern you? 1 MR. ROSENBAUM: Let's take abreak.
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 12 (Recess taken.)
13 to"access' and "standards-based curriculum.” Also 13 (Mr. Affeldt not present.)
14 vagueastotime. 14 (Exhibit SAD-229 was marked.)
15 MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete and improper 15 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: You doing okay, Mr. Hill?
16 hypothetical question. Overly broad. Lacks foundation. 16 A. Yes
17 Cdlsfor aninadmissible opinion. Vague and ambiguous 17 Q. Do you personaly have knowledge, Mr. Hill, as
18 asto"concern.” Relevance. 18 to whether or not al teachersin public schoolsin the
19 THE WITNESS: Can you repeat your question, 19 date of California have been trained to teach the
20 plesse. 20 content standardsin each subject area?
21 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: | wasusing your phraseas| 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
22 understood it. If you learned that there were students 22 to "trained to teach the content standards."
23 who did not have access to a standards-based curriculum 23 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
24 inany subject matter, would that concern you? 24 Callsfor speculation.
25 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad. 25 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, I'll take your
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1 questionat itsbroadest. The answer isthat the State 1 specific point in time instruction or whether it yields
2 hasprovided state frameworks as they've been produced 2 aspecific result, and those could be very different
3 toeveryteacher in the state of California, covering 3 answers.
4 English, mathematics, history and science are on the 4 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Help me understand the
5 way. And beyond that, there are provided professiona 5 distinction you're making.
6 development days for teachers as well as professiond 6 (Mr. Affeldt entered the room.)
7 development institutes which have trained some number of 7 THE WITNESS:. The bottom line that we havein
8 tensof thousands of teachers. 8 terms of our accountability system is that we want to
9 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: But do you know for afact 9 see students improve their learning in relation to our
10 whether or not dl teachers have been trained in the 10 content standards. That is happening.
11 content areas-- content standards in every subject 11 If that is -- if one can infer from the
12 area? 12 improvement in test scores that teachers are teaching
13 MR. VIRJEE: He'sasking you ridiculous 13 our standards and students are learning our standards,
14 questions. Do you personally know that? 14 then the answer would be yes. If itisin referenceto
15 MR. ROSENBAUM: That's not appropriate. 15 my specific knowledge about every teacher having
16 MR. VIRJEE: Itiscompletely appropriate. You 16 gpecific training, the answer is no.
17 asked do you personally know that. If you want to ask 17 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: If test scores are not
18 ridiculous questions, I'll characterize them as they 18 improving, would you infer to the contrary?
19 should be characterized. 19 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad.
20 He's asking did you personaly talk to every 20 Incomplete and improper hypothetical question. Lacks
21 teacher, do you know that that's the case? 21 foundation. Callsfor aninadmissible opinion. Vague
22 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 22 and ambiguous asto "test scores."
23 asto "trained" and "content standards.” 23 MR. VIRJEE: Callsfor speculation.
24 MR. ROSENBAUM: That isn't my question. Go 24 THE WITNESS: | don't know the answer to that
25 ahead. 25 question.
Page 198 Page 200
1 THE WITNESS: | think it al hinges upon your 1 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: The mesting or meetings at
2 sense of what trained means, because | would answer that 2 which the four individuals spoke, Mr. Hill, was there
3 the State has provided instructiona guidance in the 3 discussion there about how to defend the high school
4 content standards to every teacher in the state of 4 exit exam against alegal challenge based on opportunity
5 Cdifornia 5 tolearn?
6 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Do you know if every teacher 6 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. That calls for
7 hasreceived that training? 7 information under the official information and
8 MR. VIRJEE: He's asking for your personal 8 attorney/client privilege and the deliberative process
9 knowledge about what every individual teacher in the 9 privilege. To the extent those privileges apply, |
10 dtate hasreceived. 10 object to the question.
11 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 11 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | would assert a
12 THE WITNESS: | don't know the answer to that 12 privilege on that.
13 question. 13 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: What privilege are you going
14 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Do you know if anyone in the 14 to assert?
15 Department or the State Board has surveyed to determine 15 MR. SEFERIAN: Weve just asserted the
16 whether or not teachers have actually been trained with 16 privilege of attorney/client privilege and deliberative
17 respect to these content areas? 17 process, officia information privilege.
18 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnot in 18 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: What was said at that
19 evidence. Compound question. Vague and ambiguous as to 19 meeting, Mr. Hill?
20 "trained." Overly broad. Lacks foundation. 20 MR. SEFERIAN: I'll object and instruct the
21 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, I'm hesitating in 21 witness not to answer. That calls for privileged
22 answering your question because there's two ways of 22 information.
23 looking at it, one is whether | have persona knowledge, 23 THE WITNESS: | won't answer that question.
24 which | do not, the other one is the extent to which you 24 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Did you ever attend a public
25 are asking a question about something that either isa 25 mesting a which Ms. Borgque, Ms. Phillips, Mr. Fisher or
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1 Mr. Haerte spoke, or any combination of them? 1 questionishave you read anything about them, and all
2 A Yes 2 hesaskingisareyou limiting it to a particular topic
3 Q. Whatdidthey say at that public meeting? 3 or anything they've ever written.
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Compound. 4 MR. ROSENBAUM: Anything they've ever written.
5 THE WITNESS: | do not recall the specifics of 5 MR. VIRJEE: Have you read anything they've
6 any presentations they may have made, but | would refer 6 everwritten?
7 you to State Board minutes at which public presentations 7 THE WITNESS: | know that | have read materias
8 may have been made. 8 from Ms. Phillips. | don't recall the specifics of that
9 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Canyou remember asingle 9 information. | know that she has published articles and
10 thing that Ms. Borque said? 10 I'veseenthosearticles.
11 MR. VIRJEE: At the public meeting? 11 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you remember anything
12 MR. ROSENBAUM: Y egh. 12 fromthose articles?
13 THE WITNESS: | cannot. 13 A. Irecdl that shein one article discussed her
14 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Or Ms. Phillips? 14 rolein defending the State of Texasin litigation over
15 A.  |would refer you to the minutes of those State 15 itshigh-stakes assessment. | don't recall the
16 Board meetings, because Ms. Phillips did spesk to some 16 specifics of it other than what she described as her
17 of theseissuesthat you're referring to. 17 role
18 Q. Myquestionis, what do you recal her saying? 18 Q. Do youremember anything of substance about
19 MR. VIRJEE: If you don' recall, you can just 19 what she said about how the defense was or what needed
20 tel himthat. 20 to be defended, how to prepare an exam to protect it
21 THE WITNESS: | don't recal the specifics of 21 from such challenges?
22 her presentation, except to the extent that she spoke 22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection to the extent this seeks
23 about litigation from FHoridaand Texas. 23 himtorecount what the article said. Thearticle
24 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you recdl anything 24  spesksfor itsdf.
25 gpecifically she said? 25 THE WITNESS: | don't think | could add
Page 202 Page 204
1 MR. VIRJEE: Other than what he just said? 1 anything to help you on that.
2 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes. 2 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: How about the others?
3 THE WITNESS: | believe | answered that. Her 3 A. |dontrecal ever reading materials from
4 presentations included some reference points to 4 them.
5 litigation in Texas and Florida, and | think that's all 5 Q. Okay. Inany of the public meetings was any
6 | canrecall with any specificity. 6 assessment presented as to the susceptibility of the
7 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Can't recdl any of the 7 Cdiforniahigh school exit exam to challenge?
8 substance? 8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered 9 to"susceptibility.”
10 twicenow. He'stold you that's what he recalls. 10 THEWITNESS: Yes.
11 THE WITNESS: No. 11 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: What was said?
12 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: How about Mr. Fisher,didhe | 12 A.  Ms. Phillips, among others -- Ms. Phillips
13 speak at these meetings? 13 presented to the State Board a concern that the
14 A.  1donotrecal Mr. Fisher or Mr. Haertel being 14 Cdiforniahigh school exit exam had not -- because it
15 present for those public conversations. 15 wasavoluntary examinitsfirst year, did not include
16 Q.  Any other public occasion that you recall any 16 auniversa fieldtest population. I'll leaveit at
17 or al of those four persons speaking? 17 that.
18 A.  |donotrecdl any other. 18 Q. What conclusionsdid she draw from that?
19 Q. Haveyou read anything written by any of these 19 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor
20 persons, Borque, Phillips, Fisher or Haertel? 20 speculdtion.
21 A. Thisisinreferenceto your specific question 21 MR. VIRJEE: It dso assumesfactsnotin
22 about opportunity to learn? 22 evidence. It assumesthat she drew conclusions fromiit.
23 Q. | justwant toknow what they said, if you 23 THE WITNESS: Her presentation suggested that
24 remember anything that they've said. 24 there could be -- that concerns could be raised about
25 MR. VIRJEE: That's adifferent question. Y our 25 theestablishment of acut score without a universal
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1 fieldtest population. 1 discussions of those State Board mesetings.
2 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do youknow what, if 2 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: I'm concerned now about --
3 anything, was done in response to the expression of 3 let me focus on the private meeting. To your knowledge,
4 those concerns? 4 werethere any actions taken in response to those
5 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad. Vague 5 private meetings?
6 and ambiguousasto "response.” Vagueastotime. 6 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections. Vague and
7 Lacksfoundation. 7 ambiguous asto "actionstaken.” Calls for speculation
8 THE WITNESS: If you could help mein terms of 8 astothe cause and effect, and also invades the
9 amore specific question. 9 attorney/client privilege and the official information
10 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Hearing those concerns 10 privilege to the extent the disclosure of any such
11 expressed, to your knowledge, did the State Board or the 11 actionswould indicate what was discussed at those
12 Department undertake any actions? 12 meetings.
13 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 13 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, we serve as public
14 evidence. Compound question. Vague and ambiguousasto | 14 agencies. Action is defined by actions adopted by the
15 "undertake any actions." 15 State Board of Education, and | would direct you to
16 MR. VIRJEE: Also calsfor speculation asto 16 their actions.
17 what actions may have been taken as aresult of hearing 17 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: That'syour full and
18 that. 18 complete answer?
19 THEWITNESS: Yes. 19 A, Yes
20 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: What was done? 20 Q.  Mr. Hill, let's-- we've had marked as SAD-228
21 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 21 adocument which you kindly provided me this morning.
22 THE WITNESS: The State Board of Education and 22 It'sathree-page document, and on the front page it
23 state superintendent pursued clarifications to the high 23 says Scott Hill. 1'm going to place that in front of
24 school exit exam legidationin SB 84 and thenin AB 24 you and supply counsdl with copies of it.
25 1609 to provide for -- to provide for astudy and 25 Tekealook at it, Mr. Hill, and seeif you can
Page 206 Page 208
1 evauation of the examination in 2002 regarding whether 1 identify it for me.
2 theentire -- whether the -- whether high stakes were 2 A.  Youasked meto provide you with aresume,
3 appropriate for the class of 2004 asis directed by the 3 whichisnow sitting in front of me.
4  current legidation. 4 Q. Is this resume current and complete as far as
5 Q BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Is HUmRRO undertaking a 5 you know, anything to be added to it?
6 study, that study? 6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
7 MR. VIRJEE: The study he just described? 7 to"current" and "complete." Callsfor speculation as
8 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yezah. 8 towhat may need to be added to it for any particular
9 THE WITNESS: No, thereis no contractor yet 9 circumstance.
10 contracted with. 10 THE WITNESS: Thisis arecently-completed
11 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. After thediscussion | 11 document.
12 inthe private session that privileges have been 12 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Do you know Gordon Redley
13 asserted about, did the Department, to your knowledge, 13 (ph)?
14  undertake any actions in response to any of the things 14 A. | know the name.
15 that were said in that meeting? 15 Q. Letmenow placein front of you, Mr. Hill, a
16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 16 document that's been marked SAD-229. It has a cover
17 to"undertake any actions." Also calls for speculation 17 sheet with the names of attorneys from O'Melveney and
18 astothe cause and effect, and also callsfor the 18 Meyers, and it says, declaration of Scott Hill in
19 invasion of the attorney/client privilege and the 19 support of Defendant State of California's motion for
20 officid information privilege to the extent it would 20 summary adjudication of no duty to police or monitor
21 disclose the contents of the communications during those 21 district fees. I'm not interested in the cover shest,
22 conversaions. 22 Mr. Hill, I'mjust interested in the declaration and the
23 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | would -- 23 attachments.
24 dthough | do not recall the specific dates of the State 24 Let me put that in front of you and ask you if
25 Board mestings, | would direct you to the public 25 you'd look at the second page which begins declaration
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1 and attachments. Also supply your counsel with copies, 1 fees"
2 andall counsel. 2 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation. Callsfor an
3 Mr. Hill, you can take as much time as you'd 3 inadmissible opinion. Callsfor speculation. Vague and
4 like, but let me just ask you at the outset, looking at 4 ambiguous asto "charging of fees."
5 the second and third pages of what's been marked as 5 THE WITNESS: | don't know how to answer your
6 Exhibit 229 -- the second page beginning declaration of 6 question asyou've asked it.
7 Scott Hill, | just want you to look right now at those 7 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Whyisthat?
8 two pages. 8 A. | don't understand. | don't know how to
9 Do you recognize that? 9 respond.
10 A. Ido 10 Q. Do you understand what the phrase "charging of
1 Q. Looking at the second page where ther€'s a 11 fees' means?
12 signatureline and it says Scott Hill, it's dated 12 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague asto context.
13 January 10th, and there's an indecipherable scribble. 13 Callsfor speculation.
14 |sthat your signature? 14 It's not up to Mr. Hill to define the terms
15 MR. VIRJEE: Isthat acritica comment? 15 that arein the questions.
16 MR. ROSENBAUM: No, it's a compliment. 16 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, in my tenurein
17 THE WITNESS: That is my signature. 17 thisposition | have not had the opportunity to deal
18 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Were you taught penmanship 18 with those responsibilities as you suggested, so it
19 inthe California public schools? 19 would be difficult for me to answer that the way you
20 A. | wasnot. 20 phrased the question.
21 Q.  Looking at these two pages, declaration of 21 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you know anyoneinthe
22 Scott Hill on Exhibit 229, Mr. Hill, did you prepare 22 Department who has responsibility with respect to loca
23 this document? 23 school districts and the charging of fees?
24 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
25 asto"prepare Callsfor information protected by the 25 to"responsbility” and "charging of fees."
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1 attorney/client privilege. Overly broad. 1 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Callsfor
2 THE WITNESS: | don't understand what you mean 2 gspeculation. Callsfor an inadmissible legal opinion.
3 by-- 3 THE WITNESS: Unless you had a specific
4 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Didyou writeit? Didyou 4 example, | don't think | could direct you to somebody.
5 author this document? 5 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Inyour experience as chief
6 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 6 deputy superintendent of public instruction, Mr. Hill,
7 asto"author" and "write." Callsfor information 7 haveyou ever heard of any instances of local school
8 protected by the attorney/client privilege. 8 digtricts charging fees to students?
9 THE WITNESS: | did not write this. 9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
10 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Whowroteit, sofarasyou | 10 to "charging fees."
11 know? 11 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad. Vagueasto
12 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor 12 context.
13 information protected by the attorney/client privilege. 13 THE WITNESS: | am not aware of any -- of a
14 Tothat extent I'll object. Vague and ambiguous asto 14 circumstance where there has been a particular finding
15 "wrote" 15 of fees being charged.
16 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry, | can't answer that 16 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. To your knowledge,
17 question. 17 has-- have you ever heard of any alegations of local
18 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Because? 18 districts charging feesto students?
19 A. |don'tknow the answer. 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
20 Q. Okay. Inyour capacity as chief deputy 20 to"charging fees."
21 superintendent of public instruction, do you have any 21 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
22 duties and responsibilities with respect to the charging 22 "dlegations."
23 of feesby local schools or school districts? 23 THE WITNESS: Theonly alegation that | can --
24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 24  theonly allegation of which I'm aware is the recent one
25 to"duties and responsibilities," and also "charging of 25 involving the Gateway charter schools.
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1 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Didyou-- have you ever 1 speculation.
2 read the complaint in this case, Mr. Hill? 2 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | would suggest --
3 (Mr. Affeldt left the room.) 3 | amnot an attorney, so | would not be qualified to
4 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry, you're speaking 4 answer that question.
5 gpecifically to the Williams case? 5 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Let mehaveyou turn,
6 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes, dir. 6 Mr. Hill, to what's been marked as Exhibit A to your
7 THE WITNESS: Very early on | was provided a 7 declaration in Exhibit 229. Do you see a document
8 copy and | read through it, but very early on. 8 that -- aseverd-page document, and the front pagein
9 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Do you recal if there were 9 the upper left-hand corner it says Delaine Eastin and
10 any allegations about local schools or local school 10 there€'sasedl of the state of Cdliforniaand then
11 districts charging fees? 11 there'san October 30, 1997 date? Do you seethat on
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. The complaint spesks 12 thefront page?
13 for itsdlf. Also vague and ambiguous as to "complaint.” 13 A. |do.
14 Theresafirst amended complaint in this case as well. 14 Q. Beforetoday had you ever seen this document?
15 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes, let's make it either the 15 A No.
16 first complaint or the amended complaint. 16 Q. Anddoyouhaveanyidea, Mr. Hill, whether or
17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. The documents speaks 17 not county superintendent -- county school
18 for themselves. Callsfor speculation. Lacks 18 superintendents who are presently in office have
19 foundation. 19 received this exhibit, Exhibit A to your declaration?
20 THE WITNESS: | do not recall. 20 Do you have any idea?
21 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Doyouknow if therésbeen | 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation.
22 any investigation by the Department of -- anybody in the 22 Lacksfoundation. Vague asto time, and also vague as
23 Department of Education as to whether or not fees are 23 to"received."
24 charged by any local school districts or local schools? 24 THE WITNESS: | don't know the answer to your
25 Put aside the Gateway charter school, with the exception 25 question, but | think you would have to go and inquire
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1 of that, do you know if there has been any investigation 1 asto those county superintendents who were serving at
2 orinquiry asto whether or not local school districts 2 thetimethat this was prepared.
3 orlocd schools charge fees to students by anyone at 3 (Mr. Affeldt entered the room.)
4 the Department of Education? 4 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: I'masking today, the county
5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 5 superintendents who are there today, January 18th, 2002,
6 to"inquiry" or "investigation," and also vague and 6 do you know whether any of those county superintendents
7 ambiguous asto charging fees. 7 havethis memorandum?
8 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence. 8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
9 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | do not have 9 Lacksfoundation.
10 persona knowledge of what you're asking, however, | do 10 THEWITNESS: | do not know.
11 not know whether such inquiries have been madein the 11 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Y oud haveto go and ask
12 Department of Education or not. It could very well be 12 them, right?
13 that it is matter of -- that as amatter of routine, 13 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Argumentative.
14 monitoring such inquiries do take place, but | would not 14 MR. ROSENBAUM: I'll withdraw that question.
15 know about thet. 15 Q. How about district school superintendents, do
16 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Do you persondly havean | 16 you know today, January 18th, whether or not any
17 understanding of whether or not local districts can 17 district school superintendents have received this
18 chargefeesto students or under what circumstances fees 18 memorandum, referring to Exhibit A to your declaration
19 can or cannot be charged? 19 in Exhibit 229?
20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 20 A. |donotknow.
21 to"chargefees." Andto the extent youre asking 21 Q. Doyou know if anybody in the Department of
22 whether or not they can legally do so cdlsfor alegd 22  Education knows the answer to that question?
23 opinion which thiswitnessis not competent to give. 23 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
24 Cdlsfor alega conclusion. 24 Cdlsfor speculation.
25 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Callsfor 25 THE WITNESS: | do not know.
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1 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. Do you know, 1 to"familiar," and in what context.
2 Mr. Hill, whether or not principas know the -- 2 THE WITNESS: | think | would have to ask you
3 principalsin public schools throughout the State of 3 for some context, Mr. Rosenbaum. | would ask for some
4  Cadlifornia know whether or not fees can be charged of 4 context.
5 students? 5 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: With respect to schools--
6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 6 dtrikethat. Il withdraw that question.
7 Lacksfoundation. Also vague and ambiguous as to 7 Have you ever heard of the uniform complaint
8 "whether or not fees can be charged of students." And 8 procedure?
9 totheextentit callsfor whether or not students may 9 A. |lhave
10 legally be charged any particular fees, calsfor a 10 Q. Do you have any duties and responsibilities
11 lega conclusion. 11 with respect to the uniform complaint procedure?
12 THE WITNESS: | do not know. 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
13 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Samethingif | said 13 to"duties and responsibilities.”
14 teachers? 14 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad.
15 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections. 15 MR. VIRJEE: And "uniform complaint procedure.”
16 THE WITNESS: And same response. 16 THE WITNESS: | do not have specific persona
17 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: And parents? 17 responsibilities. | overseethe division in which those
18 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections. 18 responsibilities are vested.
19 THE WITNESS: And same response. 19 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Which divisionisthat?
20 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: And students? 20 A. It'sthe school and district accountability
21 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections. 21 division.
22 THE WITNESS: And same response. 22 Q. TheGateway charter school, what do you know
23 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do youknow if therésbeen | 23 about feesin Gateway charter schools?
24 any effort to inform principals as to what the legal 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad.
25 requirements are with respect to notification -- with 25 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous asto
Page 218 Page 220
1 respect to the charging of fees to students? 1 “fees"
2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vagueastotime. 2 THEWITNESS: | am only aware of the allegation
3 Also vague and ambiguous as to "effort” and “inform." 3 that the Gateway charter school was charging tuition.
4 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence. 4 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: How did you learn about it?
5 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | am not aware of 5 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it calls
6 any such efforts. It does not mean that -- | don't 6 for disclosure of privileged communicetions.
7 know, again, in relationship to our routine monitoring 7 THE WITNESS: | read the dlegetionin a
8 and compliance efforts or audit efforts that may take 8 newspaper article.
9 placeat loca level whether such scrutiny is provided. 9 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Whereis Gateway charter
10 Q. ByMR.ROSENBAUM: Y oujust dont have any 10 school, do you know?
11 idea? 11 A.  The Gateway charter schoal is actually located
12 A. |ldont 12 inFresno County, with several satellites throughout the
13 Q. Themonitoring that you're talking about, do 13 dte.
14 you know if as part of that monitoring there's 14 Q. Gaeway isaprivate corporation, right?
15 investigation or inquiry as to whether or not fees are 15 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
16 charged? 16 MR. VIRJEE: Also cdlsfor alega conclusion.
17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered. 17 THE WITNESS: | don't know the answer to that
18 Callsfor speculation. Lacks foundation. He's already 18 quedtion.
19 told you he doesn't know that. 19 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Didyou doany -- do you
20 THE WITNESS: | do not know. 20 know when you read about this in the newspaper?
21 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Mr. Hill, I don't 21 A. Inthelast two weeks.
22 have any more questions about this exhibit. 22 Q. Okay. Didyouread one or more articles?
23 Mr. Hill, are you familiar with the uniform 23 A. | don'trecal how many articles.
24 complaint procedure? 24 Q. Didyou do any follow-up having read the
25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 25 article?
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1 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 1 THEWITNESS: | don't know.
2 asto"follow-up." Assumes facts not in evidence. 2 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Haveyou ever reed any
3 Lacks foundation. 3 complaints or summary reports of complaints about
4 THE WITNESS: The State Board of Education 4 numbers of emergency teachers?
5 established an agendaitem for its January meeting on 5 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it calls
6 the Gateway charter schools. The Fresno Board of 6 for disclosure of privileged communication. Vague and
7 Education representatives attended that State Board 7 ambiguous asto "emergency teachers.”
8 meeting, and two nights ago the Fresno Board of 8 THE WITNESS: | do not recall any such
9 Education rescinded the Gateway charter. 9 complants.
10 (Mr. Affeldt left the room.) 10 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Or availability of textbooks
1 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Have you ever -- have you 11 or other basic instructional materials?
12 read any complaints submitted pursuant to the uniform 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
13 complaint procedure or summaries of those complaints? 13 to"availability."
14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous, 14 THE WITNESS: | do not recall any such
15 and calls for speculation as to whether they were 15 complaints.
16 submitted pursuant to the uniform complaint -- can we 16 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Or gtate of fecilitieson a
17 cal it UCP -- pursuant to the UCP. 17 campus?
18 Just for the record, Mr. Rosenbaum nodded yes. 18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
19 MR. ROSENBAUM: Generously nodded yes. 19 to"sate of facilities."
20 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it calls 20 THE WITNESS: | do not recall any such
21 for the disclosure of privileged communication. 21 complaints.
22 THEWITNESS: Yes. 22 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Or overcrowding?
23 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. How many would you 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
24 say? How many UCPs, would you say? 24 to"overcrowding."
25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague asto time. 25 THE WITNESS: | do not recall any such
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1 THE WITNESS: Y ou were speaking specifically of 1 complaints.
2 complaints and not of reports; isthat correct? 2 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Or anything to do with the
3 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Tdl meyour understanding 3 qudity or competence of teachers?
4  of the difference. 4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
5 A.  Youasked the question whether | had either 5 to"qudity" and competency.
6 seen uniform complaints or whether | had seen reports. 6 THE WITNESS: | do not recal any such
7 Q. Right now I'd liketo put them together, either 7 complaints.
8 complaints or summaries or reports of the complaints. 8 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: I'mgladto do thisone by
9 MR. VIRJEE: So now what's your question, how 9 one. I'mgoingtotryto streamlineit, but | don't
10 many summaries or complaints has he read? 10 want to confuse you. If youwant meto do it one by
11 MR. ROSENBAUM: Y eah. 11 one I'mgladtodoit.
12 THE WITNESS: Less than a handful. 12 Wejust got through talking about availability
13 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Over what period of time? 13 of instructional materias, facilities, overcrowding,
14 A.  During my tenurein my position. 14 emergency teachers, quality or competence of teachers.
15 Q. Okay. Anddid any of the complaints youve 15 With respect to those subject matters, Mr. Hill, do you
16 received involve the imposition of fees to students? 16 haveaview or an opinion asto whether or not the UCP
17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 17 can be properly invoked with respect to any of those
18 to"fees" 18 subject areas?
19 THE WITNESS: | do not recall any such 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
20 complaints. 20 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an expert opinion. Tothe
21 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. Do you have an 21 extent you're asking for alegal standard asto whether
22 opinion asto whether or not the UCP could be invoked 22 they can beinvoked, calsfor alega opinion which
23 properly with respect to concerns about fees? 23 thiswitnessis not competent to give.
24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
25 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor alegal opinion. 25 ‘"properly invoked."
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1 THE WITNESS: | do not have sufficient 1 Oceanside Unified School District.
2 knowledge of what can or cannot be included in UCP to 2 Q BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Do you have a date or dates
3 answer your question. 3 for the Pittsburg one?
4 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. Thanks. Intheless 4 MR. VIRJEE: The date or dates he saw them, of
5 than ahandful of complaints that you've looked at or 5 the UCP, what?
6 summaries of those complaints, can you tell me what the 6 MR. ROSENBAUM: I'll be happy to repesat that.
7 subject matters were? 7 MR. VIRJEE: Just give him any date you can
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Compound. 8 make up.
9 THE WITNESS: The ones that come to mind 9 THE WITNESS: | believe both were active in the
10 immediately were focused on English learner issues. 10 year 2000.
11 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Andwhat were thoseissues 11 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Was somebody assigned
12 that yourecal? 12 responsibility to respond to those complaintsin the
13 A.  Accessto core curriculum, parental rights 13 Department so far as you know?
14 under 227. Those aretheissuesthat | recall 14 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnot in
15 immediately. 15 evidence. Vague and ambiguous as to "assigned” and
16 Q. Okay. Andwhenyou use the phrase "accessto 16 "respond."
17 core curriculum,” what do you mean by that? 17 THE WITNESS: We have a unit in the school
18 MR. VIRJEE: In the context of these UCP 18 district accountability division that is assigned the
19 complaints? 19 responsibility of responding to uniform complaints.
20 MR. ROSENBAUM: Let's start there, sure. 20 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Do you know how it came to
21 THE WITNESS: Asl| recdl, the adlegations were 21 your attention, these two complaints?
22 that English learners were not being provided an 22 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnot in
23 appropriate instructional program. 23 evidence. Misstate's the witness' testimony.
24 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Do you know who made 24 THEWITNESS: Yes. Inthe circumstances about
25 that complaint? 25 Pittsburg and Oceanside, they involved English learner
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1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 1 issueswhich tend to be difficult and divisive issues,
2 evidence. Assumestherewasjust one person or there 2 sothose reports were brought to my attention.
3 wasone complaint. 3 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. And do you know who
4 THE WITNESS: | do not know who made those 4 prepared the report on behalf of the Department?
5 complaints. 5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumes factsnotin
6 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Do you know if there 6 evidence.
7 was any resolution of those complaints? 7 THE WITNESS: | do not recall.
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 8 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you know what the
9 to"resolution.” 9 conclusions of the report were for either Pittsburg or
10 THE WITNESS: The genera processisthat after 10 Oceanside?
11 acomplaint isreceived and an inquiry is made, areport 1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumes factsnot in
12 isproduced and sent to both the complainants and to the 12 evidence.
13 district involved. 13 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent that it
14 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. Did you have any 14 callsfor disclosure of privileged communications.
15 involvement in -- do you review the report that is 15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection that you're asking what
16 prepared? 16 thereport says. The report speaks for itself.
17 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 17 THE WITNESS: Both reports were complex in
18 evidence. Lacks foundation. 18 their findings, and | would refer you to them. | don't
19 THE WITNESS: | think | need more specificity. 19 recall the specifics of them.
20 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. What schoal district 20 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: How can| get copies of
21 didthis complaint or these complaints involve? 21 those reports?
22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation.
23 evidence. 23 THE WITNESS: | believe if you were to call the
24 THE WITNESS: The onesthat | recal most 24 director of the division, you would be provided copies
25 directly were from Pittsburg Unified School District and 25 of those.
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1 MR. SEFERIAN: We're not agreeing to produce 1 overbroad.
2 those documents. 2 MR. SEFERIAN: Cadlsfor an --
3 MR. VIRJEE: Or that you can call the director 3 MR. ROSENBAUM: | appreciate that part. I'm
4 of thedivision. 4 referring to EL students.
5 MR. ROSENBAUM: I'm requesting those documents. 5 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections. And aso calls
6 MR. VIRJEE: If you want to request the 6 for alegal conclusion.
7 documents, submit a document request and well handle 7 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor an inadmissible
8 it 8 opinion. Lacks foundation.
9 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Do you know if the 9 THE WITNESS: | am not aware of any specific
10 reports sustained any part of the complaint that 10 studentsin the State of Californiawho are not being
11 studentswere not being given access to core curriculum? 11 provided that instruction. The Department of Education
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 12 asamatter of its ongoing compliance and monitoring
13 to"sustained" and "access to core curriculum." And the 13 activities at any one point in time through both its CCR
14 extent you're asking what the reports say, the documents 14 and Comite reviews may be investigating or evaluating
15 gpesk for themselves. 15 districts, so there may be findings that come and go
16 MR. SEFERIAN: Cdlsfor speculation. 16 withregardtothat. I'm not aware right here right now
17 THE WITNESS: Asl| said before, the findingsin 17 of any such findings.
18 thereport and the issues were complex, and | would 18 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Do you know if there are any
19 refer you to the report itsalf. 19 ongoing investigations with respect to whether or not
20 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Whenyou usedthephrase, | 20 thereareany districts or students, EL students who are
21 Mr. Hill, "appropriate instructiona program,” what did 21 not receiving appropriate instructional program?
22 you mean by that? 22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
23 MR. VIRJEE: Inwhat context? 23 to "ongoing investigations' and "appropriate
24 MR. ROSENBAUM: Three answers ago. 24 instructional program.”
25 MR. VIRJEE: | think he used the words core 25 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.
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1 curriculum. | don't remember him using those words. 1 Vagueasto who is conducting the investigation.
2 THE WITNESS: The state and federal law, which 2 THE WITNESS: | don't understand what you mean
3 iscomplex in the area of support for English learners, 3 by "investigation."
4 requiresthat English learners be provided appropriate 4 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: That wastheword you used.
5 instruction that is consistent with a variety of goals. 5 Isthe Department, so far as you know et thistime,
6 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: To your knowledge, are there 6 investigating, looking into the question of whether or
7 EL studentsin the public school systems in California 7 not there are districts where EL students are not
8 who do not receive appropriate instructional programs as 8 receiving an appropriate instructional program as you've
9 youjust defined that? 9 defined that?
10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 10 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
11 to "appropriate instructional programs." Calls for 11 evidence. Vague and ambiguous as to "investigating.”
12 speculation. Lacks foundation. Calls for an expert 12 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous as to
13 opinion. And to the extent you're asking for alegal 13 "appropriate instructional program.”
14 conclusion, cdlsfor alegal conclusion which this 14 THE WITNESS: The Department is carrying out
15 witnessis not competent to give. 15 itsrequired compliance and monitoring activities under
16 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, at any one point 16 CCR and Comite, which do include that evaluation. That
17 intimel could not answer your question. | don't know 17 isanongoing activity of the Department right now.
18 how to answer the question for any specific point in 18 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: My questionisalittle bit
19 time. 19 different. Areyou aware of any districts specifically
20 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Right now, for example, are 20 being investigated on the question of whether or not EL
21 there students out there, as far as you know, who are 21 students are receiving an appropriate instructional
22 not receiving appropriate instructional program? 22 program?
23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation. 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
24 And vague and ambiguous as to "appropriate instructional 24 to"investigate" and "appropriate instructional
25 program." Also didn't limit it to EL students, soit's 25 program.”
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1 MR. ROSENBAUM: Investigate or monitor. 1 below gradeleve," unless you're asking about -- him to
2 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumesfactsnot in evidence. 2 usethe definition he just gave you.
3 Vague and ambiguous asto "investigate” and "monitor." 3 MR. ROSENBAUM: Y eah, using your definition.
4 THE WITNESS: Thereare-- I'll giveyou just 4 THE WITNESS: | don't have a persona knowledge
5 theoneresponse| know. Every year approximately 250 5 of that question, although the API data that is
6 didricts are evauated under the CCR and every year 6 currently available which identifies achievement of
7 agpproximately 10 digtricts are selected for a Comite 7 students on both our California standards and on the
8 follow-up, and those districts would receive that kind 8 Stanford-9 may be helpful for evaluating student
9 of evauaion. 9 achievement for those purposes.
10 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Inyour tenuresince1999, | 10 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. Y ou used the phrase
11 Mr. Hill, are you aware of any districts where EL 11 "may be hdpful." Do you know whether or not they would
12 students have not received appropriate instructiona 12 tdl uswhether or not, using your definition, there are
13 program -- an gppropriate instructiona program? 13 50 percent or more students at a particular school who
14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 14 arereading below grade level?
15 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous asto 15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
16 “appropriate instructional program.” 16 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an expert opinion which
17 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible 17 thiswitnessis not competent to give.
18 opinion. 18 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous as to "would
19 MR. VIRJEE: To the extent you're asking for a 19 telus"
20 legd standard, callsfor alegal conclusion. 20 THE WITNESS: | don't know the answer to this
21 THEWITNESS: | do not have -- | don't know the 21 Dbecause| do not believethe API -- the Cdlifornia
22 answer to the question. 22 standardstest isreported in terms of performance
23 MR. ROSENBAUM: Let's go off the record for a 23 levels, and the performance levels do provide some
24 minute. 24 indication, but | don't know the extent to which
25 (Lunch recesstaken.) 25 inferences are drawn in terms of below grade level.
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1 (Sandy Alexander no longer present.) 1 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Andwhenyou say
2 (Mr. Affeldt and Mr. Seferian not present.) 2 ‘"peformancelevels,”" | want to seeif | understand, do
3 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Youdoingokay, Mr. Hill? | 3 youmean performance levels of the school?
4 A.  Yeslam. 4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
5 Q. Mr. Hill, have you ever heard the expression 5 Are you asking when he was talking about the
6 ‘"reading at gradelevel," students reading at grade 6 AP test?
7 leve? 7 MR. ROSENBAUM: Just in response to your last
8 A. [Ilhave 8 answer.
9 Q. Doyouhave--what'syour understanding of 9 MR. VIRJEE: What did you mean when you were
10 what that phrase means? 10 taking about performance levelsin conjunction with
11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 11 what the API shows?
12 and we don't know the context. 12 THE WITNESS: Individua student performance on
13 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | understand the 13 the Cdiforniastandards test is reported in terms of
14 phrase. For me, persona opinion, it hasto be 14 performance levels.
15 connected to a context, and the context that | 15 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. If | asked youthis
16 understand it to haveisreading at gradeleve is 16 question just afew moments ago, | apologize. I'mjust
17 defined by what our academic standards call for each 17 trying to get an understanding of it.
18 student to be ableto read at grade level. 18 If an individua wanted to go about finding out
19 (Mr. Seferian entered the room.) 19 the percentage of students at a particular school who
20 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Arethereschools,toyour | 20 arereading below gradelevel, what would you tell that
21 knowledge, in the public school system, Mr. Hill, where 21 individual? Cananindividua find out that
22 50 percent or more of the students are reading below 22 information?
23 gradeleve? 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 24 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an expert opinion. Vague
25 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous asto "reading 25 and ambiguous asto "below grade level."
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1 MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete, improper 1 yesterday among the different positions that you've held
2 hypothetical question. 2 you were executive director of the California academic
3 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | think -- well, 3 sandards?
4  the state -- the way the State has established its 4 A. That's correct.
5 reporting systemiis for -- for achievement on standards 5 Q. And that was between 1997 and 19987
6 isnot consistent with the way you asked the question. 6 A. That's correct.
7 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Areyouawareofany | 7 Q.  Okay. Who appointed -- were you appointed that
8 other way that an individual could find out at a 8 position?
9 particular school the number or the percent of students 9 A. | was.
10 who were reading below grade level? 10 Q. Bywhom?
11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 11 A. By the commission.
12 to"below grade level.” Calls for speculation. Calls 12 Q.  Ator about thetime did you make the statement
13 for an expert opinion. 13 with respect to California public school students, I'm
14 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation. 14 quoting here, the students making the transition to the
15 THEWITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, there are a number 15 work force were not well-prepared, they didn't have the
16 of requirements for students in terms of reporting their 16 basic skills and the strong ethics and understanding
17 achievement. There are some that come from the federal 17 needed to develop those skills?
18 government, there are some that we obvioudly derive at 18 Did you say that in sum or substance?
19 thestatelevel. | do not have persona knowledge of 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
20 Al of those requirements. | would refer you to Phil 20 Lacks foundation as to when or where he may have said
21 Spears as the appropriate person to provide that 21 such athing, in awritten statement, orally.
22 explanation. 22 | think it's ridiculous to ask the witness to
23 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: But | takeit what youre 23 recdl whether they said something verbatim in a quote
24 telling meisthat you personaly are not aware of away 24 that many years ago, unless you want to show hima
25 to detect whether or not 50 percent or more of students 25 document thet indicates that he can tell you whether he
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1 aaparticular school would be reading below grade 1 bdievesthat'scorrect or not.
2 levd? 2 THE WITNESS: | do not have such arecollection
3 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 3 of making such a statement.
4 Cdlsfor aninadmissible opinion. Callsfor 4 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you have any persond
5 gpeculation. Vague and ambiguous asto "reading below 5 knowledge, Mr. Hill, asto how different districts desl
6 gradelevd." 6 with student loss of textbooks?
7 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous asto "a 7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
8 way to detect.” 8 to"student loss of textbooks' and "districts dedl
9 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, the State has 9 with."
10 edtablished an objectivein our performance levels where 10 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague asto time and context.
11 thefourth of the five levelsis the stated objective 11 THE WITNESS: | don't have such information.
12 for students, that is, they are to reach the level that 12 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Do you know if anybody in
13 weidentify as proficient in meeting al of our 13 the Department does?
14 dandards. You can-- it is possible to determine the 14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
15 number of students at a school who have reached or not 15 to "student loss of textbooks" and "deal with." And
16 reached thet level. 16 calsfor speculation and lacks foundation.
17 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Do you know if that sort of | 17 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.
18 information has actually been compiled with respect to 18 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, as| stated this
19 individua schools, do you personally know? 19 morning, there are some state mechanisms for assurances
20 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 20 that districts are purchasing standards-aligned
21 asto"compiled." Lacksfoundation. 21 materias, and that is the direction that the state has
22 THE WITNESS: | would refer you to Mr. Spears 22 gonein.
23 interms of what the school reports contain for each 23 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. But my question
24 school. 24  specificaly was, are you aware if there's anyonein the
25 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Mr. Hill, youtold us 25 Department who is aware how districts dedl with the
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1 matter of students losing textbooks? 1 MR. SEFERIAN: Asked and answered. Assumes
2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 2 factsnotin evidence. Assumes the Department has the
3 to"deal with" and "students losing textbooks." Calls 3 authority.
4 for speculation. Lacks foundation. 4 THE WITNESS: | don't know how to respond in
5 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence. 5 that -- if you mean are there officidlsin the
6 THE WITNESS: | don't have such information. 6 Department of Education who routingly advocate for such
7 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Thanks. Areyou 7 apodition, the answer might beyes. If you are
8 familiar with the phrase "emergency-credentialed 8 relating it to something beyond a policy perspective, |
9 teachers'? 9 don't believe thereis the authority for the Department
10 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 10 to pursuesuch goals.
11 asto "emergency-credentialed teachers." Vague asto 11 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Arethere persons, to your
12 context. 12 knowledge, within the Department who routinely advocate
13 THE WITNESS: I'm aware of that phrase. 13 for the reduction of the number of
14 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: What's your understanding of 14  emergency-credentialed teachersin schools?
15 what that means? 15 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 16 asto"routinely”" and "advocate." Lacks foundation.
17 toinwhat context. 17 Vague and ambiguous as to "emergency-credentialed
18 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | am hesitant to 18 teachers."
19 offer adefinition because there may actually be alegal 19 THEWITNESS. Yes.
20 definition that I'm not aware of. 20 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Areyou one of them?
21 MR. ROSENBAUM: I'mjust interested in your 21 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
22 understanding, Mr. Hill. 22 THE WITNESS: | cannot personally recollect
23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation 23 making such a statement publically.
24 astoinwhat context. Also vague asto time. 24 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Privatdly, can you recollect
25 THE WITNESS: My understanding is that teachers 25 doing that?
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1 who have yet to receive aformal certification through a 1 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection to the extent it calls
2 credentialing process may be instead 2 for privileged communication. Relevance.
3 emergency-credentialed teachers. 3 THE WITNESS: No.
4 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: And usingyour definition 4 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Tdl methe officialswho
5 for al my questions, Mr. Hill, do you have -- are you 5 youre aware of who, to use your phrase, routingly
6 awareof any -- strike that. 6 advocate for the reduction of the number of
7 Areyou aware as to whether or not the 7 emergency-credentialed teachers?
8 Cdifornia Department of Education is undertaking any 8 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
9 effortsto reduce the number of emergency-credentialed 9 asto"routinely" and "advocate" and
10 teachersin schools? 10 "emergency-credentialed teachers.” Overly broad.
11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 11 THE WITNESS: In her position as a policymaker,
12 to"any efforts,”" "emergency-credentiaed teachers.” 12 | believe Superintendent Eastin has advocated such
13 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence. 13 podlicies.
14 Lacksfoundation. Overly broad. 14 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Any other officials that you
15 (Mr. Affeldt entered the room.) 15 canthink of?
16 THE WITNESS: | am not aware of any legd 16 A. I'mnot aware of any other officials.
17 authority for the Cdlifornia Department of Education to 17 Q. Haveyou ever heard the superintendent give
18 doso. 18 reasons as to why she advocates that position?
19 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: | appreciatethat. My 19 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it cdls
20 questionisalittle bit different. Areyou aware of 20 for disclosure of privileged communications.
21 any efforts by the Department to reduce the number of 21 THE WITNESS: | cannot recollect any such
22 emergency-credentialed teachersin the schools? 22 judtification.
23 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections. Vague and 23 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Haveyou -- to your
24 ambiguous as to "reduce the number" and 24 knowledge, has there been any analyses of rankings on
25 "emergency-credentialed teachers.” Vagueastotime. 25 the AP performance index by schools and numbers or
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1 percentages of emergency-credentialed teachersin 1 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objection. Assumes facts
2 schools? 2 notinevidence.
3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 3 THE WITNESS: Only Mr. Spearsor Mr. Padia
4 to"andyses" Alsovagueastotime. 4 would know if there is such a study.
5 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumesfacts not in evidence. 5 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Y ou don'tknow, youre
6 Vague and ambiguous asto "rankings." Vague and 6 telling me go talk to them?
7 ambiguous asto "emergency-credentialed teachers.” 7 A. Correct. Correct.
8 THE WITNESS: | am not aware of any specific 8 Q. Okay. The STAR program, Mr. Hill, asit's been
9 anayses. 9 administered this past year, it had Stanford-9 questions
10 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Probably just 10 andit had Cdifornia state standards questions; is that
11 answered thisquestion. | heard you use the word 11 right?
12 "specific." Areyou aware of any general analyses on 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered
13 thissubject? 13 twice.
14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 14 THE WITNESS: That's correct.
15 totheterm"genera analyses." 15 MR. ROSENBAUM: I'mjust doing a predicate.
16 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 16 Q. Youtold mealsothat the state standards
17 THE WITNESS: It seems to me that there may 17 questions, if | understood you correctly, were in the
18 have been studies or analyses done outside of the 18 areaof English language arts; is that right?
19 Department of Education. | simply do not recollect 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Histestimony speaks
20 anything specific about any of those, whether, in fact, 20 for itsdlf.
21 theyexist. Asatopic, | recollect the topic, buit | 21 MR. ROSENBAUM: | don't remember.
22 dont recollect anything beyond that. 22 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | was referring to
23 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Haveyouever heard | 23 onlylanguage arts asit was -- asthat test isincluded
24 anyonein the Department advocate that the Department 24 inthe API.
25 ought to investigate whether or not thereis any 25 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. | just wantto
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1 correlation or relationship between the percentage or 1 understand how thisworks. The student takes the exam,
2 number of emergency-credentialed teachers in schools and 2 there are Stanford-9 questions and there are also some
3 performance of schools on the API? 3 Cdiforniastate standard language arts questions on
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 4 that same exam; am | right?
5 to"investigate," "correlate” and "relationship.” 5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague astotime.
6 MR. SEFERIAN: And "advocate." Assumes facts 6 MR. ROSENBAUM: This past year.
7 notinevidence. Vague astotime. 7 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, is your question
8 THE WITNESS: | don't recollect such advocacy. 8 gpecifically about the format of the administration of
9 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. Thanks. To your 9 theexam?
10 knowledge, are you aware, Mr. Hill, of -- asto -- 10 MR. ROSENBAUM: Let's sart there, yeah.
11 strike that. 11 THE WITNESS: | cannot recallect the specific
12 Do you have an opinion as to whether or not 12 format of the exam, and language artsis different than
13 there exists any relationship between students' scores 13 other subject areas. Well, excuse me, let me correct
14 onthe-- inthe STAR program and scores on the high 14 that. Inthe future language artswill be different
15 school exit exam? 15 than other subject aress.
16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calls for an expert 16 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Whyisthat?
17 opinion which this witness is not competent to give. 17 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor
18 Callsfor speculation. Lacks foundation. Incomplete 18 speculdion.
19 hypothetical. Also vague and ambiguous as to 19 THE WITNESS: SB 233 reguires the State to
20 ‘“relationship.” 20 continue with an augmented format for the English
21 THE WITNESS: | don't know the answer to that 21 language arts examinations and for the other content
22 question. 22 areasto be administered as stand-alone tests.
23 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Do you know if anyonein the 23 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Here'smy question:
24 Department has looked into that question, whether or not 24 Did students take the California standards exam in the
25 there's any such relationship? 25 areaof math this past year?
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1 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad. 1 planned. | do not know whether that isonethat is
2 THE WITNESS: Yes. 2 contemplated. | would refer you to along-term testing
3 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: But not history and not 3 plan adopted by the State Board in July of 2001, and the
4 science? 4 Board is contemplating revisionsto that plan in the
5 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 5 coming months.
6 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous as to 6 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you know what a matrix
7 standard-aligned tests. 7 examis?
8 THE WITNESS: Youll have to forgive my memory, 8 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
9 Mr. Rosenbaum, I'm not certain about the history and 9 Vagueasto context.
10 science examinations. 1'm not certain. 10 THE WITNESS: | am aware of a matrix exam.
11 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: To your knowledge, Mr. Hill, 11 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Andwhat's your
12 hasthere been any inquiry or investigation to see 12 understanding what the matrix exam is?
13 whether or not there's arelationship between how a 13 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague as to context.
14 student does on the California standards part of English 14 Vague and ambiguous.
15 language arts and how he or she does on the Stanford-9 15 THE WITNESS: Matrix sampling design isatest
16 part with respect to English language arts? 16 format by which students take subsets of an examina
17 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assume factsnot in 17 content area, and by having students take subsets of a
18 evidence. 18 content area, abroad range of questions and coverage of
19 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you understand my 19 that content area can be achieved.
20 question? 20 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Now we talked many times
21 A. | understand your question. 21 about the PSAA. Do you have an understanding as to what
22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 22 the purpose of the PSAA is?
23 toandysis. 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
24 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnot in 24 to"purpose.
25 evidence. Vague and ambiguous asto "inquiry" and 25 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor speculation. Calls
Page 250 Page 252
1 ‘investigation." 1 for alegal conclusion to the extent you're asking the
2 THE WITNESS: | am not aware of any present 2 witnessfor alegidative intent. Lacks foundation.
3 anaysis of what you identified. 3 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | think the Public
4 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Same question about math, 4 School Accountability Act and its intent speaks for
5 how the students did on the math part of the Cdifornia 5 itsdf. | think the statuteis clear interms of its
6 standards and how the students did on the Stanford-9 6 intent.
7 math part, was there any analysis seeing if any 7 MR. ROSENBAUM: I'mjust interested in your
8 rdationship exists? 8 understanding of that intent.
9 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections. 9 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. Callsfor an
10 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 10 inadmissiblelega opinion.
11 evidence. Vague and ambiguous as to "math part." 11 MR. VIRJEE: Y oure asking him to identify what
12 THE WITNESS: | don't have such information. | 12 thedtaute says. The statute speaks for itself.
13 don't know. 13 THE WITNESS: | don't know what | could do to
14 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. If youansweredthis | 14 addtowhat the statute directsthe State to do in the
15 Dbefore, bear with me. Arethere plansin the future to 15 development of an accountability system.
16 tryto seeif such relationships exist? 16 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Let metryit one
17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 17 moretime. Do you personaly have an understanding of
18 Lacks foundation. 18 what the purpose of the statute is?
19 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it calls 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.
20 for disclosure of privileged communications. 20 Hesaready said the statute speaks for itsdlf.
21 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous as to 21 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible legd
22 "relationships." 22 opinion.
23 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumesfacts not in evidence. 23 THEWITNESS: | havea-- | haveasenseasto
24 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, there are anumber 24 the obligations that the Public School Accountability
25 of evaluations of the assessment system that are 25 Act places on the Department of Education, if that
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1 answersyour question. 1 support amatrix exam.
2 Q BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Wédll, isthat asfull an 2 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Did you have a persona
3 answer asyou can give me to the question? 3 opinion on that subject?
4 A. Yes. 4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
5 Q. Doyouhavean opinion-- and if you don't feel 5 totimeand "that subject.”
6 competent to give me an opinion just tell methat. Do 6 MR. SEFERIAN: Calls for an inadmissible
7 you have an opinion as to whether the purpose of the 7 opinion. Lacks foundation.
8 PSAA would be better served by the use of amatrix exam | 8 THE WITNESS: | did.
9 thanthe STAR program? 9 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: What was that?
10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calls for speculation. 10 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor speculation. Lacks
11 Lacksfoundation. Incomplete hypothetical. Vague and 11 foundation. Callsfor aninadmissible opinion.
12 ambiguous asto a"matrix exam," and calls for expert 12 THE WITNESS: | supported the legal
13 testimony which this witness is not competent to give. 13 reguirement. | supported what the statute asked the
14 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence. 14 Department to develop, which at the time was a matrix
15 Vague and ambiguous as to "better served.” 15 exam.
16 THE WITNESS: Given the experiences that we 16 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: And what was the reason that
17 have and the progress we've made in our accountability 17 you supported that?
18 system, | do not have an opinion. 18 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
19 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: If | changeitto STAR 19 THE WITNESS: | believed that broad content
20 program plus augmentation by standards, would your 20 coverage of the standards in each content area could be
21 answer be the same? 21 achieved by amatrix exam.
22 MR. VIRJEE: Assumes facts not in evidence. 2 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. Do you know anyone
23 Assumesthose are different things. And same objections | 23 elsein the Department who shared that belief?
24 astotheoriginal question. 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
25 THE WITNESS: | would have the same response. 25 asto"that belief." Callsfor speculation. Vague as
Page 254 Page 256
1 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Thanks. Toyour 1 totime
2 knowledge, has the matrix exam ever been administered as 2 THE WITNESS: There were anumber of Department
3 part of the API program? 3 staff who supported that, but | could not tell you
4 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 4 whether it was from the belief system perspective or
5 asto"matrix exam." Lacks foundation. 5 whether it was from trying to carry out what the law
6 THE WITNESS: No. 6 required themto carry out.
7 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you know why not? 7 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do youknow what the
8 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Cdlsfor 8 superintendent's views were?
9 speculation. Vague and ambiguous. 9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
10 THE WITNESS: Aspart of AB 265 ameatrix exam 10 to"views."
11 was contemplated. During the course of development and 11 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor speculation.
12 policy decisions a determination was made by the State 12 MR. VIRJEE: Alsovagueastotime.
13 Board and then ultimately by the legidature to not 13 THE WITNESS: | am aware that the
14 develop amatrix exam. 14 superintendent was interested in carrying out her legal
15 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Do you know -- have any 15 responsibilities, which were, at the time, to develop a
16 understanding asto the rationale as to why that was? 16 matrix exam.
17 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad. Cdls 17 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Didyou ever hear her
18 for speculation asto theintent of the legidature. 18 expressaviewpoint that shefdlt that that was beyond
19 Cadlsfor aninadmissiblelega opinion. 19 justthelega requirement, that she persondly
20 MR. VIRJEE: Also compound to the extent you're 20 supported the use of a matrix test?
21 asking for the rationale of the State Board and the 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
22 legidature. 22 to "persondly supported the use of amatrix test,"
23 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | would refer you 23  especialy when compared to what.
24 to some very extensive discussions that the State Board 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it cdls
25 had publicaly about its ultimate decision to not 25 for disclosure of confidential communications,
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1 privileged communications. 1 or not that reward system for certificated teachers has
2 THE WITNESS: Superintendent Eastin was 2 had any impact on improving student academic
3 publicaly supportive of the development of a matrix 3 performance?
4 exam. | cannot recollect and divide in my mind the 4 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
5 extent to which that support was based upon persona 5 evidence. Vague and ambiguous asto "reward system" and
6 bdief or was based upon carrying out her obligations to 6 "impact" and student performance.
7 thelaw. ‘ 7 THE WITNESS: By definition the answer is yes.
8 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Mr. Hill, youare 8 Toqudlify for an award, your students must have
9 familiar, | takeit, with the rewardsthat are 9 improvedin their performance.
10 administered as part of the API? 10 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. Beyond thet, by
11 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 11 definition, has there been any other specific
12 asto'reward.” 12 investigation that you're aware of to see what the --
13 THE WITNESS: | am awarethat therearea 13 whether or not the rewards system as arewards system
14 number of awards programs associated with the Public 14 played any part in improving student academic
15 School Accountability Act. 15 performance?
16 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: And one of the reward 16 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
17 programsinvolves the awarding of money to students; is 17 evidence. Vague and ambiguous.
18 that right? 18 MR. VIRJEE: Cadlsfor speculation. Callsfor
19 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 19 anexpert opinion.
20 asto"rewards." 20 MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete hypothetical.
21 MR. VIRJEE: Awarding of money to students, is 21 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any such
22 that what you said? Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 22 evauation.
23 to awarding money to students. 23 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: And hasthere been any
24 MR. SEFERIAN: Statute speaks for itself. 24 follow-up by the Department of which you're aware asto
25 Cdlsfor aninadmissible legal opinion. 25 what happened in classrooms taught by teachers who had
Page 258 Page 260
1 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | am not aware 1 received those awards after they got theaward in
2 that the Public School Accountability Act has a specific 2 subsequent years?
3 awards program for students. 3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
4 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. How about for 4 to"what happened."
5 teachers? 5 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad. Assumes facts not
6 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. The statute speaks 6 inevidence. Vague and ambiguous asto "follow-up."
7 foritself. 7 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you understand whet |
8 THE WITNESS: The statute contains provisions 8 mean, Mr. Hill?
9 called the certificated performance staff awards for 9 A. | do.
10 teachers. 10 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
11 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: To your knowledge, has there 11 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any such
12 been any investigation or inquiry by the Department to 12 evauation.
13 determine whether or not that reward system for 13 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Haveyou ever heard a
14 certificated teachers has had any impact on improving 14 concern expressed that rather than the State spending
15 student academic performance? 15 money to reward teachers, that that money could be
16 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnotin 16 better spent in other ways to effect student academic
17 evidence. Vague and ambiguous as to "reward system" and 17 performance?
18 "impact." Lacks foundation. Vague and ambiguous asto 18 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Incomplete and
19 "inquiry" and "investigation." Calls for speculation. 19 improper hypothetical. Overly broad. Callsfor an
20 Callsfor aninadmissible opinion. 20 inadmissible opinion. Lacks foundation. Callsfor
21 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, can you repeat the 21 speculation.
22 very last part of your question? 22 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, I'm not sure |
23 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Yeah. | wastaking about 23 know how to respond to your question.
24 student academic performance. What | wanted to know, 24 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Let metryit onemoretime.
25 hasthe Department looked into the question of whether 25 Haveyou ever heard any concerns or criticisms where the
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1 Stateisgiving rewards, money to teachers as part of 1 or education?
2 the API program, but in terms of state money and the 2 MR. ROSENBAUM: Accountability systemsin
3 goal of improving student academic performance, that 3 education.
4 money could be better spent in other ways than giving 4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered
5 teacher rewards? 5 yesterday. Also vague and ambiguous asto "expert."
6 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Incomplete and 6 And to the extent you're asking for himto indicate
7 improper hypothetical. Lacks foundation. Callsfor an 7 whether he believes he would be legally qualified as an
8 inadmissible opinion. Vague and ambiguous. Overly 8 expert calsfor alegal opinion.
9 broad. 9 MR. ROSENBAUM: I'll withdraw that question in
10 THE WITNESS: | am aware generally that the 10 respect to your objection, Mr. Virjee.
11 teacher bonus money has been met with mixed reviews, 11 Q. Aretherepersonswhom you consider to be
12 like so many aspects of an accountability system that is 12 expertsin the area of accountability systems for
13 seeking to change the way we do business. 13 education?
14 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. Interms of the mixed 14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
15 reviews, what criticisms have you heard of that teacher 15 to"accountability systems' and "experts." Callsfor
16 bonus system? 16 speculation. Lacksfoundation. And callsfor alegd
17 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes facts not in 17 conclusion to the extent you're asking whether those
18 evidence. Vague and ambiguous as "criticisms.” 18 individuals would be qualified legally as an expert.
19 THE WITNESS: I'm not sure | can identify a 19 MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete and improper
20 specific one, other than the general -- my sense that 20 hypothetica question.
21 among issues raised about the accountability system has 21 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, your question
22 been aconcern about the teacher reward money. 22 coversabroad range of potential issues. | don't know
23 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Do you know who has raised 23 how to answer it at ageneral level. | could not
24  those concerns? 24 identify an expert or expertsin terms of accountability
25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calls for speculation. 25 for educetion.
Page 262 Page 264
1 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous asto "concerns.” 1 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. If | said
2 THE WITNESS: | don't have -- | can't point you 2 accountability in education with respect to testing
3 toany specific person who has raised those concerns. | 3 systems, would you give me the same answer?
4 can't point you to any specific person. 4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
5 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Or organization? 5 to "accountability,” "with respect to testing systems,”
6 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections. 6 and dl the same objections | made to the last question.
7 THE WITNESS: It isagenerd recollection that 7 THE WITNESS: | would not be qualified to offer
8 teacher organizations have not been highly enthusiastic 8 that response. Mr. Spears perhaps would be.
9 about the awards system. 9 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Thanks. You have
10 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: When you say "teacher 10 takedto uson afew occasions-- strike that.
11 organizations," what do you mean? 11 Areyou aware, Mr. Hill, asto whether or not
12 A. |dontthink I can get more specific than that 12 thereisanon-PSAA scholarship program that gives money
13 because | don't know -- | don't have arecollection 13 to students based on STAR scores?
14 specific enough to any organization to say beyond that. 14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
15 Q. Doyouknow if the Department hasissued a 15 to"non-PSAA scholarship program® and "STAR scores.”
16 responseto those concerns? 16 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation. Callsfor
17 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 17 speculation.
18 evidence. Vague and ambiguous as to "response”’ and 18 THEWITNESS: Yes.
19 “issued" and "concerns.” 19 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: What's your awareness of
20 THE WITNESS: | do not know of any such 20 that system?
21 response. 21 A. Thereisaprogram administered by the
22 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Doyou consider yourself an | 22 scholarshare board under the treasurer's office.
23  expert in the area of accountability systemsin the area 23 Q. Okay. And, toyour knowledge, has there been
24 of education? 24 any inquiry or investigation to determine whether or not
25 MR. VIRJEE: Which one, accountability system 25 that awarding of scholarships has had any impact on
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1 improving student academic performance? 1 whether any teachers at that school have credentials.
2 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 2 That coversabroad range of area.
3 evidence. Lacksfoundation. Callsfor speculation. 3 MR. ROSENBAUM: That wasn't my question. Make
4 Vague and ambiguous as to "impact” and "student academic 4 itclear.
5 performance" Overly broad. 5 Q. Hasanyonetakenalook at those students, not
6 THE WITNESS: Sincethat programis only one 6 by theschool, let's say, let'stake alook at the
7 year old, | am not aware of any evaluation. 7 teachersthat those students had and let's look, for
8 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you know -- maybe you 8 example, to see whether or not there'sacorrdation
9 just answered this. Has there been any analysis, asfar 9 with the variable as to the number or percent of
10 asyou know, asto the race or ethnicity of students 10 emergency-credentialed teachers that those students had
11 receiving those scholarships? 11 inther classrooms?
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 12 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
13 Lacksfoundation. 13 evidence.
14 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumesfacts not in evidence. 14 MR. VIRJEE: And assumes they had more than one
15 THEWITNESS: | am not aware of any such 15 teacherinaclassat atimetolook at correlation.
16 evaluation or breakdown. | would direct you, though, to 16 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any such study.
17 the statute which provides for the specific eigibility 17 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. Youvetakedto us
18 for those students. 18 on severa occasions, Mr. Hill, about increased student
19 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. Any analysis that 19 performance -- increased school performance on the API.
20 youreaware of in terms of a breakdown as to whether or 20 Has the Department, to your knowledge,
21 not those -- the percent of emergency-credentiaed 21 undertaken any inquiry, investigation to determine what
22 teachersin schools where those students attended? 22 arethe causes, the specific causes of increased schoal
23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. That's vague and 23 performance onthe API?
24 ambiguous. 24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
25 MR. ROSENBAUM: It was pretty garbled too. 25 to "increased school performance onthe APL." | don't
Page 266 Page 268
1 Q. Doyouknow if there's been any breskdownsto 1 believe he'sused that term at all, and his testimony
2 takealook at those students receiving those 2 will spesk for itself.
3 scholarships to say what was the number or the percent 3 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
4 of emergency-credentiaed teachers in the schools where 4 "inquiry" and "investigation." Assumes factsnot in
5 they attended? 5 evidence.
6 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnot in 6 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry, can you restate your
7 evidence. Lacksfoundation. 7 question?
8 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, I'm inferring that 8 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Let metel you the context,
9 you're highlighting a potential concern about the 9 and then I'll ask you the question. Some schools do
10 correlation between emergency credentials and students 10 better from year to year on the API; isn't that right?
11 digible for those awards. 11 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad. Lacks
12 | don't think | can accept that assumption 12 foundation.
13 because the STAR component of digibility for that 13 THE WITNESS: Maybe you can clarify that. Are
14 program requires that the top percentage scoring 14 you speaking to the fact that there are some schools
15 studentsat every school be given those scholarships, so 15 that are -- that have consistently high achievement as
16 regardless acertain percentage at a school site will 16 measured by the API?
17 get those awards. 17 MR. ROSENBAUM: Their scores go up from year to
18 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Hasanyonelookedintothe | 18 year.
19 question asto whether or not -- the students getting 19 THE WITNESS: So the context hereislooking at
20 theawards, what sort of teachers they had, emergency 20 schoolsthat have improved in terms of their AP
21 credentiaded or fully credentialed? 21 ranking?
22 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnot in 22 MR. ROSENBAUM: That's correct.
23 evidence. Compound question. 23 MR. VIRJEE: Their API rankings, not their API
24 MR. VIRJEE: Also overbroad to the extent 24 scores.
25 you're asking whether anybody's ever looked to see 25 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Hasanyoneinthe
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1 Department, to your knowledge, said, let'stry to figure 1 MR. VIRJEE: Do you know anything about her
2 out what the causes are of increased ranking performance 2 educational background?
3 ontheAPI? 3 THE WITNESS: | do not.
4 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 4 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Do you know anything about
5 evidence. Vague and ambiguous as to "increased ranking 5 her background?
6 performance.” 6 A. | recall that she was called Dr. Marshall. |
7 THE WITNESS: | am not aware of any Department 7 don't know anything beyond that.
8 work doneinthat area. 8 Q. Okay. And did Action Learning Systems prepare
9 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. Areyou aware of any 9 areport, so far as you know, with respect to the
10 work done outside the Department in that area? 10 subject matter of reasons for increased school
11 A. 1 would refer you to a presentation made by the 11 performance on the API?
12 Elk Grove School District to the State Board of 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
13 Educationin the last two months where there was a very 13 to"report.”
14 specific discussion by teachers and administrators about 14 THE WITNESS: | don't know that.
15 what they did to improve their school performance. 15 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Did you make -- were
16 Q. Besidesthat presentation, any othersthat you 16 you present when Dr. Marshall spoke?
17 canthink of? 17 A. |wasinand out of the Board meeting during
18 A. The State Board has aso heard from -- a 18 that presentation.
19 presentation by at least one externa evaluator 19 Q. Didyou hear any of her conclusions?
20 organization with regard to the same objectives. 20 A. | dontrecal hearing any of the conclusions.
21 Q. Besidesthat? 21 Q. Again,if you don't feel competent to answer
22 A. |l amnot aware of other such presentations. 22 this, just tell me. Do you have an opinion as to what
23 Q. Okay. Andwho was the externa evaluator that 23 extent -- to what extent improvement as to API rankings
24 you'retalking about? 24 by schools reflects increased academic performance?
25 A. | maynot haveit exactly correct, Action 25 MR. VIRJEE: I'm sorry, could you repeat that,
Page 270 Page 272
1 Learning Systems. 1 please?
2 Q. ActionLearning Systems. That's agood name, 2 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Sure. What I'minterested
3 isntit? 3 in, Mr. Hill, iswhether or not you have an opinion as
4 And do you know who or what Action Learning 4  tothe extent to which improvement in school rankingsis
5 Systemsis? 5 aresult of increased academic performance as opposed to
6 MR. VIRJEE: Other than the fact that he's 6 other reasons?
7 dready said they were an external evaluator 7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
8 organization? 8 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an expert opinion which
9 MR. ROSENBAUM: Right. 9 thiswitnessis not competent to give.
10 THE WITNESS: | don't have any other 10 MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete and improper
11 information. 11 hypothetical question.
12 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you know wheretheyre | 12 MR. ROSENBAUM: [f you agree with Mr. Virjee,
13 based? 13 that'sfine.
14 A. | know thatitisaCalifornia-based 14 THE WITNESS: | would agree with counsdl in
15 organization. 15 termsof my qudlifications.
16 Q. Doyouknow any persons associated with ALS? 16 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Haveyou ever heard the
17 A.  The person who made the presentetion to the 17 concern expressed that one of the reasons that school
18 State Board was awoman named Kit Marshall. 18 performance goes up on the API is because the test uses
19 Q. Do youknow anything about the qualifications 19 the sameitems year after year?
20 of Ms. Marshall? 20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 21 to'items."
22 to"qualifications." With respect to what? 22 MR. ROSENBAUM: Sametest items, same
23 MR. ROSENBAUM: Credentials qualifications. 23 questions.
24 MR. VIRJEE: With respect to what? 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad.
25 MR. ROSENBAUM: Education. 25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Also assumes facts not
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1 inevidence 1 what digtrict that involved?
2 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | think | need to 2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.
3 haveadifferent question from you with regard to a 3 THEWITNESS: | don't recall.
4  specific test or tests. 4 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Now, have you ever
5 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. | think | knowwhat | 5 heard the concern expressed, Mr. Hill, that one of the
6 youmean. Youreawarethat -- the Stanford-9, that's 6 reasonsthat scores go up on the API for schoolsis
7 an off-the-shelf test, right? 7 because as part of the Stanford-9 the same items are
8 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 8 used every year?
9 asto"off-the-shelf." Lacks foundation. 9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague astotime.
10 THE WITNESS: The Stanford-9isa 10 Cadlsfor speculation.
11 commercidly-available exam. 11 MR. SEFERIAN: Asked and answered. Lacks
12 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Andisn'tit true, Mr. Hill, 12 foundation. Assumes facts not in evidence.
13 that the Stanford-9 as administered as part of the AP 13 THEWITNESS: Yes.
14 program, the same questions are utilized from year to 14 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: And to your knowledge, has
15 vyear? 15 the Department undertaken any inquiry or investigation
16 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 16 to determine whether or not, in fact, some measure of
17 Callsfor speculation. Vague asto context. 17 increase of school performance on the API isaresult of
18 THEWITNESS: That is my understanding. 18 utilizing the same items each year on the Stanford-9?
19 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Infact, wasn't there an 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
20 issuethat concerned you a one point about a textbook 20 to"inquiry."
21 that was being used that closely mirrored the questions 21 MR. SEFERIAN: And “investigation." Assumes
22 onthe Stanford-9? 22 factsnotin evidence. Lacks foundation.
23 MR. VIRJEE: Concerned Mr. Hill? 23 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, your question
24 MR. ROSENBAUM: Mr. Hill. 24 involves some highly-technical issues around the basis
25 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad. Vague 25 for improved student achievement, and I'm not qualified
Page 274 Page 276
1 and ambiguous as to context and "concerned.” Lacks 1 tocomment on what those might be.
2 foundation. 2 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: | appreciate you telling me
3 THE WITNESS: Yes. 3 that. I just wantto know -- I'm not asking you to
4 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. And do you remember 4 disentangledl this.
5 what district that involved? 5 Do you know if the Department has ever
6 A. |dont 6 undertaken any inquiry or investigation to determine
7 Q. Okay. Do you know what happened to the use of 7 whether or not that claim is true or not?
8 that textbook? 8 MR. VIRJEE: First of dl, "that claim"” is
9 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 9 vague and ambiguous.
10 MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto "what 10 MR. ROSENBAUM: I'll clarify. Theclaimis
11 happened.” 11 that some measure of increased student performance on
12 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation. Calls for 12 the APl isafunction of the Stanford-9 using the same
13 speculation. 13 testitemseach year.
14 MR. VIRJEE: And aso vague astotime. Was 14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
15 thetextbook ever used, was it ever published, was it 15 to"inquiry or investigation.”
16 taken off the shelf? "What happened" is vague and 16 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
17 ambiguous. 17 evidence.
18 THE WITNESS: Theitem in question was not a 18 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | think you stated
19 textbook, it was a supplement to an approved 19 theproblemwel. | don't know how to disentangle the
20 instructional program and it used items from a parallel 20 one piece that you've parsed out with other potential
21 form of the Stanford-9, and that usage was discovered by 21 causesfor increased student achievement, and so | don't
22 Sherry Griffith in our frameworks division and she took 22 fed qualified to respond.
23 stepsto remedy the usage of that parallel formin that 23 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: What other potentia causes
24 supplement. 24 areyou aware of for increasesin school academic
25 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. Thanks. Do you know 25 performance onthe API?
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1 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Incomplete improper 1 test?
2 hypothetical question. Lacks foundation. Callsfor an 2 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Asked and answered.
3 inadmissible opinion. Callsfor speculation. Overly 3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
4 broad and vague and ambiguous. 4 to"teachingto thetest."
5 THEWITNESS: That the achievement reflects 5 THEWITNESS: Yes.
6 actua student learning and student knowledge. 6 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: How about cheating?
7 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Any others? 7 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
8 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. Lacks 8 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: That increased student
9 foundation. Overly broad. Incomplete and improper 9 academic -- increased academic performance onthe APl is
10 hypothetica question. 10 afunction of cheating?
11 MR. VIRJEE: Kids guess better. 11 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. No foundation.
12 THE WITNESS: There are anumber of potentia 12 Overly broad.
13 technica explanations, of which | am not an expert, as 13 MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto
14 towhy on any given day students might receive one score 14 “cheating."
15 or ancther. 15 THE WITNESS: | would ask you to not -- | can't
16 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Haveyou ever heard the 16 answer the question as you've asked it because you've
17 explanation that students guess better because their 17 identified increased academic achievement.
18 teachers prepare them how to take tests? 18 MR. ROSENBAUM: Increased student performance.
19 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad. Vague 19 Strikethat. Increased school performance on the API.
20 and ambiguous. Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous 20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
21 astoteach "how to take tests." 21 to "increased school performance," and also vague and
22 THEWITNESS: Yes. 22 ambiguous asto "chesating.”
23 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Haveyou ever heard the 23 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumesfactsnot in evidence.
24 concern that improvement that -- onthe APl isa 24 THEWITNESS: Yes.
25 function of a changing student population? 25 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. How about that
Page 278 Page 280
1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 1 increased academic performance by schools on the APl is
2 to"changing student population.” 2 afunction of dropouts?
3 THE WITNESS: | don't understand your question. 3 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
4 MR. VIRJEE: Alsoassumesfactsnotin 4 asto"dropouts.”
5 evidence. 5 THE WITNESS: | have not heard that concern.
6 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: You havean eementary 6 In--the API contains controls for the percentage of
7 school, say K to 5, and there's a changing student 7 testtakersrequisite for receiving an API.
8 population, because one cohort leaves anew cohort comes 8 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Have you heard of any other
9 inthere are changes within the other cohort, have you 9 factors besides the ones that we've been discussing the
10 ever heard that concern expressed? 10 past severa minutes as influencing school performance
11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguousto 11 ontheAPI?
12 changes within cohorts. 12 MR. VIRJEE: Has not stated that they influence
13 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad. 13 school performance. Y ou've asked has he ever heard
14 THE WITNESS: | have not heard that concern 14  concerns about that.
15 expressed. And the development of the APl includes a 15 MR. ROSENBAUM: | appreciate that. Concerns
16 control for that effect. 16 about potentia influences.
17 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. What'sthecontrol? | 17 MR. VIRJEE: So has he ever heard any other
18 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 18 concerns voiced?
19 Cadlisfor speculation. 19 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yesh, that's good. Thanks.
20 THE WITNESS: It isaquantitative formulathat 20 THE WITNESS: | can't recall others at the
21 Mr. Padiawould know more than me, but it'salimiting 21 moment.
22 factor on the amount of change permissible. 22 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: How about percent of
23 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Haveyou ever heard the 23 studentsfluent in English, have you heard that?
24 concern expressed that increased student academic 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
25 performance isafunction of teachers teaching to the 25 THEWITNESS: It's adifficult question to
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1 answer because the API, again, has controls that 1 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.
2 recognize growth from baseline performance to future 2 Vague and ambiguous asto "vaid".
3 year performance. To the extent that a student has any 3 THE WITNESS: I'msorry, | need to get a
4 factor which may initialy limit their achievement, it 4 clarification fromyou. Y our question refersto as
5 isrecognized in future yearsin the APl by growth. 5 thosefactorsrelate to student achievement?
6 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Itfollowstheindividua 6 MR. ROSENBAUM: Asthey relateto, yeah, |
7 student? ‘ 7 think we're on the same page here. Asthey rdlateto
8 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 8  student achievement reflected in the scores.
9 asto"follows." 9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
10 THE WITNESS: The AP is not student specific, 10 to"scores."
11 the APl isfor aschoal. 11 MR. ROSENBAUM: Let mefinish. The scoresand
12 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Somy questionis, doesthe | 12 the STAR programthat's reflected inthe API.
13 API, to your knowledge, have the capecity to follow a 13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
14 particular student in terms of increase in English 14 to"scores' and "reflected inthe APL."
15 fluency from year to year and chart the performance on 15 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.
16 the STARtest? Do you understand what | mean? 16 Incomplete hypothetical question.
17 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Compound question. 17 THEWITNESS: Yes.
18 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor speculation. 18 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. Andwho has conducted
19 THE WITNESS: I'm not sure | understand exactly 19 that investigation?
20 what you mean. 20 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Misstates the
21 MR. VIRJEE: I'll also object asvague and 21 witness testimony.
22 ambiguous asto the API doing that. Sincethe APl isa 22 THEWITNESS: Itisnot, as| think you are
23 composite school score, that makes no sense. It's 23 implying, some sort of investigation. Asaroutine
24 nonsensical. 24 matter of administering the STAR program, the Department
25 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: What | want to know isas 25  of Education and the contractor for the STAR program
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1 part of analyzing these results, do you know if the 1 undertake erasure analyses that identify potential
2 system hasthe capacity to see -- look at individua 2 unusual episodes of score changes on score sheets.
3 students and see how their English fluency increases or 3 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: So that one, that analysis
4 daysthe same or changes, and whether or not there's 4  of erasures, that deals with cheating, is that right,
5 any correlation between their scores from year to year? 5 possible cheating; isthat right?
6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and anbiguous as 6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
7 to"the system." 7 to"chesting."
8 MR. SEFERIAN: Compound question. Lacks 8 MR. SEFERIAN: Misstates the witness
9 foundation. Callsfor speculation. 9 testimony. Lacksfoundation. Callsfor speculation.
10 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, you asked in the 10 THE WITNESS: That inquiry focuses on
11 initia part of the question that -- it would be more 11 irregularitiesin student score reports.
12 helpful to get arestatement of, and | -- it seemed like 12 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: With respect to other
13 you weretaking about broader accountability indices 13 concerns that we talked about, actual improvement in
14 and English learners. If that isindeed where -- it 14 increasesin terms of student proficiency, teachers
15 would be helpful to have a specific question on that. 15 teaching to the test, utilizing the same items every
16 MR. ROSENBAUM: Let me pull that out for a 16 year, teaching test taking skills, to your knowledge,
17 minute, plesse. 17 hasthe Department undertaken any investigation, inquiry
18 Q. Thevarious concernsthat you acknowledged as 18 asto the extent to which any of those concerns are
19 having been voiced -- let me restate the earlier 19 vdid?
20 question and seeif that helps -- has there been any 20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.
21 analysisby the Department as to which of those concerns 21 Vague and ambiguous asto "inquiry" and "vdid."
22 arevalid and which of those concerns are not valid, or 22 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.
23 the extent to which some of those concerns may be valid? 23 Vague and ambiguous asto "investigation.”
24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 24 THEWITNESS: Yes.
25 to"andysis" Vagueastotime. 25 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. Andtell methe basis
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1 for that answer, please. 1 that iswith respect to API?
2 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 2 A Yes
3 THE WITNESS: The State Board of Education 3 Q. Wha'syour understanding?
4 adopted amemorandum that discussed appropriate test 4 A. Thesmilar school rankingsisarequired
5 preparation strategies. It was distributed sometimein 5 component of the academic performance index. It
6 2001 6 providesinformation about a school's performancein
7 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Areyou thinking of any -- 7 relation to schools that have similar characteristics.
8 whenyou say yes, are you thinking of anything else 8 Q. Okay. Andaml correct, sir, that the similar
9 besidesthat memorandum? 9 school rankings -- strike that.
10 A. No. 10 It's compiled from year to year; is that right?
11 Q. Okay. Now, that memorandum, to whom was that 11 A. Correct.
12 digtributed so far as you know? 12 Q. Andthesimilar schoal rankingsis not used for
13 A. | don'tknow to whom it was distributed. 13 dther rewards or sanctions; isthat right?
14 Q. Doyouknow if there's been any monitoring or 14 A. That'scorrect.
15 examination to see the extent to which that memorandum 15 Q. Toyour knowledge, hasthere ever been any
16 was adhered to by teachers or schools or districts? 16 discussion that that would be an appropriate measure --
17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 17 drikethat -- that that would be an appropriate ranking
18 to"monitoring." 18 systemto usefor rewards and sanctions?
19 MR. SEFERIAN: And "examination." Assumes 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
20 factsnotinevidence. 20 to"appropriate." Andincomplete hypothetical. And
21 THE WITNESS: | would refer you to Mr. Warren 21 assumesfacts not in evidence.
22 and Mr. Padiafor that information. 22 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any such
23 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: You'renot aware of it? 23 discussion.
24 A. I'mnotaware. 24 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Or that in terms of
25 Q. Insomedates--isn'tittrue, Mr. Hill, that 25 school improvement, that similar school rankings would
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1 in some states students receive test preparation 1 beabetter measure of school improvement regarding
2 materials with respect to assessment tests? 2 student academic performance than the API rankings that
3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 3 areutilized?
4 “test preparation materials." Also callsfor 4 (Mr. Seferian entered the room.)
5 speculation. Lacks foundation. 5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
6 THE WITNESS: | don't have sufficient knowledge 6 to"better" and "school improvement.” And vague and
7  of assessment activitiesin other states to comment. 7 ambiguous and also, frankly, nonsensical.
8 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: To your knowledge, has there 8 THE WITNESS: | am not aware of any such
9 been any investigation or inquiry or monitoring as to 9 discussions.
10 the way different schools or teachersin different 10 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Wereyou ever consulted
11 schools prepare their students for the STAR test? 11 regarding the criteriathat are utilized to group
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 12 schools?
13 to "investigation" and "monitoring." 13 MR. VIRJEE: Under the similar schools ranking?
14 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence. 14 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yeah. Thanks.
15 MR. VIRJEE: Also asked and answered. He's 15 MR. VIRJEE: The statute speaks for itself.
16 already testified to some investigating and monitoring 16 Youveaready asked all these questions to Bill Padia
17 inthat area. 17 and Paul Warren. Thisisawaste of time.
18 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of anything beyond 18 MR. ROSENBAUM: I'm asking the question of
19 what I've already answered. 19 whether or not Mr. Hill wasinvolved in selecting those
20 MR. ROSENBAUM: Want to take a break? 20 criteria
21 (Recess taken.) 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
22 (Mr. Affeldt and Mr. Seferian not present.) 22 to"involvedinsdecting”. Thecriteriaareinthe
23 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Doing okay, Mr. Hill? 23 satute and the statute speaks for itself.
24 A. Yes 24 THE WITNESS: | do not recollect any such
25 Q. Thesimilar school rankings, do you know what 25 consultation.
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1 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Doyouconsider yourselfthe | 1 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague as to context.
2 person most knowledgeable about the similar schools 2 THE WITNESS: I'm familiar with the
3 rankings within the Department? 3 organization.
4 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation. 4 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Do you know if the
5 Cadlsfor speculation. 5 organization prepares reports?
6 THE WITNESS: No. 6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
7 MR. VIRJEE: 'And also vague and ambiguous to 7 to"reports." And aso cals for speculation.
8 theextent of "person most knowledgeable” Andto the 8 THE WITNESS: Yes.
9 extent that that is asking from alega perspective, 9 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Andwhat does the acronym
10 callsfor alega conclusion. 10 stand for?
11 THE WITNESS: My response would be no. 11 A.  Fisca Crisis and Management Assistant Team.
12 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Who would that be in your 12 Q. Haveyou ever read any reports prepared by
13 opinion? 13 FCMAT?
14 MR. VIRJEE: Lacksfoundation. Callsfor 14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
15 speculation. Callsfor alegal conclusion. 15 to"reports.”
16 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | would need you 16 THE WITNESS: Yes.
17 toqudify what you mean in terms of "most 17 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Which reports have you read?
18 knowledgeable” 18 MR. VIRJEE: Same objection.
19 MR. ROSENBAUM: Person who understands the 19 THE WITNESS: As amatter of course | receive
20 system best and is most capable of explaining or 20 periodically reports that FCMAT produces. | am most
21 discussing. 21 familiar with the reports FCMAT has prepared on Compton.
22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation 22 (Mr. Affeldt left the room.)
23 astowho may be the most capable of explaining, and 23 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Are you familiar with any
24  aso callsfor speculation as to who may have the most 24 other reports prepared by FCMAT?
25 knowledge. Also vague and ambiguous asto "system.” 25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
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1 MR. SEFERIAN: Incomplete hypothetical 1 to"familiar" and "reports.”
2 question. 2 THE WITNESS: | am aware of other reports. |
3 THE WITNESS: | would refer you to Mr. Padia 3 don' think | would characterize myself as familiar with
4 for that question. 4  them.
5 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: What about Mr. Spears? 5 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Isthere areasonwhy
6 MR. VIRJEE: What about Mr. Spears? Areyou 6 you're most familiar with the Compton reports?
7 asking whether you should be referred to him, whether 7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
8 he'sthe expert, whether he would know who the expert 8 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.
9 is? Vague and ambiguous. 9 THEWITNESS: Yes.
10 THE WITNESS: | would refer you to Mr. Padia. 10 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: What'sthat?
11 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Do you know what a 11 A.  Becauseuntil December 11th of 2001 Compton was
12 Concept 6 school is? 12 astate-administered school district.
13 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague asto context. 13 Q. Arethereany other state-administered school
14 Vague and ambiguous as to context. 14 districts, to your knowledge?
15 THE WITNESS: | do not. 15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
16 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. Do you know what 16 totime
17 FCMATIis? 17 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
18 (Mr. Affeldt entered the room.) 18 “state-administered.”
19 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad. 19 MR. ROSENBAUM: Thefirst objection is okay.
20 THE WITNESS: | know what the acronym FCMAT 20 Q. During your tenure have there been any other
21 standsfor. 21 date-administered school districts?
22 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Besides the knowledge of the 22 A. Yes
23 acronym, do you have any additional knowledge? 23 Q. What arethey?
24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection asto
25 to "additional knowledge." Overbroad. 25 "school-administered.”
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1 THE WITNESS: West Contra Costa remains under a 1 takeover.
2 satetrusteeship. 2 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Areyou familiar
3 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Any others? 3 with -- did you have any specific involvement in terms
4 A. And Emery Unified is under a state 4 of the administration of the Compton school district?
5 administratorship. 5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
6 Q. Anyothers? 6 to"involvement" in "the administration.”
7 A. No ‘ 7 THE WITNESS: | did not have any direct
8 Q. Toyour knowledge, are there any schoal 8 day-to-day responsibilities for the Compton Unified
9 didricts now being contemplated for state 9 Schoal District.
10 administration? 10 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Areyou familiar with the
11 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 11 methodology that FCMAT used in Compton?
12 asto"date administration." Object to the extent it 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
13 cdlsfor privileged, confidential communicetions. 13 to"methodology." And overbroad. Methodology for what?
14 Overly broad. 14 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague asto context.
15 THE WITNESS: | could not speculate on that. 15 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, are you referring
16 Decisions around state takeovers ultimately rest with 16 tothe periodic evauationsthat FCMAT would do of the
17 the governor and thelegidature. 17 Compton school district pursuant to the legidation for
18 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Haveyou heard any 18 itsrecovery?
19 discussion about other districts for which state 19 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes.
20 takeover isbeing discussed? 20 THE WITNESS: | am familiar with that.
21 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection to the extent it calls 21 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Haveyoureadal the
22 for privileged communications. 22 reports, so far as you know?
23 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous asto 23 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Cdlsfor
24 "date takeover." 24 speculdion.
25 THE WITNESS: | am not aware of any specific 25 THE WITNESS: | have read many of the reports.
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1 conversations, however, itis-- AB 1200 as a statute 1 Idontknow if | haveread al of them.
2 definesthe process and criteria by which districts 2 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Areyou aware asto whether
3 would be considered for state takeover, and that is what 3 or not there's a consent decree in Compton?
4 drives ultimately decisions around them. 4 A. lam
5 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Haveyou heard any talk 5 Q. Haveyoulooked at thet consent decree or a
6 about dtate takeover of any other districts? 6 summary of it?
7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 7 A. | dontrecollect whether | have looked at a
8 to"datetakeover." Vagueastotime. 8 consent decree.
9 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it calls 9 Q. Do you have an opinion as to whether FCMAT's
10 for disclosure of privileged communications. 10 involvement in Compton contributed to increased student
11 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, at any pointin 11 academic performancein thet district?
12 time there may be nothing but speculation about 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation.
13 didtricts that will not be able to meet their financia 13 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an expert opinion which
14 obligations. 14 thiswitnessis not competent to give. Incomplete
15 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: How about right now, have | 15 hypothetical.
16 you heard discussion about possible districts that might 16 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad. Assumes facts not
17 besubject to Sate takeover? 17 inevidence.
18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 18 THEWITNESS: | could not make that conclusion.
19 to'"right now." Also vague and ambiguous asto "state 19 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Oneway or the other?
20 takeover." 20 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
21 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it calls 21 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Isthat what you're saying?
22 for privileged communications. 22 A. Correct.
23 THE WITNESS: Based on the criteriathet is 23 Q. Do you know who Tom Henry is?
24  needed for state takeovers, | am not aware right now of 24 A. ldo
25 anydigtrictsthat are being contemplated for state 25 Q. Haveyou had any discussions with Mr. Henry

40 (Pages 293 to 296)




Page 297

Page 299

1 about Compton? 1 oversight afforded by FCMAT as reflected in the reports
2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague astotime. 2 that you and | have been discussing had any role to play
3 THEWITNESS: Yes. 3 inincreased student performance?
4 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: On more than one occasion? 4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
5 A Yes 5 to"oversight." Alsoit callsfor speculation. Also
6 Q. Andwasthereany discussion about the role of 6 callsfor an expert opinion. Also assumes facts not in
7 FCMAT in Compton? 7 evidence. You haven't been discussing any oversight
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague astotime. 8 information in any reports, and assumes that there was
9 Vague and ambiguous asto "role.” 9 oversight information in those reports.
10 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it calls 10 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous as to
11 for privileged communications. 11 "role" Callsfor aninadmissible opinion.
12 THE WITNESS: Can you restate the question? 12 THE WITNESS: In my opinion, Mr. Rosenbaum,
13 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Yedh. Sure. Doyouhavea | 13 FCMAT'sreports were useful tools for policymakers. |
14 view asto -- do you have an opinion -- thisisanew 14 cannot ascribe changes in student learning in Compton to
15 question -- asto whether or not the state 15 theevauationsthat FCMAT did.
16 administration of the Compton school district had any 16 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Doestha mean you don't
17 impact on student achievement there? 17 have knowledge one way or the other?
18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation. 18 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Compound question.
19 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an expert opinion which 19 Same objections.
20 thiswitnessis not competent to give. Also vague and 20 THE WITNESS: | do not have knowledge one way
21 ambiguous as to "student achievement.” 21 or the other.
22 THE WITNESS: To respond to the question, 22 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: To your knowledge, has there
23 Mr. Rosenbaum, | would et the data speak for itself. 23 been any investigation or inquiry to determine the
24 ltisfactua that student achievement in Compton has 24 extent to which the involvement of FCMAT and the
25 increased over the past few years. 25 oversight that FCMAT afforded had any impact on
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1 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: My questionisalittle 1 increased student performance?
2 different. Do you attribute -- do you have an opinion 2 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnot in
3 astowhether or not that improvement is a function of 3 evidence. Vague and ambiguous asto “inquiry" and
4 state administration of the district in some part? 4 investigation." Lacks foundation.
5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 5 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any such
6 to "state administration." And also calls for 6 investigation.
7 speculation and lacks foundation. Calls for an expert 7 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Hasthere ever been any
8 opinion. 8 discussion that that would be agood thing to do?
9 THEWITNESS: Yes. 9 A. I'mnotaware of any such discussions.
10 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: What's your opinion? 10 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
1 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 11 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Areyou aware, Mr. Hill, as
12 THE WITNESS: It is not possible for meto 12 towhether or not at the timethat FCMAT became involved
13 apportion credit or blame for where Compton has come in 13 with the Compton school district, whether or not
14 the past few years. Theincrease in student 14 textbookswere available to al students?
15 achievement, in my opinion, is the result of the 15 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
16 district doing or making efforts to do what | described 16 to"textbooks." Vague and ambiguous asto "involved."
17 to you yesterday as what low-performing schools need to 17 Callsfor speculation. Lacks foundation.
18 focuson. 18 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
19 The district has become familiar with using 19 “available" Vagueastotime.
20 datato identify strengths and weaknesses, to develop 20 THE WITNESS. Mr. Rosenbaum, | think | would
21 core-focused instructional programs that address those 21 need help with your question. I'm having difficulty
22 strengths and weaknesses, and to target resources 22 seeing a connection between the presence of FCMAT and
23 towardsincreased student learning. 23 theavailability of textbooks.
24 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Do you know -- do you think 24 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Let me restate the question
25 that -- do you have an opinion as to whether or not the 25 for you. Do you know if over the period of time that
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1 FCMAT became involved with Compton, whether or not 1 Compound. Callsfor speculation. Lacks foundation.
2 textbooks have become more available to students, access 2 THE WITNESS: Maybe you could have -- be more
3 totextbooks, whether that's increased? 3 specific about "facilities" and "Compton."
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 4 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you know if the state of
5 to"access' and "textbooks." Callsfor speculation. 5 facilities, the physical facilitiesimproved over the
6 Lacksfoundation. 6 period of time that he was state administrator?
7 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto "more 7 A Yes
8 available" 8 Q. Youdoknow that?
9 THE WITNESS: | can't answer your question with 9 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection -- sorry.
10 regard to the characteristics you have described. | can 10 THEWITNESS: Yes.
11 datethat Dr. Ward, the state administrator, publically 11 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: And what do you know?
12 told the State Board of Education this month that he had 12 A.  Dr. Ward embarked on aprogram to repair and
13 ingtigated atextbook tracking system for Compton. 13 modernize facilities as resources alowed him to do that
14 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you know whether or 14 in Compton.
15 not -- do you know what period of time Dr. Ward has been 15 Q. Okay. If youdont fed you havethe
16 the state administrator? 16 expertise, just tell me. Do you have an opinion asto
17 A.  Since 1996 to the end of 2001. 17 whether or not that program contributed to increased
18 Q. Doyouknow if over that period of time there 18 student performance, academic performance?
19 wasgreater availability of textbooks for students? 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 20 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an expert opinion. Vague
21 to "textbooks." Vagueand ambiguous asto 21 and ambiguous as to improvement in student learning.
22 "availability." Calsfor speculation. Lacks 22 Also vague and ambiguous as to "contributed.”
23 foundation. 23 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto "that
24 THE WITNESS: | could not draw such a 24 program.”
25 conclusion. | don't know. 25 THE WITNESS: | can't draw -- | just can't draw
Page 302 Page 304
1 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Y oudon't have any 1 suchaconclusion.
2 information one way or the other? 2 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Just don't have enough
3 A. ldonot 3 information?
4 Q. Andhaveyou ever attempted to identify the 4 A. Correct.
5 factors that were causes of improved student academic 5 Q. Doyouhaveany dutiesor responsibilities,
6 performance at Compton over the period of time that 6 Mr. Hill, with respect to school facilities?
7 Dr. Ward was state administrator? 7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 8 to"school facilities' and "duties' and
9 to"factors." And also asked and answered. He's 9 ‘"responsihilities."
10 dready testified to the elements that he ascribes -- 10 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad.
11 that he personally views and ascribes to the approved 11 THE WITNESS: Asl've stated with other content
12 student achievement. 12 aress of the Department, Dewayne Brooks, the division
13 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumesfacts not in evidence 13 director of facilities, reportsto Susie Lange who
14 THE WITNESS: | would stand by my prior answer, 14 reportstome. | do not have direct day-to-day
15 and add that Dr. Ward, in his public presentation to the 15 responsibilities over facilities.
16 State Board, also reflected on the use of dataand a 16 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Youtold mealittle
17 focused instructional program as reasons for 17 bit earlier, Mr. Hill, about the criteriaregarding
18 improvement. 18 similar school rankings.
19 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Do you know what's | 19 What's your understanding of what that criteria
20 happened to the facilities at Compton during the period 20 areaslad out inthe statute?
21 of time Dr. Ward was state administrator? Do you know 21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. The statute speaks for
22 if there were modernization or construction of new 22 itsdf. That also misstates histestimony. He didn't
23 facilities? 23 tell you about the criteria
24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 24 THE WITNESS: At the moment | cannot recal the
25 to"modernization" and what happened to facilities. 25 criteriathat comprisesthe similar school rankings.
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1 Q BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. Do you have an 1 MR. ROSENBAUM: I'mtalking about in the
2 opinion asto -- can you name any of the criteria? 2 context of takeovers.
3 MR. VIRJEE: Isthisamemory test? Again, you 3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Overbroad. Vague and
4 deposed Paul Warren about these things, Bill Padia about 4 ambiguous asto "action plans’ in conjunction with a
5 thesethings. The statute speaks for itself. You just 5 takeover.
6 want to seeif Mr. Hill has agood memory? Come on, 6 THEWITNESS: | would respond, no, action plan
7 Mark, you're wasting everybody'stime. The statute 7 istoo generous aterm.
8 gpeaksfor itsdlf. 8 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Hasthere been any
9 THE WITNESS: The similar school rankings are 9 discussion of which you're aware about the capacity of
10 designed to have schools with similar characteristics, 10 the Stateto take over schools?
11 and | would simply suggest that the statute then defines 11 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
12 what those characteristics are. 12 asto“capacity” and "take over.”
13 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Isthere anyonein the 13 MR. VIRJEE: Also object to the extent it calls
14 Department -- 14 for attorney/client privilege or the deliberative
15 MR. VIRJEE: Let the record reflect that one of 15 process privilege.
16 thelawyersis escaping. 16 THEWITNESS: Yes.
17 (Mr. Hajela left the room.) 17 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: And on more than one
18 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Isthere anyonein the 18 occasion?
19 Department, Mr. Hill, who has been assigned 19 A. I'msorry, | needto get clarification. Are
20 responsibility regarding those provisions of the PSAA 20 you speaking specifically about Department of Education
21 relating to state takeover of schools? 21 meetings or communications?
22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 22 MR. ROSENBAUM: Let's start there, yeah.
23 Compound. Unintelligible. 23 THEWITNESS: | can't recall -- | can't recdl
24 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto 24 any specific meetings or number of meetings for those
25 "responsibility” and "state takeover." 25 purposes.
Page 306 Page 308
1 THEWITNESS: Yes. 1 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: I'msorry, you said there
2 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Whoistha? 2 have been anumber of meetings?
3 A. Richard Whitmore was asked by Superintendent 3 A. No, I'msayingl can't recal -- | don't
4 Eastin to coordinate the Department's considerations of 4 recollect -- | don't recollect multitudes of meetings.
5 thoseissues. Working directly with schoolsin question 5 | have not participated in multitudes of meetings.
6 resides with Joanne Mendozas branch. 6 Q. Haveyou participated in any meetings?
7 Q. Whenyou say coordinate considerations of those 7 A Yes
8 issues, what did you mean by that? 8 Q. Okay. Andwho was present at those meetings?
9 A. Thisiswork that has not been done beforein 9 Was Superintendent Eastin present?
10 Cdifornia, and during this next year, before any of 10 A. Shewaspresent a at least one.
11 thoseinterventionstake place, Superintendent Eastin 11 Q.  Mr. Whitmore?
12 asked Mr. Whitmore to do some thinking and consideration 12 A Yes
13 of how and if and when those sanctions might be put into 13 Q. Whoedse? Anyonefrom the governor's office?
14 effect. Heworkswith the PSAA committee and with 14 A. No.
15 Ms. Mendoza's branch staff in considering those issues. 15 Q. Anyonefrom the secretary's office?
16 Q. Havethere been any memoranda prepared by 16 A. No.
17 Mr. Whitmore, to your knowledge, on this subject? 17 Q. Anyonefrom the State Board or the staff of
18 A. | dontknow the answer tothat. He may be at 18 State Board?
19 some point producing an action plan. | do not know yet 19 A.  No.
20 whether there is any such document. 20 Q. Who dsefrom the Department?
21 Q. Haveyou had any discussions a which 21 A.  Ms Faucette and Ms. Mendoza.
22 Mr. Whitmore was present or in which action plans were 22 Q. Okay. Andhow many meetings are wetalking
23 discussed? 23 about, roughly?
24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 24 A. | only have arecollection of one meeting where
25 to "action plans discussed.” 25 | was present for such discussions.
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1 Q. Canyougivemeyour best estimate asto when 1 question.
2 that occurred? 2 (Record read.)
3 A. InNovember or December of 2001. 3 THE WITNESS: No.
4 Q. Andinwhose office did that occur? 4 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Or to diminate
5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 5 overcrowding?
6 evidence. 6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
7 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Wheredidit occur? 7 to"overcrowding." Otherwise same objections.
8 A.  Superintendent Eastin's office. 8 THE WITNESS: No.
9 Q. Okay. Wasit your understanding that the 9 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Or to provide textbooks and
10 purpose of the meeting was to discuss the capacity of 10 other basic instructional materials to students?
11 the State with respect to the takeovers? 11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
12 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 12 to"provide." Otherwise same objections.
13 asto “capacity” and "takeovers.” 13 MR. SEFERIAN: Also assumesfactsnot in
14 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, we probably need 14 evidence.
15 to make sure we're understanding the term “capacity” in 15 MR. VIRJEE: Also overbroad asto providing
16 thesameway. | meant with al sincerity what | stated 16 “textbooks' and “instructional materials."
17 earlier. Asthisisavery new balgamefor the State 17 THEWITNESS: I'm having trouble understanding
18 of Cdlifornia, our discussions focused on what the 18 your question asit relates to textbooks.
19 datutesrequire the State to do in terms of avariety 19 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. To assurethat -- let
20 of sanction options, how those might be implemented and 20 merestate adifferent question. Have you seen any
21 supported, and how those are coincided or not with 21 memorandum or memoranda discussing strategies for
22 federa sanction efforts. 22 assuring students access to core curriculum materials?
23 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Title1 sanctions? 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.
24 A. Correct. 24 You dready asked him that exact question twice.
25 Q. Andwasthereany concern expressed at this 25 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnot in
Page 310 Page 312
1 mesting asto whether or not the State was going to be 1 evidence.
2 ableto take over schoals, whether it was capable of 2 MR. ROSENBAUM: Y ou'reright.
3 running schools? 3 Q. Haveyou ever directed anyone on your staff to
4 MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto 4 prepare amemorandum regarding strategies for the
5 "takeover" and "running." Compound. Callsfor 5 recruitment of fully-credentialed teachers?
6 speculation. 6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
7 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. | think that calls 7 to"drategies’ and "fully-credentialed.”
8 for information protected by the official information 8 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.
9 andthe ddliberative process privileges. | don't think 9 (Mr. Affeldt entered the room.)
10 thewitness should answer that question. 10 THE WITNESS: No.
11 THE WITNESS: I'll defer to counsel on that. 11 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Or to diminate
12 MR. ROSENBAUM: If | ask any questions about 12 overcrowding?
13 that meeting, am | going to get the same objection? 13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
14 MR. SEFERIAN: Regarding the content of the 14 to"overcrowding."
15 mesting, yes. 15 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.
16 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Haveyouever seenany--to | 16 THE WITNESS. No.
17 your knowledge, do any memorandum or memoranda exist 17 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Or to afford access to core
18 discussing -- from the Department of Education 18 curriculum materials?
19 discussing strategies for the recruitment of 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered,
20 fully-credentialed teachers to schools within the public 20 and aso "access' isvague and ambiguous.
21 school system? 21 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.
22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 22 THEWITNESS:. No.
23 to"dtrategies' and "recruiting” and 23 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. Now if | changethe
24 "fully-credentialed.” Vagueastotime. 24 question dlightly and say not prepare a memorandum, but
25 MS. READ-SPANGLER: Can you read back the 25 to come back and make areport asto possible
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1 dtrategies, would any of your answers that you just gave 1 speculation.
2 mebeany different? 2 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous asto
3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 3 "counsdors.
4 to"report.” Compound. Callsfor speculation. 4 THE WITNESS: | do not know the answer to that.
5 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence. 5 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you -- do you know if
6 THE WITNESS: No. 6 thereare any attempts to develop strategies or programs
7 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Areyou aware of any dataor 7 toassure equal access to counsglors for studentsin the
8 inquiries asto the access to computers by students 8 Cdiforniapublic high schools?
9 within the California public school system? 9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
10 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 10 to"access," "strategies’ and "counsdors.”
11 to"access." 11 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.
12 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous as to "data’ 12 MR. VIRJEE: And "equal," by theway. Missed
13 and"inquiries." Compound question. 13 that.
14 THEWITNESS: Yes. 14 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | would refer you
15 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Andwhat'sthe basis of that 15 to some recent legidation which increased counselors
16 answer, Mr. Hill? 16 for Californiaschoals. | do not know, beyond the fact
17 A. I'mawarethat the Department's annual fact 17 that legidation was passed, the extent to which it
18 book contains information about the number of computers 18 satisfies your question.
19 inCdiforniaclassrooms. | do not have specific 19 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Do you know whether or not
20 information about those numbers. 20 therearemore or less accessto counsdorsin
21 Q. Okay. Ifyou'vejust answered, just tell me. 21 Cadliforniapublic high schools in schools dligible for
22 Do you know if al students have equal accessto 22 11/USP as opposed to schools that are not digible?
23 computers? 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Objection. Vague and
24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 24 ambiguous as to "access," "equal” and "counsdors.”
25 to"access' and also "equal.” 25 THE WITNESS: | do nat.
Page 314 Page 316
1 THE WITNESS: | do not. 1 Q  BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. Ever make any inquiry
2 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Do you know if 2 tofind out?
3 there's been any discussion abouit strategies or steps 3 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes facts not in
4 that can be taken to equalize access for all studentsto 4 evidence. Vague and ambiguous asto “inquiry."
5 computers? 5 THE WITNESS: | have not.
6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and anbiguous as 6 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: How about teacher/student
7 to"equalize" and "access." 7 ratio, Mr. Hill, do you know if the student/teacher
8 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad. Assumesfacts not 8 ratio in elementary schools that are eligible for [1/USP
9 inevidence. 9 isthe same, more or less than the teacher/student ratio
10 THE WITNESS: | do not. 10 in schoolsthat are not eligible for [1/USP?
11 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. Haveyouseenany | 11 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
12 information regarding student council ratiosin high 12 to “eligiblefor II/JUSP."
13 schoalsin the Cdifornia public school system? 13 MR. SEFERIAN: Compound question. Lacks
14 A. Yes 14 foundation.
15 Q. Okay. Andwheredid you seethat data? 15 THE WITNESS: | do not.
16 A. | would refer you again to our state fact book 16 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Hasthere been any inquiry
17 which contains such information. | do not know the 17 tofind out that of which you're aware?
18 gpecifics of that information. 18 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnot in
19 Q. Okay. Andif you'vejust answered, just tell 19 evidence. Vague and ambiguous as to "inquiry".
20 me. To your knowledge, do al studentsin high schools 20 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any such
21 inthe Cdifornia public schools have the same access to 21 inquiry.
22 counsdors? 22 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: How about middle schools or
23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 23 high schoals, are you aware of whether or not schools
24 ‘"equa," "same' and "access.” 24 eigible for 11/USP -- where the teacher/student ratio
25 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Callsfor 25 isgreater, less than or equal in schools that are
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1 digiblefor [I/USP as opposed to schools that are not 1 to"insufficient” and "textbooks." Callsfor
2 digible? 2 gpeculation. Lacks foundation. Assumesfactsnot in
3 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 3 evidence.
4 astotime. Vague and ambiguous asto "schools digible 4 THE WITNESS: | am not aware of any specific
5 for II/USP." Lacks foundation. 5 strategies or discussions on that.
6 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any such 6 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Or the construction of new
7 information. ‘ 7 facilities?
8 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Anyinquiry to find out of 8 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
9 whichyou're aware? 9 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any discussions
10 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 10 or strategiesfor that.
11 evidence. Vague and ambiguous asto attempt to find 11 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Or the modernization of
12 out. 12 facilities?
13 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any such 13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
14 inquiry. 14 to"modernization.”" Otherwise same objections.
15 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Areyoupersonaly | 15 THE WITNESS: | am not aware of any such
16 aware, sir, of whether or not externd evaluators for 16 discussionsor strategies.
17 thell/USP program have discussed strategies as to how 17 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Or how to obtain additional
18 toded with ashortage of fully-credentialed teachers 18 financial resources?
19 inschools? 19 A. |lamnotaware of any such discussions or
20 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad. Cdls 20 strategies.
21 for speculation. 21 If you're done with that category, | have a
22 THE WITNESS: | am not aware personally of any 22 recommendation for you, which is to refer to the State
23 suchdiscussions or strategies. 23 Board's gpproval of action plans for schoolsinvolved in
24 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. How about 24 1I/USP.
25 overcrowding? 25 Q. Ifanexterna evaluator concluded with respect
Page 318 Page 320
1 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 1 toaparticular school that severe overcrowding was a
2 asto"how about." 2 cause of deficient student academic performance, in your
3 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any such 3 understanding of the system, could the external
4 discussions or sStrategies. 4 evauator have the authority to say you need to build a
5 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Or accessto computers? 5 new school here?
6 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.
7 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any such 7 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor alegd conclusion.
8 discussionsor strategies. 8 MS. READ-SPANGLER: Alsocan | just ask for
9 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Or insufficient textbooks 9 darification. I've been assuming, and | think Scott
10 and other basic instructional materials aligned with 10 hastoo, when you're talking about external evauators,
11 dtate standards? 11 you'retaking about that with respect to [1/USP, right?
12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 12 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: That'syour understanding,
13 to"insufficient” and "aligned." 13 right?
14 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, on that question | 14 A. Thatismy understanding.
15 would remind you of how | questioned the assumption 15 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
16 behind that question when you asked it yesterday, that 16 "severeovercrowding" and "deficient academic
17 sufficiency of textbooks is not necessarily a condition 17 performance." Incomplete and improper hypothetical
18 of ether astrong structural program or successin 18 question.
19 learning. 19 MR. VIRJEE: Also assumesfactsnotin
20 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: But my questionis, areyou | 20 evidence. Assumesthat the external evaluator would be
21 aware of any discussion by externa evaluators of 21 competent to make that decision.
22 gtrategiesto ded with insufficient textbooks and other 22 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor aninadmissible
23 basicingtructiona materials aligned with state 23 opinion.
24  gtandards? 24 MR. ROSENBAUM: That'sagood point by
25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 25 Mr. Virjee
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1 Q. Do you have an opinion as to whether or not 1 MR. ROSENBAUM: If you don't feel competent to
2 external evaluators selected are competent to make that 2 dothat, just tell me.
3 judgment? 3 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad.
4 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation. 4 THE WITNESS:. No.
5 Lacks foundation. Compound. Incomplete hypothetical. 5 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: No, you don't fed
6 It would assumein a particular case and circumstances. 6 competent, or, no, you don't have any concerns or
7 THE WITNESS: | don't know the answer to that 7 criticisms?
8 question. | would refer you to the list of approved 8 A. No, | donot have concernsor criticisms of the
9 evaluators by the State Board for such information. 9 program.
10 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. Areyou aware of any 10 Q. Okay. Thereisawriting test that is
11 criticisms of the II/USP programs by persons outside the 11 administered as part of the STAR program; am | correct?
12 Department? 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 13 to"writingtest." Also callsfor speculation. Lacks
14 to"criticisms." 14 foundation.
15 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry, | would need alittle 15 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, are you referring
16 help onthisone. | don't know at ageneral level the 16 tothegrades4 and 7 writing examination that is
17 criticisms. 17 administered as part of the California standards test?
18 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Have you heard any criticism 18 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes.
19 of the II/USP program by anybody? 19 Q. How longhasthat been administered, so far as
20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 20 you know?
21 to"criticisms." 21 A.  Thiswill bethe second administration of that
22 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it calls 22 exam.
23 for privileged communications. 23 Q. Haveyoulooked at the results of thefirst
24 THE WITNESS: Yes. 24 administration?
25 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. What concerns or 25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and anbiguous as
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1 criticisms have you heard? 1 to"results" Alsovague and ambiguous asto "looked
2 A. Theonly criticism for which | have 2 a" ether as separated out or a composite of an AP
3 recollectionisthat during the first two years of the 3 score, or any other way.
4 program there were some external evaluators who were 4 THE WITNESS: | recollect receiving a briefing
5 handling significant numbers of schools, and concerns 5 onthescores. | don't remember anything specific about
6 wereraised about the extent to which the action plans 6 thebriefing or the scores themselves.
7 that were being developed for those schools were cookie 7 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Do you know if the
8 cutter in fashion or directed specifically for the needs 8 Department has conducted any inquiry or analysisto see
9 of those schooals. 9 whether or not there's any relationship between students
10 (Mr. Affeldt left the room.) 10 scores on the fourth and seventh grade writing prompts
11 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Which externa evaluators? | 11 and the scores on other parts of the STAR program?
12 A. | donthavethat specific information. 12 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnot in
13 Q. Doyou know which districts? 13 evidence. Vague and ambiguous asto “inquiry" and
14 A. ldonot 14 Mandysis"
15 Q. Haveyou heard any other concernsor 15 MR. VIRJEE: And"correlation.”
16 criticisms? 16 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any such
17 A. | dont have any recollection right now of any 17 evauations, athough | refer you to Mr. Spears for
18 other specific concerns. 18 whether that has been done.
19 Q. Doyou personaly have any concerns or 19 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you know if there's any
20 criticisms of the [I/USP program? 20 plansto seeif there's any relationship between results
21 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 21 of the writing prompt and other parts of the test?
22 to"criticisms' and "concerns.” Calls for speculation. 22 MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto
23 Lacksfoundation. 23 relationship.”
24 MR. SEFERIAN: Calsfor aninadmissible 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection to disclosure of
25 opinion. Overly broad. 25 privileged communications.
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1 THE WITNESS: | would refer you to Mr. Spears. 1 A. |don'tbdievel have.
2 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Youre not aware of any? 2 Q. Doyouknow anything about the complaint?
3 A.  I'mnot aware of any such plans. 3 MR. SEFERIAN: Object tothe extent it cals
4 Q. Areyouaware Mr. Hill, of acomplaint lodged 4 for privileged communications.
5 against the San Diego Unified School District? 5 THE WITNESS: Complainant from the San Diego
6 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous. 6 Unified School District has appeared before the State
7 Vagueastotime. Overly broad. Vague asto 7 Board of Education in public sessions for severa
8 "complaint." 8 months, and it ison that basisthat | have some
9 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, are you speaking 9 understanding of the complaint.
10 of auniform complaint? 10 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Y ou have no independent
1 MR. ROSENBAUM: Y egh. 11 knowledge outside of what you've learned at the Board of
12 THEWITNESS: Yes. 12 Education; isthat right?
13 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Anddoyouhaveany | 13 A.  Regarding the complaint, that's correct.
14  involvement -- strike that. 14 Q. Haveyou tasked anyonein the Department under
15 Have you read the complaint or a summary of the 15 youto see whether or not the allegations are true with
16 complaint? 16 respect to San Diego?
17 MR. VIRJEE: Which complaint? 17 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
18 MR. ROSENBAUM: The complaint against the San 18 evidence. Vague and ambiguous asto "tasked" and
19 Diego Unified School District. 19 "true" Lacksfoundation.
20 MR. VIRJEE: He sad he's aware of acomplaint. 20 THE WITNESS: The complaint processresidesin
21 Hedidn't say any particular complaint. 21 MarshaBedwdl's school and district accountability
22 MR. ROSENBAUM: That's the complaint I'm 22 division. | amawarethat her divisionisworking on
23 referring to. 23 the complaint.
24 MR. VIRJEE: How do you know? Y ou think 24 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Do you know the status of
25 there's been only one complaint in the history of al 25 wheretheyreat?
Page 326 Page 328
1 timeagainst San Diego. He may be familiar with 1 A | dont.
2 something completely different than what you're talking 2 Q. Have you asked them to make specific reports to
3 about. Callsfor speculation. Lacks foundation. Vague 3 you about the progress of examining that complaint?
4 and ambiguous as to "the complaint.” 4 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
5 MR. ROSENBAUM: Go ahead, Mr. Hill. 5 asto "specific reports.”
6 THE WITNESS: Actudly, Mr. Rosenbaum, now that 6 THE WITNESS: No.
7 counsel has stated his objections, | do need 7 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: What's your understanding as
8 clarification from you. 8 towhat the nature of the complaint is with respect to
9 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: How many complaints are you 9 curriculum entitlement?
10 aware of under the UCP with respect to the San Diego 10 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
11 Unified School District? 11 Callsfor speculation. Overly broad.
12 A. | am aware of a complaint regarding some 12 (Mr. Affeldt entered the room.)
13 curriculumissues and Title 1 issues, and also one 13 THE WITNESS: The complaint alleges that the
14 involving specia education. 14 schoal district embarked on reform efforts and did not
15 Q. Okay. Am | right, Mr. Hill, that the -- is 15 seek or gain the approval of parents as required by the
16 there acomplaint that deals with both curriculum issues 16 district's policy for parent involvement.
17 and Title 1 issues with respect to San Diego? 17 The complaint also alleges that Title 1 funds
18 A. Yes. 18 were coalesced and distributed to the detriment of
19 Q. Okay. And isthere a separate complaint that 19 Title1 students. That's my best recollection of the
20 dealswith specia education? 20 alegations.
21 A.  That's my recollection. 21 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: And with respect to the
22 Q. Okay. I'm not interested in the specia ed one 22 |atter, do you have an opinion as to whether or not
23 right now. 23 that'strue or not?
24 Have you read over the complaint that deals 24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calls for speculation.
25 with curriculum and Title 1 issues regarding San Diego? 25 Lacksfoundation. Callsfor an expert opinion.
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1 THE WITNESS: | dont. 1 not now included inthe API that would be beneficid to,
2 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. Do you know what the 2 infact, include?
3 phrase "grade promotion" means? 3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
4 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 4 to"beneficid." Vague and ambiguous asto
5 asto context. 5 "quantitative factors." Also vague and ambiguous asto
6 THE WITNESS: No, | don'. 6 currently included in the API. To the extent you're
7 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. Do you know -- maybe 7 asking what's included under the statute, the statute
8 you just answered this question. Do you know if there 8 speaksfor itself and it callsfor alegal conclusion.
9 have been performance standards adopted or considered 9 Alsocallsfor an expert opinion.
10 for use onthe STAR exam with respect to the grade 10 THEWITNESS: Yes.
11 promotion? 11 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Andtell mewhat your are
12 MR. VIRJEE: He's aready told you he doesn't 12 thoughtson that.
13 know what the term grade promotion means. How is he 13 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor
14 going to answer the question? 14 inadmissible opinion. Lacksfoundation. Cdls for
15 THE WITNESS: The answer is the same. 15 speculation.
16 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Arethere any other 16 THE WITNESS:. The statute directsthe
17 quantitative factors that you think would be appropriate 17 contemplation of so-caled noncognitive factorsinto the
18 toinclude with the API beyond those that are presently 18 API asthey can be, one, made available, and, two,
19 included? 19 transformed into a quantitative calculation, amodeling.
20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calls for speculation. 20 Beyond that there have been -- there has been a
21 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous as to 21 range of public discussions about whether -- of which
22 "quantitative factors." Also calls for expert opinion. 22 I'maware of, regarding whether other nine cognitive
23 Alsovague astotime. 23 factors might appropriately be included in the API.
24 MR. ROSENBAUM: One part of that objection is 24 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: What factors?
25 okay. 25 A. |don'tknow that | could point to any one
Page 330 Page 332
1 MR. VIRJEE: Actuadly, al parts are okay. 1 gpecificaly as one that could meet atest of being
2 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Have you given any thought 2 transformed into a quantitative modeling for the
3 astowhether or not there should be any additional 3 purposssof the API.
4 quantitative factors added to the API for purposes of 4 Q. Okay. Hasthere been tak in the Department of
5 thePSAA? 5 whichyou're aware as to whether or not additional
6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 6 factorswould be beneficia?
7 to"quantitative factors." Also vague astotime. 7 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
8 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence. 8 to"additional factors." Beyond what? And aso vague
9 Cadlsfor aninadmissible opinion. Lacks foundation. 9 and ambiguous as to "beneficia." Also vagueasto
10 THE WITNESS: Why don't you state the question 10 time.
11 onemoretime, please. 11 MR. SEFERIAN: Object to the extent it calls
12 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: I'mjust interested inyou, 12 for privileged information.
13 Mr. Hill. What I'm trying to figure out is you've told 13 THE WITNESS: There have been no discussions of
14 usthat there are quantitative factors that are part of 14 which I'maware. | would refer you to the Public School
15 theAPI, right? 15 Accountability Act advisory committee which may have had
16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 16 somediscussion.
17 to"quarntitative factors." | don't think he's ever used 17 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Y ou're not aware one way or
18 that term. 18 the other, correct?
19 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yes, he has. 19 A. Correct.
20 THE WITNESS: Let me make surewere clear on 20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.
21 that, Mr. Rosenbaum. What | described were factors that 21 MR. SEFERIAN: Would this be agood timefor a
22 can betransformed into a quantitative formula. 22 break?
23 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Are there any factors that 23 MR. ROSENBAUM: Sure.
24  arenot presently in the API -- have you ever given any 24 (Recess taken.)
25 thoughts as to whether or not there are factors that are 25 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: I'll mark as Exhibit 230 a
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1 28-page document. 1'm not going to ask you to read all 1 any of theissues that are identified following that
2 thepages. I'll try to point you in adirection. It's 2 colon, 1, additional $1.8 hillionin aMay revise of the
3 a28-page document. It'stitled curriculum devel opment 3 governor's budget; 2, incentive awards for educatorsto
4 and supplemental materials commission, minutes of 4 raise student scores; 3, concern for science testing; 4,
5 meeting May 18-19, 2000, parens, gpproved by full 5 large gapsin adequate funding for standards-aligned
6 commission July 20, 2000. 6 instructional materialsin the core areas; 5, tension
7 Let me have that marked and supply it to you, 7 caused by the perception of, quote, tons of new money
8 Mr. Hill, and in the meantime give all counsdl copies. 8 for new books, close quote, and the redlity that the
9 (Exhibit SAD-230 was marked.) 9 funding had been so low for so long; 6, limitations of
10 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Doyouknow --doyouhave | 10 annua alocation of instructiona funds compared to
11 Exhibit 230 in front of you? 11 need to shift to standards-aligned materialsin multiple
12 A. ldo. 12 subject areas and the high costs of instructional
13 Q. Do you know what the curriculum development and 13 maerids, 7, information gaps among school board
14 supplemental materials commission is? 14 members and school administrators about
15 A. ldo 15 sandards-aigned materials and funding?
16 Q. Whatisitasfar asyou know? 16 MR. VIRJEE: I'm going to object to your
17 A.  It'sanadvisory body to the State Board of 17 question to the extent you asked did he make a
18 Education that assists in the development and evaluation 18 presentation, because the document says specifically
19 of instructional materials and in the development of 19 right before those colons, Mr. Hill and the
20 dtate curriculum frameworks. 20 commissioners discussed the following. Doesn't say
21 Q.  Andhaveyou attended meetings of the 21 anything about a presentation. Doesn't say Mr. Hill
22 commission? 22 presented about anything.
23 A, lhave 23 MR. ROSENBAUM: | gppreciatethat. That's
24 Q. Anddoyourecdl, sir, whether or not you 24 fine.
25 attended the May 18, May 19, 2000 meeting? 25 Q. Il amend my question to reflect Mr. Virjee's
Page 334 Page 336
1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calsfor speculation. 1 concerns and say, do you recdl having a discussion with
2 Lacks foundation. 2 the commissioners on any or all of those subject
3 THE WITNESS: | don't have a specific 3 matters?
4 recollection. 4 A. Yes.
5 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. Let meask you, Sir, 5 Q. Andwith respect to large gapsin adequate
6 toturntopage4. The second full paragraph there, do 6 funding for standards-aligned instructional materialsin
7 youseewhereit says, Ms. Griffith then invited 7 the core areas, do you see that?
8 Mr. Scott Hill, chief deputy superintendent for 8 A. Tha'sNo.4.
9 accountability and administration to provide an update. 9 Q Y eah, on Exhibit 230. Do you see that?
10 Mr. Hill and the commissioners discussed the following, 10 A. | do.
11 andthere'sacolon and then ther€'s some content after 11 Q. What doyourecal -- what, if anything, do you
12 that. 12 recall about the discussion on that subject matter?
13 Do you see that? 13 A. | donot recal anything about that discussion.
14 A Ido 14 | can state unequivocdly that if therewas a
15 Q. Doesthat help refresh your recollection asto 15 discussion, it was not onethat | prompted. | do not
16 whether you were at that meeting? 16 recadll that discussion.
17 MR. VIRJEE: He's asking does that help you 17 Q. Okay. Sowhen you say you didn't prompt it,
18 recall whether you were actually a a meeting on May 18 18 your conclusion would be that one or more of the
19 or19. 19 commissioners prompted it?
20 THE WITNESS: | could certainly check my 20 MR. VIRJEE: If therewas such adiscussionis
21 cdendar. | do not have a specific recollection of 21 what hesaid.
22 this. 22 THE WITNESS: If there was such adiscussion
23 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Didyouat any pointinyour | 23 withthe basis of that discussion being a concern or
24 tenure as chief deputy superintendent for accountability 24 perception that there were large gaps in adequate
25 and administration make a presentation with respect to 25 funding for standards-aligned instructional materias,
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1 that discussion was not prompted by me. 1 materials or went through a process of being more
2 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Arethese meetings 2 ddiberate to wait for the full adoptions that occurred
3 taped, to your knowledge? 3 in 2001 for math, 2002 for language arts.
4 A. Theymaybe. | don't know for certain, but 4 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: What do you mean by "more
5 they may be. 5 strategic'?
6 Q. Doyouknow if they're transcribed as with a 6 A. Theadoptions of instructional materias by
7 reporter? ‘ 7 digtrictsis a significant, time-consuming process that
8 MR. VIRJEE: Y oumeanisareporter present? 8 includeslots of committee work by teachers, and to do
9 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yeah. 9 that and dedicate yoursdlf to instructional materials
10 THE WITNESS: | don't bdlieve so. 10 that you're going to end up using for often six yearsis
11 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. Do you recall 11 apretty intensive investment of time and ultimately of
12 anything about a discussion with respect toitem 5 12 your fiscal resources.
13 there, tension caused by the perception of tons of new 13 Because the state was S0 anxious to get
14 money for books and the reality that the funding had 14 standards-aligned materialsinto classrooms as soon as
15 been solow for solong? 15 possible, we held this interim adoption, the AB 2519
16 A. Thediscussionthat | recall had atenor to it 16 adoption, and that wasin 1999. Districts could use
17 that's not quite consistent with the wording that's 17 their instructional materials resources to purchase
18 there. 18 materialsfrom that list and then determine whether they
19 Q. Okay. Tel methebasisof your answer. 19 were going to use those materias for the time
20 MR. VIRJEE: Y ouwant himto tell you what he 20 established in the statute for the use of those
21 recdls, isthat what you're asking? 21 materials and/or purchase materias from the regular
22 MR. ROSENBAUM: Sure. 22 adoptions cycles, which were 2001, 2002.
23 (Mr. Affeldt left the room.) 23 Q. Yousad districts were anxious to get the
24 THE WITNESS: My recallectionisthat the 24  materialsin the classrooms, did | understand you
25 commission raised concerns that were being raised very 25 correctly?
Page 338 Page 340
1 publicaly by anumber of organizations and individuals 1 A. No,I'msorry, | did not say that. The state
2 during the time of that budget development where there 2 wasintheprocess, as |'ve described over two days,
3 wasdtill lots of money and where there was -- where 3 tryingaignall of our systems behind standards. The
4 concern was raised that districts were -- that school 4 date policymakers, the legidature and governor were
5 districts were accumulating large sums of instructional 5 anxiousto ensure that standards-aligned material wasin
6 materias money and that they were simply hording it, 6 Cdliforniaclassrooms as soon as possible, which iswhy
7 and the concern that was being raised in reaction to 7 the 2519 adoption process was undertaken.
8 thoseissues was that we had been, we, the state, had 8 Q. Didyouever hear any reasons expressed asto
9 compacted the schedule for standards-aligned materids 9 why they were anxious?
10 adoptions to the point where districts needed to make 10 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
11 some drategic decisions. 11 asto"they."
12 We had, during my tenure with the curriculum 12 (Mr. Affeldt entered the room.)
13 commission, had embarked on the AB 2519 adoptions 13 THE WITNESS: My persond opinion is that
14 process, which was designed to provide a significant 14  policymakers were doing their level best to demonstrate
15 influx of fiscal resources and significant -- first step 15 inaction and in resources the commitment to a
16 intheintroduction of standards-aligned materialsin 16 standards-based system that was fully aligned.
17 math and language arts to classrooms, followed closdaly 17 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: And that would be part of
18 by full-scale adoptions more consistent with the regular 18 establishing that commitment; is that right?
19 adoption schedule of standards-aligned materids. We 19 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous.
20 just completed that process with the language arts 20 MR. VIRJEE: What would be part?
21 adoption earlier this month by the State Board. 21 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Haveyou ever heard the
22 So the lament that was being expressed et that 22 concern expressed that districts lack resourcesto
23 time by the commissioners and by others was that 23 purchase standards-aigned instructiona materials for
24 digtricts had to be strategic in whether they 24 ther schools and classrooms?
25 immediately went out and purchased AB 2519-approved | 25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
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1 totimeand"resources.” 1 Q. Andyou just made some rectangles around
2 MR. ROSENBAUM: At any point in your tenure. 2 portions of 231?
3 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 3 A Yes
4 asto"standards-aligned materials.” 4 Q. |justwanttoreflect that that's -- there
5 THE WITNESS: There are aways concerns about 5 weren't any marks on that document when you received it;
6 adequate resources for schools. | cannot recollect a 6 isthat right?
7 specific comment about the lack of resources for 7 A. That'scorrect.
8 ingtructiona materials that are standards-aligned. 8 (Mr. Affeldt entered the room.)
9 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Whenyou say "there are 9 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. And do you fromtime
10 aways concerns about adequate resources,” what do you 10 totime respond to calls from the media?
11 mean by that, "for schools'? 11 A. Asinfrequently as| can.
12 A. Thisismyopinion. Schoolsarelike many 12 Q. Okay. And directing your attention to page --
13 public agencies dependent on -- dependent upon the 13 page 3 of what's been marked as Exhibit 231, do you see
14 development of resources through apublic process that 14 the paragraph that says, beginning with the next school
15 isdependent upon state revenues, and there was dways a 15 year, Cdlifornia schools that do not improve performance
16 need and away to spend more money. 16 could face state takeover. More than any single group,
17 Q.  Andwhen you say there's dways aneed to spend 17 the business community in Californiawas the force
18 more money, what's the basis of that answer? 18 behind high-stakes, standards-based testing, Hill, said.
19 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 19 Now, with respect to the phrase more than any
20 astocontext. Lacks foundation. 20 single group, the business community in Californiawas
21 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, we could al 21 theforce behind high-stakes, standards-based testing,
22 idedize agtate of public education for students, and 22 haveyou ever stated in sum are or substance that
23 if you -- however, individualistic those states may be, 23 sentiment?
24 if you backtrack from there, you often get to a point of 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. It's overly broad.
25 redlity. That'swhat I'm speaking to. 25 Vague and ambiguous. Lacks foundation. Vague and
Page 342 Page 344
1 MR. ROSENBAUM: Let's mark as Exhibit 231 a 1 ambiguous asto context.
2 four-page document dated November 16, 2001. It hasa 2 THE WITNESS: The reference, the context and
3 logo at the beginning Office Depot, how can you crush 3 referencein which | made this statement was the
4 the competition, from the Business Courier. 4 strength of the business community in pushing for a
5 (Exhibit SAD 231 was marked.) 5 system of standards, assessments and accountability.
6 (Mr. Affeldt left the room.) 6 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Y ou did make that statement
7 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: I'mgoingto put thisin 7 though; isthat right?
8 front of you. I'mjust going to ask you about a piece 8 MR. VIRJEE: Which statement? There's no quote
9 of this. Feel freetolook at as much asyoud like. 9 here Yousaidinsum and substance.
10 [I'll give counsel copies of Exhibit 231. 10 THE WITNESS: This statement can be
11 Okay. Mr. Hill, you can take as much time as 11 understood -- the narrative provided by the writer can
12 you want, but do you have what's been marked as Exhibit 12 beunderstood in that context.
13 231 infront of you? 13 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Maybeyou just answered
14 A. |do 14 this. That'swhy I'm asking the question, because it's
15 Q. Doyoufromtimeto time answer -- 15 not in quotation marks. Did you in sum or substance
16 MR. VIRJEE: Did youwant himto read it and 16 say, more than any single group, the business community
17 take as much time as he wants, like you said? Because 17 in Cdliforniawas the force behind high-stakes,
18 if youdid, et him finish looking at it. 18 standards-based testing? Did you say it then or have
19 MR. ROSENBAUM: I'm sorry. Go ahead, Mr. Hill. 19 you ever made that statement?
20 MR. VIRJEE: Go ahead and take your time and 20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
21 read it because he's going to ask you about it. 21 to"sum and substance."
22 THE WITNESS: Okay, Mr. Rosenbaum. 22 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad.
23 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Just for the record, 23 THE WITNESS: Thisreporter -- the answer is|
24 Mr. Hill, youve got Exhibit 231 in front of you? 24 don't recall making that specific statement. What | do
25 A. Yes 25 recall very specifically is this reporter was asking
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1 information about Harcourt from the perspective of state 1 development of standards and assessments and
2 clients, and the conversation included queries from the 2 accountability.
3 reporter about how we -- about how states are making the 3 Q. BY MRROSENBAUM: Didyou ever hear any person
4 transition or aretrying to deal with both aneed and 4 or persons within the business community make these
5 desirefor comparative information which is provided by 5 satements or express these sentiments?
6 norm-reference test and also the desire to reflect their 6 MR. VIRJEE: These exact statements?
7 own state standards.” 7 THE WITNESS: Yes.
8 And this reporter asked me about -- since | had 8 Q BY MR. ROSENBAUM: In Cdlifornia?
9 been executive director of the standards commission, 9 A Yes.
10 asked me about the history of the development of 10 Q.  Onmorethan one occasion?
11 standards, and the response | provided to the reporter 1 A Yes.
12 focused on the fact and the reality that throughout the 12 Q Do you recal who some of the individuals were
13 nationthe call for standards was driven by a business 13 who expressed that?
14 community that did not perceive that workers who were 14 A. | cannot give you specific people, times,
15 entering the work force were prepared with the kinds of 15 places, but we had many members of the business
16 skills and knowledge and know-how that they believed 16 community who were members of the academic standards
17 their new workers needed, and it was a-- it became a 17 commission who were appointed because they came from a
18 rallying cry of business communities throughout the 18 business background who often expressed those very
19 nation to establish standards for what students should 19 sentiments.
20 know and do, aligned assessments and then an 20 In addition, leading groups in California
21 accountability system to have teeth behind it. 21 educetion today, such asthe California Business for
22 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Thanks. Thenext paragraph | 22 Education Excellence, Ed Voice and others have, at least
23 of what's been marked as Exhibit 231 says, quote, the 23 inmy recollection, stood by these kinds of sentiments
24 students making the transition to the work force were 24 asaway to continue to support and reinforce the need
25 not well-prepared, close quote, he said, period. Open 25 for standards, assessments and accountability.
Page 346 Page 348
1 quote, they didn't have the basic skills and the strong 1 Q. Didyou personaly have an opinion asto
2 ethics and understanding needed to develop those skills, 2 whether or not those sentiments were true or not?
3 period, close quote. 3 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague astotime.
4 Did you make those statements in sum or 4 MR. VIRJEE: Also callsfor speculation. Lacks
5 substance? 5 foundation.
6 A. | don't recall specifically making that 6 MR. ROSENBAUM: It does lack foundation.
7 statement. That statement is consistent with what | 7 Q. Didyouhaveabasisinyour mind to determine
8 just described to you as the conversation that | had 8 whether or not those sentiments were true or not?
9 withthisreporter. 9 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
10 Q.  Okay. Wasthat your view? 10 totime. Callsfor speculation. Lacks foundation.
11 MR. VIRJEE: What was his view, what is here or 11 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad.
12 what he said was consistent or what he said earlier? 12 MR. VIRJEE: Also speculative asto "basis."
13 MR. ROSENBAUM: What ison 231, the students | 13 THE WITNESS: No, | did not.
14 making the transition to the work force were not 14 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Wereyou ever present when
15 well-prepared, they didn't have the basic skills and the 15 those-- dtrike that.
16 strong ethics and understanding needed to develop those | 16 When those sentiments were expressed, was there
17 skills. 17 anytimethat you can recall when Superintendent Eastin
18 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Asked and answered. | 18 was present?
19 MR. VIRJEE: Alsoincomplete. 19 A. | don't have aspecific recollection. Shewas
20 THE WITNESS: Y ou're asking meif thisis my 20 amember of the academic standards commission, but | do
21 specific persona opinion as stated here? 21 not have a specific recollection of her presence.
22 MR. ROSENBAUM: Y eah. 22 Q. Didyou ever hear her respond with respect to
23 THE WITNESS:. The answer isno, | was 23 those sentiments?
24 reflecting the comments that the business community was | 24 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
25 using to justify and pursue an activerolein the 25 to"respond.” It callsfor speculation as to whether
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1 they were with respect to those sentiments. 1 (Exhibit SAD-232 was marked.)
2 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | can't recal a 2 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Takealook at thet,
3 specific example of her sentiments on this. 3 Mr. Hill. Exhibit 232 isin front of you?
4 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: How about Governor Davis? 4 A. Yes.
5 MR. VIRJEE: How about Governor Davis? 5 Q. Takealook atit, please. Haveyou had a
6 MR. ROSENBAUM: That'satopic, isn't it? 6 chanceto review what's been marked as Exhibit 2327
7 MR. VIRJEE: You choose. Shall we make the 7 A. | have, Mr. Rosenbaum.
8 list? 8 Q. Okay. Do youhavearecallection of being
9 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Have you ever heard Governor 9 interviewed by a Sacramento Bee reporter regarding new
10 Davis respond to those sentiments? 10 school standards at about this time?
11 A No, | have not. 11 A. | do.
12 Q. Or Secretary Mazzoni? 12 Q. Okay. Do you seewhereit says, Hill, colon,
13 A.  No, | havenot. 13 weare going to see the standards implemented in stages,
14 Q.  OrMr. Mockler? 14 peiod? Frst, wewill seethem being used to develop a
15 A. | don'trecal Mr. Mockler expressing those 15 matrix exam and dignment with the, parens, Stanford
16 sentiments. 16 Achievement Test 9, close paren, period. Then there
17 Q.  Oranyone on the State Board? 17 will be some very specific sate activities, colon, open
18 A. |don'trecal any present member of the State 18 paren, redlignment of, close parens, curriculum
19 Board expressing those sentiments. 19 frameworks, textbooks and teacher training, period. Do
20 Q.  Any past member? 20 you seethat?
21 A. | don't recall any specific member, but I'm 21 A. | do.
22 less certain, and the reason why, again, is a contextual 22 Q. Was that matrix exam ever developed?
23 one. Theissues that are described and expressed in 23 A. No.
24 thisarticle are consistent with the period of timein 24 Q. Do you know why not?
25  which the standards movement was being developed in 25 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
Page 350 Page 352
1 Cdifornia 1 Cadlsfor speculation.
2 Today's current board members, although many of 2 MR. VIRJEE: Also asked and answered. You
3 themareinfluential and important business people, have 3 asked him about the matrix exam about an hour and a haf
4  the benefit of already seeing a standards assessment and 4 ago, and he told you exactly the answer to that.
5 accountability system being put in place. 5 MR. ROSENBAUM: | don't think he told mewhy it
6 Q. Mr. Hill, I notice you are afrequent and often 6 wasn't developed.
7 requested spesker on California education policy, 7 Q. Doyouknow why it wasn't developed?
8 including standards assessment, accountability. And 8 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacksfoundation. Objection.
9 that's on your resume? 9 THEWITNESS: Yes.
10 A. Yes 10 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Whyistha?
11 Q. Doyou keep copies of your speeches? 11 A.  Thematrix examsdo not provide for an
12 A. No, I dont 12 individual student score report asto their performance.
13 Q. Doyou have any copies of any of the speeches 13 The State Board of Education in trying to focus on
14 that you've ddivered? 14 student learning expressed concerns about investing in
15 A. No 15 anexamthat did not yield an individua student's
16 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 16 score.
17 evidence. 17 Q. Now, let meask you, Sir, to turn to the second
18 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Let'smark asExhibit232a | 18 page of what's been marked as Exhibit 232. It says,
19 two-page document. It'saprintout, Mr. Hill, and it 19 question, what do you see as the mgjor barrier to
20 saysat thetop, copyright 1998, McClatchy Newspapers, 20 implementing standards in Cdlifornia? And then it says,
21 Inc., Sacramento Bee, dated April 14, 1998, and the 21 Hill, colon, the mgjor barriers | would characterize
22 headlineis developing new school standards, and the 22 as-- I'msorry, start over. Themgjor barriers| would
23 bylineis Deborah Anderluh, A-n-d-e-r-I-u-h. I'm going 23 characterize as, comma, first, teacher preparation,
24 to have this marked as Exhibit 232 and supply dll 24 readiness and acceptance, period. Second, the long-term
25 counsd with copies. 25 support of policymakers, period. Third, comma, the
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1 whole host of variables people tak about, colon, 1 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Why isthat?
2 digning textbooks, aligning teacher training, adequate 2 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
3 resources, period. Fourth, public support and 3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.
4 understanding, period. 4 THE WITNESS: | would stand by my prior answer
5 Do you see that on Exhibit 2327 5 that if state policymakers identify what you want all
6 A. Yesldo 6 studentsto know and do, teachers are the delivery
7 Q. Didyoumakethat statement in sum or 7 systemfor that, and you must ensure that they have
8 substance? 8 adequate knowledge, training, preparation and resources
9 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. There's severd 9 todothat.
10 statementsthere. 10 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: And do you know, sir, the
11 MR. VIRJEE: If you have aspecific 11 extent to which teachers do have that adequate
12 recollection, you can recall what you said, then you 12 knowledge?
13 needto answer his question. If you don't recdl, just 13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.
14 sayyoudon'trecal. It's1998. 14 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad. Lacks foundation.
15 THE WITNESS: | do recall making that 15 Cdlsfor speculation. Vague and ambiguous.
16 statement. 16 THE WITNESS: Right here at this point in time
17 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. When you sad 17 | cannot answer your question.
18 "digning teacher training," what did you mean by that? 18 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Y oudon't know?
19 A. | meant that up to the point of -- up to the 19 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.
20 poaint of having our state-adopted standards, teacher 20 THE WITNESS: | don't know.
21 professiona development may havefocusedonanynumber | 21 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: To your knowledge, has the
22 of things. From the point of having standards on, if 22 Department undertaken any investigation or inquiry to
23 the State hasidentified what it wants all studentsto 23 determine the extent to which teachers have adequate
24 know and do, that must be the focus of professiona 24 knowledge as you've defined it?
25 development activities for teachers to support learning 25 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered.
Page 354 Page 356
1 intheclassroom. 1 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence.
2 Q. Anddoyouknow the extent to which teacher 2 Overly broad.
3 professional development has been digned with state 3 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous as to
4 dandards? 4 investigation or inquiry."
5 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation. 5 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous as to
6 Lacksfoundation. Cdlsfor an expert opinion asto 6 “adeguate knowledge." No foundation. Callsfor
7 “dignment” and teacher development, and also asked and 7 speculation.
8 answered. 8 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | cannot point to
9 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | cannot provide 9 aspecific evaluation. | would point you, however, to
10 you with a specific answer to the question. | would 10 what isasignificant trend in increased student
11 refer you, though, to significant activities and 11 achievement as one bit of evidence to support the idea
12 commitments and resources developed by the legidature 12 that that investment is paying off.
13 and governor in support of the very issue at hand, 13 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you know if there are
14 professiond development in support of the standards. 14 some schools where teachers do have that adequate
15 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. Becausethat's 15 knowledge in larger numbers or percentages than in other
16 awfully important, isn't it? 16 schools?
17 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Overly broad. Vague 17 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
18 and ambiguous asto "important.” Lacks foundation. 18 to that "adequate knowledge." Calls for speculation.
19 Cadlsfor aninadmissible opinion. Callsfor 19 Lacks foundation.
20 speculdtion. 20 THE WITNESS: | do not.
21 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous asto 21 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Do you know if anyonein the
22 what is"awfully important.” 22 Department knows that?
23 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, your question 23 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Callsfor
24 concerns, is professiona development and support of 24 speculation. Assumes facts not in evidence.
25 teachersin relation to our standardsimportant? Yes. 25 THE WITNESS: | do not know.
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1 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Hasthere been any attempt 1 expert on adequacy in terms of funding for schools.
2 by the Department of which you're aware to find out? 2 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Do you know if anyonein the
3 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin 3 Department has looked into the question as to what
4  evidence. Vague and ambiguous. Overly broad. 4 amount of resources would be adequate to support that
5 MR. ROSENBAUM: Whether some -- whether schools 5 system?
6 differ interms of the number of percent of teachers 6 MR. VIRJEE: Same objections.
7  with adequate knowledge. 7 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnotin
8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 8 evidence.
9 to"adequate knowledge." 9 THE WITNESS: | know of no such inquiry.
10 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence. 10 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: It'sterribly important that
11 THE WITNESS: | do not know. 11 there be adequate resources to support that system?
12 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Now, where you used the 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
13 phrase adequate resources what does that mean as you 13 to "terribly important." Calls for speculation. Lacks
14 usedit? 14 foundation. Vague and ambiguous as to adequacy of
15 MR. SEFERIAN: Referring to Exhibit 2327 15 resources.
16 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yesh. Thank you. 16 MR. SEFERIAN: Callsfor an inadmissible
17 THE WITNESS: That term was purposdy used. In 17 opinion.
18 making atransition to a very different way of doing 18 MR. VIRJEE: Alsovague astotime.
19 businessin California schoals, beginning with standards 19 THE WITNESS: It is apparent that you need
20 anddoing al the dignment work and developing 20 adequate resources, but in my mind | really don't know
21 assessment and accountability systems, thisis 1998, 21 what the beginning or ending point of that conversation
22 there was no way to understand or predict what adequacy 22 would be.
23 inresources would mean to support that system. And so 23 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Why isthat apparent?
24  my comment was intended to suggest that in light of the 24 A.  I'msorry?
25 commitment we had to ensuring that students would meet 25 Q. Yousayitisapparent. I'masking why isthat
Page 358 Page 360
1 our learning objections (sic), that we would need to 1 apparent?
2 understand the resource issue. 2 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections.
3 Q BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Sitting here today, do you 3 THE WITNESS: It is apparent becalise resources
4 know what the amount of resources would be to support 4 areneeded to run our public schools, period.
5 that system adequately? 5 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Are there schoolstoday, to
6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 6 your knowledge, Mr. Hill, that don't have adequate
7 to"adeguacy." Also vague and ambiguous as to "amount 7 resourcesto support that system?
8 of resources." Callsfor speculation. Lacks 8 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
9 foundation. Overbroad. Callsfor an expert opinion. 9 toadequacy. Cdlsfor speculation. Lacks foundation.
10 Compound depending on what kind of resources you're 10 Cadlsfor an expert opinion. Compound with respect to
11 talking about for what part of the program. 11 which particular resources may or may not be adequate
12 THE WITNESS: | do not know that. | would 12 for which particular parts of the program.
13 point you, however, to the reality that since 1998 the 13 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto that
14 state of Californiahas invested in real dollars $12 14 ‘“system."
15 billion in additional resources for California public 15 THE WITNESS: | don't have any specific
16 schools. 16 knowledge, Mr. Rosenbaum. But | would also point out
17 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: And how would you -- do you 17 that -- just like | had some concerns about some of the
18 know how you would go about figuring whether or not the 18 assumptions that you brought to the issue of textbooks,
19 resources allocated are adequate to support that system? 19 | would bring the same concerns to any assumptions that
20 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague asto time. 20 are made about adequacy in terms of whether what is
21 Cadlsfor speculation. Lacksfoundation. Vagueasto 21 currently available is adequate or not is a function of
22 adequacy. Callsfor an expert opinion. Compound asto 22 many thingsin terms of distribution, prioritizing,
23 which part of which resources for which part of the 23 flexibility, those kinds of things. It's avery complex
24 program. 24 issue
25 THE WITNESS: | do not know. | am not an 25 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you know if there are
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1 districtstoday that don't have adeguate resources? 1 thedistribution system?
2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered. 2 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
3 That's the question that you just asked and he 3 to"thedistribution system." Misstates his testimony.
4 just answered it. 4 THE WITNESS: | do not know of any such
5 MR. ROSENBAUM: No, the question | asked before 5 inquiry.
6 was about schools. 6 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. What do you mean by
7 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 7 prioritizing"?
8 asto "adequate resources." Overly broad. Callsfor 8 A. Mr. Rosenbaum, when | spoke of low-performing
9 inadmissible opinion. Lacks foundation. Calls for 9 schoals, | will give you just one example of what |
10 speculation. 10 mean. Itisoften the case that low-performing schools
11 THE WITNESS: | do not have that information. 11 arenot among the least funded schoolsin our state.
12 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Do you know if anyone in the 12 There are often more categorical programs to support
13 Department has investigated that question? 13 students at those schools than often in higher-achieving
14 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. In addition 14 schoals, but the problem is that the attention and focus
15 assumes facts not in evidence. 15 of theresourcesis divided amongst many categorical
16 THE WITNESS: | do not know of any such 16 programs, divided amongst many staff, and thereis --
17 inquiry. 17 and oftenit isthe lack of a coherent focus that is
18 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Or anywhere in the State 18 supported by data that is a barrier for improvement.
19 Board of Education? 19 Q. Andthat's animportant thing to understand,
20 MR. SEFERIAN: Same objections. 20 right, in order to achieve performance and conserve
21 THE WITNESS: | do not know of any such 21 resources; isn't that right?
22 inquiry. 22 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
23 MR. ROSENBAUM: Can you please have Mr. Hill's 23 to"that's an important thing."
24 answer read back when he talked about distribution and 24 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation. Callsfor an
25 flexibility, please. 25 inadmissible opinion. Vague and ambiguous asto
Page 362 Page 364
1 (Record read.) 1 "conserveresources."
2 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: When you say "distribution," 2 MR. VIRJEE: Alsoincomplete hypothetical.
3 what do you mean? 3 THE WITNESS: | think | would reiterate my
4 A.  We apportion monies to schoolsin various 4 earlier testimony, that in my opinion, focusing on the
5 categorica programs and in some block grants. Itis 5 prioritizing of resources is akey to improvement,
6 possible that changing the way one way or the other, 6 especialy for low-performing schoal.
7 consolidating one way or the other may make a difference 7 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: And some districts can use
8 intheway that schools are able to use and target their 8 hepintermsof prioritizing resources; isn't that
9 resources. 9 right? Isn't that your experience?
10 Q.  And, to your knowledge, has anyonein the 10 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Lacks foundation.
11 Department looked into that question about whether or 11 Compound question. Callsfor an inadmissible opinion.
12 not there should be changes in the distribution system? 12 MR. VIRJEE: Also assumesfactsnotin
13 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Assumes factsnotin 13 evidence. Assumes he has any specific experience with
14 evidence. 14 respect to specific districts on that issue.
15 MR. VIRJEE: Also mischaracterizes his 15 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, | would point you
16 testimony. 16 tothe action plans submitted to the State Board by
17 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous as to 17 externa evaluators which may or may not address some of
18 "distribution system." 18 thoseconcerns. I'll leaveit at that.
19 THE WITNESS: I'm not aware of any such 19 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Do you know, Mr. Hill, how
20 investigation. But | would also point out that the 20 many [I/USP digible schools that are not part of the
21 partiesresponsible and capable of making such changes 21 1lI/USP program would benefit in terms of student
22 arethelegislature and governor. 22 achievement from prioritizing as you've defined it?
23 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: And, to your knowledge, has 23 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Assumesfactsnotin
24 anyone in the Department ever been asked for his or her 24 evidence, and vague and ambiguous asto "II/USP digible
25 opinion as to whether or not there should be changesin 25 schools.”
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1 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation. Callsfor 1 that the federal government is undertaking intervention
2 speculation. 2 incertain schools pursuant to Title 1 provisions?
3 MR. VIRJEE: Also calsfor an expert opinion. 3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
4 THE WITNESS: | do not know the answer to that. 4 to"intervention." Vagueastotime. Alsovagueasto
5 Asl'veexplained prior, such decisions around the 5 geography.
6 distribution and targeting of resources should be built 6 MR. SEFERIAN: Lacks foundation.
7 upon every school's performance data. 7 THE WITNESS: | need some help from you,
8 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Okay. And do you know if 8 Mr. Rosenbaum, in clarifying your question. The federal
9 anyonein the Department or the State Board has 9 government, as| understand it, would not be taking
10 invegtigated asto whether or not there are [1/USP 10 direct intervention with any school.
11 €ligible schools that aren't part of that program who 11 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: They'relooking into certain
12 would benefit from examination in terms of the way they 12 schools?
13 prioritize funds? 13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Asked and answered. 14 to"lookinginto." Also vague astotime.
15 That's exactly the question you asked about two hours 15 MS. READ-SPANGLER: Areyou talking about CSRD?
16 ago. Cdlsfor speculation. Lacks foundation. 16 THE WITNESS: | still need some help from you,
17 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumes facts not in evidence. 17 Mr. Rosenbaum, in terms of your question.
18 Compound question. Vague and ambiguous asto 18 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Areyou aware of about a
19 ‘investigation." 19 dozen schools statewide that the federal government is
20 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous as to 20 concerned about, the Title 1 schools?
21 IIJ/USP schools that are digible -- or "l1I/USP digible 21 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
22 schools" Excuseme. 22 asto"concerned about." Lacks foundation.
23 THE WITNESS: While | do not know of any 23 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, are you referring
24 specific inquiry, Mr. Rosenbaum, | would also point you 24 to program improvement schools that -- schools under the
25 to AB 961, which will, starting in July of 2002, attempt 25 former ESEA?
Page 366 Page 368
1 toassist some of those schools aong the lines you've 1 MR. ROSENBAUM: Yesh.
2 addressed. 2 THE WITNESS: I'm aware of those schools.
3 Q BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Do you know how many of 3 Q BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Have you had any discussions
4 those schools? 4 with anybody in the federal government about those
5 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Thelegidation 5 schools?
6 gpesksfor itsdf. 6 A. No.
7 THE WITNESS: Sitting right hereright now, | 7 Q. Hasanyonein the Department, so far as you
8 donot know. 8 know?
9 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: What percentage of those 9 A.  Idonotknow of any such conversations.
10 schooals, do you have a ballpark? 10 Q. Do you know what schools are being examined?
11 MR. VIRJEE: Percentage of which school? 11 A. | donot know specifically which schools are
12 MR. ROSENBAUM: Thell/ USP schoolsthat aren't 12 being examined.
13 part of the program. 13 Q.  Doyouknow if anyone in the Department has
14 MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto "part of 14 been tasked with the responsibility of identifying those
15 the program.” 15 schools?
16 THE WITNESS: The statute says quite clearly 16 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous
17 that theintent isto capture all digible decile 1 17 asto "identifying."
18 schools, and to the extent money remains, decile 2 18 THE WITNESS: Y es, Mr. Rosenbaum, are you
19 schoolsareto be assisted. 19 referring specificaly to the identify of such schools?
20 MS. READ-SPANGLER: Can you read back his 20 MR. ROSENBAUM: Let's start there.
21 answer. 21 THE WITNESS: The identification of such
22 (Record read.) 22 schools would come out of the performance data
23 THEWITNESS: I'm sorry, al digible schools 23 associated with Mr. Padias division.
24 that are not aready in the program. 24 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Okay. And do you know why
25 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Areyou aware, Mr. Hill, 25 the federal government is interested in those schools?
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1 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cals for speculation. 1 A. CLASistheCdifornialLearning Assessment

2 Lacksfoundation. Vague and ambiguous asto 2 System, which was the state testing system in existence

3 ‘interested." 3 between 1994 and 1990 -- 1990 or so and around 1995.

4 MR. SEFERIAN: Overly broad. 4 Q. Didyouever sayinsum or substance, CLAS was

5 THE WITNESS: Asyou've asked it, | don't know 5 assessment driven, aback door into what was taught?

6 why. 6 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Callsfor speculation.

7 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Have there been any 7 Lacksfoundation. If you can remember using those

8 discussionsin the Department about these schools or 8 specific words at one specific point, you can say that.

9 this processthat you're aware of? 9 If you want to show him adocuments, that fine. But you
10 A, Yes 10 haveto remember what you have said in your wholelife
11 Q. Okay. Andwho has beeninvolved in those 11 about something.

12 discussions? 12 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto
13 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Calls for speculation. 13 context.
14 Lacks foundation. 14 THE WITNESS: | do not remember making such a
15 THE WITNESS: Superintendent Eastin, myself, 15 datement.
16 Ms. Faucette, Ms. Mendoza and Wendy Harris. 16 MR. ROSENBAUM: Just take aminute, please.
17 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Okay. And have there been a 17 (Recess taken.)
18 meeting or meetings at which this subject has been 18 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Do you have direct
19 discussed? 19 responsibilities with respect to ELS?
20 A. Yes 20 MR. VIRJEE: Vague and ambiguous asto "direct
21 Q.  How many? 21 responsihilities’ and "ELS."
22 A. | ocouldnt giveyou atotal. | don't know. 22 THE WITNESS: | do not have direct
23 Q. I mean, canyou give meabalpark, adozen, 23 responsibility for English learners.
24  half dozen, one or two? 24 MR. VIRJEE: I'll also object as asked and
25 A. Under Ms. Mendoza's branch, the work and 25 answered.
Page 370 Page 372

1 support of those schoolsis aregular part of their 1 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Who in the Department are

2 work. | do not know how often they discuss that work. 2 thekey people with respect to ELS?

3 Q. She'sthe person most knowledgeable about this 3 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as

4 sofar asyou know? 4  to"key people”

5 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 5 THE WITNESS: English learners are supported in

6 asto "person most knowledgeable." Also callsfor a 6 the Department by a unit within Ms. Mendoza's branch and

7 lega opinion. 7 within Ms. Bedwell's division. In addition -- well,

8 MR. VIRJEE: Also vague and ambiguous as to 8 Il leaveit at that.

9 "this." 9 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do youknow whoin
10 MR. ROSENBAUM: Trying to save you time, 10 Ms. Mendozas branch has principa responsibility or
11 Mr. Hill. 11 responsibilities?

12 THE WITNESS: Ms. Mendoza has the 12 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as
13 responsibility in her branch for the support of those 13 to"principal responsbility."

14 schools. 14 MR. SEFERIAN: Assumesfacts not in evidence.
15 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you have any duties or 15 THE WITNESS: Jan Mayer isthe unit manager for
16 responsibilities specifically with respect to those 16 the unit that works on English learner issues.

17 schools? 17 MR. SEFERIAN: How do you spell that?

18 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Cdlsfor speculation. 18 THEWITNESS: M-a-y-e-r.

19 Lacks foundation. Also vague and ambiguous as to "those 19 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: And how about in

20 schoals." 20 Ms. Bedwdl's shop?

21 THE WITNESS: No. 21 A. LorieBurnham-Massey is the unit manager for

22 Q. BY MR.ROSENBAUM: Do you know what CLAS is, 22 the Comite follow-up unit. The English learner

23 CL-A-S? 23 monitoring unit currently is vacant in terms of a

24 A. ldo. 24 manager.

25 Q. Whatisit? 25 Q. Doyouknow if the Department is required by
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1 thelegidatureto issue areport regarding 1 DEPONENT'S CHANGES OR CORRECTIONS
2 implementation of Proposition 2277 2 Nf;tg If yg” are ad:r'][‘? tggg“:ftai mon)gdpgnt trf‘e
- exact words you want to add. If you are ing from
3 ) M R SEFERIAN:_ Objection. Cdls fqr an 3 your testi mor)mly, print the exact W)cgrds you want '?o
4 inadmissible legal opinion. Vague and ambiguous asto delete. Specify with "Add" or "Delete” and sign this
5 ‘"required." Lacks foundation. 4 form.
6 THE WITNESS: | am not immediately aware of any 5 DEPOSITIONOF.  NATHAN SCOTT HILL, VOLUMEII
7 such requirement. CASE: WILLIAMSVS STATE
6 DATE OF DEPOSITION: FRIDAY, JANUARY 18, 2002
8 Q. BY MR ROSENBAUM: Do you know about any report 7 1, , have the following
9 in preparation with respect to implementation of 227 by corrections to make to my deposition:
10 somebody within the Department of Education? 8
11 A | do not. PAGE LINE CHANGE/ADD/DELETE
9
12 Q. Okay. Do you have responsibilities with 10
13 respect to classroom size reduction? 11
14 MR. VIRJEE: Objection. Vague and ambiguous as 12
15 to"responsibilities.” ii
16 MR. SEFERIAN: Vague and ambiguous asto 15
17 “classroom size reduction.” 16
18 THE WITNESS: | do not have direct 17
19 responsibility. ig
20 Q. BY MR. ROSENBAUM: Does anyonein the 20
21 Department, so far as you know? 21
22 MR. SEFERIAN: Objection. Vague and ambiguous 22
23 asto "classroom size reduction™ and "responsibility.” 3?1
24 THE WITNESS: Mr. Rosenbaum, to the extent that
25 the Department isinvolved with class size reduction, 25 NATHAN SCOTT HILL DATE
Page 374 Page 376
1 thoseresponsihilities are invested with Dewayne Brook's 1 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE
2 divison. 2
3 MR. ROSENBAUM: Mr. Hill, thanks for your 3 | certify that the witness in the foregoing
4 patience. | redly appreciate you hanging in there. 4 deposition,
5 Thanks very much. Y ou have anice weekend. 5 NATHAN SCOTT HILL,
? (The deposggr(;concl uded at 4:37 p.m.) 6 was by me duly sworn to testify the truth, the whole
AN . 7 truth, in the within-entitled cause; that said
g Sle?oss?tibc?nadlvﬁeerd eéga;;theat\;ggéhe foregoing 8 depositionwas td<q1 a the i me ant_j place therein
10 ' i 9 named; that the te;st} mony of said witness was reported
11 (check one) NO CORRECTIONS 10 by me, aduly certified shorthand reporter and a
13 12 into typewriting.
14 13 | further certify that | am not of counsdl or
Date Signed 14 attorney for either or any of the parties to said cause,
15 15 nor in any way interested in the outcome of the cause
16 16 named in said deposition.
NATHAN SCOTT HILL 17 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand
17 18 this 30th day of January, 2002.
CaseTitle: Williams vs State, Volumell 19
18 Date of Deposition: Friday, January 18, 2002 20
19 /I 21
20 /I 22
- TRACY LEE MOORELAND, CSR 10397
23 23 State of California
24 24
25 25
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